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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the Company’s website at
www.yff.com (the “Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented to receive the corporate
communications of the Company (the “Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website
and who for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the annual report posted on
the Company Website will promptly upon request be sent the annual report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means of receipt (either in printed form or
via the Company Website) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in printed form, and/or to change
their choice of the means of receipt of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the share
registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by sending an email to the share
registrar of the Company at yunfeng.ecom@computershare.com.hk.
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CEQO’s Statement
ITHAERRE

In 2021, against the backdrop of suspended local
business operations due to disruptions caused by
COVID-19 across the global financial market, Yunfeng
Financial Group (“Yunfeng Financial” or the “Company”)
rose to the challenge and achieved new breakthroughs
in various business lines, with solid earnings growth
registered. Furthermore, the Company adjusted the
organizational structure of the securities business
of Yunfeng Financial, set up the securities business
management committee, the Brokerage Division
and the Investment Banking Division, and laid down
the priorities for the two divisions respectively: the
Brokerage Division should focus on 2C businesses, and
steadily scale up internet-based securities operations
and improve the quality of related services; and the
Investment Banking Division should focus on 2B
businesses, exploring and delivering business synergies
between Yunfeng Securities, Yunfeng Capital and YF
Life Insurance. The Insurance Division and the various
financial business units seized opportunities to enhance
the competitiveness of the Company’s products and
services through innovation and adoption of new
technology, in line with our commitment to establishing
Yunfeng Financial as a leading general financial service
conglomerate in Hong Kong.

On the insurance front, YF Life Insurance International
Ltd. (“YF Life Insurance”) delivered satisfactory business
performance in 2021. YF Life Insurance posted new
businesses growth in a breakthrough fashion despite
the persistent COVID-19 pandemic, and impressive
increases were achieved in the number of in-force
individual policies, premium revenue and net operating
income as well compared to prior year. In 2021, YF
Life Insurance unveiled a new organizational structure,
and embarked on a new journey in pursuit of the
strategic blueprint of “being customer-centered and
technology-empowered”. As regards sales channel
development, the basic-level indicators were broken
down for performance tracking purposes, and exclusive
agency channel building efforts started to bear fruit;
in particular, the Macao-based broker channel model
achieved impressive results. In terms of product
innovation, YF Life Insurance continuously rolled out
innovative products, improved customer experience
employing the “products + services” model, and carried
out various product promotion events to support sales
operations. As regards technology enablement, the
Smart mobile business development toolkit has been
upgraded in accordance with the digital transformation
strategy, so as to empower agencies in online business
operations on a comprehensive scale; we further
integrated the online customer self-service portal with
YFLink to improve digital service support; the robotic
process automation (RPA), anti-money laundering (AML)
and office automation (OA) systems were launched,
applying fintech to enhance operational and logistics
efficiency.
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As for the Brokerage Business Division, in 2021, in
terms of APP Internet operation, the number of new
registered users, the number of new accounts and the
number of new users making deposits all increased
compared with prior year. The securities brokerage
unit completed the channel construction, optimized
commission exchange rate and other market systems,
and enriched the market operation portfolio. Seven
versions of the employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”)
business proprietary platform had been iterated and
data migration for the existing customers had been
completed. As for the fintech business, as the front-,
middle- and back-office product planning for Youyu
Technology was completed, the team has enhanced its
product research and development strength.

Investment Banking business unit, in addition to
completing the overall organizational structure and
development planning, launched the construction of
new capital management product and completed the
transition of Youyu Wealth, accelerated the construction
of the wealth management team and launched the
promotion of new product. The Investment Banking
Division saw increases in both business volume and
revenues in 2021. Asset management business: both
AUM and existing products have improved consistently;
wealth management: a wealth management team was
initially built. To promote the wealth management
sales system, the team explored marketing strategies,
technological support, and the communication
mechanism of the Group.

The work accomplished in the investment research
segment in 2021 included undertaking and completing
investment research tasks of various assets involved
in the securities and insurance businesses of the
Company, expanding asset research categories and
industry research areas, providing effective investment
advice for the Group.
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CEQO’s Statement
ITHERRE
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CEQO’s Statement
ITHERRE

Looking ahead, the performance of different industries
will be further affected to varying degrees by
uncertainties during the recovery amidst the pandemic
and concerns about political tensions, global energy
tightening and rising inflation worldwide. However,
guided by the Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the
Outline of Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the Plan for
Comprehensively Deepening Reform and Opening-Up
of the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service
Industry Cooperation Zone, Hong Kong will continue to
deepen its cooperation with Guangdong and Macao.
To shore up the Group’s economic strength and
competitiveness in this region, we will actively explore
all suitable development opportunities, review existing
business strategies, expand the business scope and
consolidate the Group’s position as a leading insurance
and financial service provider in Hong Kong. Lastly, |
would like to thank the shareholders for their strong
support, and thanks also go to our partners and clients
for their support and trust.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

During the Year, COVID-19 continued to impact
global financial markets. Facing the challenges and
opportunities during the recovery, the Group effectively
executed its business plan and actively pursued
appropriate opportunities to broaden revenue streams
and enhance shareholder value under the current market
conditions. The Group captured the opportunities
arising from the recovery to achieve breakthroughs and
sustainable development in its business.

The Group’s sources of revenue include life insurance
premium income and other financial businesses
including subscription fees and management fees for
products launched by the Group, platform fees for
distribution of third-parties products, administration
fee for employees stock ownership plan management
services and brokerage commission income etc. For
the Year, the Group’s revenue amounted to HK$8,521
million, representing an increase of 10% compared to
that of HK$7,763 million for the year 2020. The revenue
included HK$8,479 million premiums and fee income,
representing an increase of 10% compared to that of
HK$7,723 million for the year 2020, and HK$43 million
of income from other financial services, representing
an increase of 10% compared to that of HK$39 million
for the year 2020. The adjusted operating profit was
approximately HK$818 million, representing an increase
of 1% compared to that of HK$813 million for the
year 2020. The Group’s consolidated profit amounted
to HK$793 million, representing a decrease of 16%
compared to that of HK$949 million for the year 2020.
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to HK$513 million, representing a
decrease of 17% compared to that of HK$618 million
for the year 2020 mainly due to the impact of fair value
change of derivative instruments used for hedging
against USD to HKD exposure in relation to Hong
Kong dollar insurance policy. Excluding the fair value
change of derivative instruments, the Group’s overall
result would have been HK$884 million, representing an
increase of 5% compared to HK$844 million for the year
2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRDWN
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS REMBRE
REVIEW
The financial highlights of the Group were as follows: AEBFAEHUBRBANOT ¢
Consolidated financial result analysis BEMKRBESN
For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million BEzf-—FA=+—HiItFE BEET
2021 2020 Change %
—E - —E-FF it %
Income A
Premiums and fee income RERERKBA 8,479 7,723 10
Profit after taxation BRF &R 793 949 (16)
Net profit attributable to the BB ARGRRFE
owners 513 618 (17)
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREXRZEF (Bx)
(Note 1) (H13£1) 0.133 0.186 28)
Final dividend proposed per BRI AKRHERRKRE
share - - N/AT i A

At 31 December, HK$ million

Rt=—A=+—-—H EBEEExT

2021 2020 Change %
e 21t %
Total assets EERE 98,474 87,553 12
Total equity REEAAEE 19,891 19,342 3
Owner’s equity BB AR 13,724 13,381 3
Owner’s equity per share (HK$) HEEASKREZR CBx)
(Note 2) (Htz2) 3.55 3.46 3
Note 1: The denominator is weighted average number of Kt : DRARATNEBERNINEFLITE -
ordinary shares of the Company.
Note 2: The denominator is total issued shares as of 31 Krat2 : SPREBEEHEEET-A=1T—H®W
December of the respective years. ERTRMOBEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
REVIEW (Continued)

Consolidated financial result analysis (Continued)

Analysis on profit for the year, HK$ million

BEEENWE DM

REMBRE (&)

REMBRRON (&
rEEBATH - BEET

2021 2020 Change %
—E-—F —E-FF #{t %
YF Life segment operating BEERRoBK&ERR
profit 993 962 3
Other financial services Hih&®MBEENAR D
and corporate segment REEE
operating loss (175) (149) 17
Total operating profit KR F AR 818 813 1
Adjust for the following profit or FEEUTEZREH
loss and expenses impact: =2 38
- non operating investment - EEINMNRENRE B
income, fair value changes MEHTETIAMN
of risk hedging derivatives NREBEEEBUR
and fair value change RERENAIRE
and impairment of certain BEBEFEE
investments 77 264 (71)
— Staff share award - BIRMEEE

amortisation expense 6 8 12 (33)
— Legal and professional fee - WEBBRENERE

and other expenses for NEXERERA N/A

acquisition of YF Life ft & A - (8) TiE A
- Finance cost (Note 1) —BERA (HaE1) (125) (132) )
- One-off adjustments (Note 2) —— RMBEE (ff722) (2) 4 (50)
- Consolidation adjustments -t (HF3)

(Note 3) 16 4 300
Profit for the year REERF 792 949 (a7
Less: non-controlling interests & - 3E#EpRAE R (279) (331) (16)
Net profit attributable to the BE ARG FE

owners 513 618 17)

Note 1: The amount includes bank interest expenses and other Wizt ZEHAOEAEERKEBREMEEARE
finance expenses incurred for the capital required in EHRTANEEANEMMKEER -
the Group’s strategic investment.

Note 2: One-off adjustments represent the impact of Kizto - —REREEFRREHERERANAE
professional consultancy fees incurred for EHNEXEZLHRAEANTE -
non-recurring project expense.

Note 3: The consolidation adjustments represent the financial K123 : AHAREREERREEENIEZE -
impact arising from the acquisition of YF Life.

Note 4: Certain comparative figure is restated to be consistent Htit4 : R EHECTMUFEEHARAEEN
with current year presentation. BARRE—Z -

EERESHEBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
REVIEW (Continued)

Changes in owner’s equity

HK$ million

REMBRE (&)

BREARZEE
EEET

2021 2020
—B=-—F C-B-%F

Balance at 1 January —B—HZ&8% 19,342 15,463
Share based payment transaction URNEEAGEEERNRS (8) (12)
Issue of subscription shares BIRBRGO - 2,044
Profit for the year REERF 793 949
Other comprehensive income and others Ht & E U K E b (236) 898
Balance at 31 December T+ B=+—H2ZHE 19,891 19,342
Attributable to: FEfL R

- equity shareholders of the Company - RAPAFERZRE 13,724 13,381
- non-controlling interests — FFERER 6,167 5,961
Total equity R 19,891 19,342

The Group’s total shareholders’ equity amounted to
approximately HK$19,891 million as at 31 December
2021 as compared to the total shareholders’ equity of
HK$19,342 million reported at the end of last year. The
increase is mainly due to the overall positive operating
result for the year.

INSURANCE BUSINESS REVIEW

To facilitate a more thorough and comprehensive review
of the insurance business, YF Life, the related financial
data excludes the fair value accounting adjustments
made on the acquisition. Management considers the full
year operation and financial data excluding fair value
accounting adjustments made on YF Life acquisition and
intragroup transaction elimination with other business
segment of the Group is able to provide reader with
more relevant information on the business performance
of the insurance business segment operating results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

During the year 2021, our insurance business remained
as authorized insurer licensed to carry on life and
annuity, linked long term, permanent health, and
retirement scheme management long term insurance
businesses in Hong Kong. It also operates in Macao
through a branch office and is licensed to sell life
insurance products in Macao.

Our insurance business division maintained diversified
product suite includes four flagship products: (i) the
“FLEXI-ULife Prime Saver”, an enhanced universal life
insurance plan; (ii) the “MY Lifetime Annuity”, a plan
providing guaranteed lifetime annuity income to act
as a safety net during the customer’s retirement; (iii)
the “Infinity Saver 3”, an insurance savings plan to
accumulate capital with potentially higher return; and
(iv) the “PrimeHealth” series which are critical illness
products covering a wide range of illnesses.

The tied agency force consisted of approximately 3,462
(2020: 3,409) agents in Hong Kong and Macao as of 31
December 2021. In addition to the tied agency force, we
also utilise brokers and agency intermediaries as well
as banks and other financial institutions to distribute
insurance products. As of 31 December 2021, the
insurance business division has approximately 568
(2020: 510) employees and more than 523,000 (2020:
506,000) in-force individual policies.

During 2021, our insurance division continues to
develop its tied agency, brokerage and agency
intermediary and bancassurance distribution channels
to increase penetration in the market, to broaden its
access to potential customers and to meet the evolving
preferences of existing customers. Tied agency is
the most significant distribution channel in terms of
premium and fee income contribution and we plan to
continue to steadily grow its tied agency force. We also
seek to expand our brokerage and agency intermediary
distribution channel to serve sophisticated customers
who we believe are more receptive to independent
advice. For bancassurance distribution channel, we will
aim to establish new partnerships with suitable banks
and financial institutions. Furthermore, our insurance
division has been exploring to re-formulate overall
strategy of online sales channel.

Future development in the insurance business

In the year 2022 and coming years, our Group will
continue to optimise the product mix through promotion
of products such as critical illness products, improvement
of the information capability and usage of digital
platforms to match the preferences of the customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

TOTAL PREMIUM AND FEE INCOME

Total premium and fee income (“TPI”) measures
its business volumes by referring to the total TPI
reported under the Insurance Ordinance (“10”). TPI
consists of full amount of single premium, first year
regular premium and renewal regular premium before
reinsurance, and includes deposits and contributions
for contracts. In preparing the financial statements in
accordance with HKFRS, YF Life chooses to unbundle
the deposit component of insurance contracts from
TPl and such deposit component is credited directly to
the policyholders’ deposit upon receipt. Therefore, the
revenue recognized in the financial statements prepared
under HKFRS is less than TPl before intra-group
transaction eliminations.

RENBERARARE

REREARANREBRBSZE(RIRERMD
(TR RG] BMENRERE R BRABFER
AREHAXEBE RENBARAREGREER
NRE2E BFFARBENBRZANE
RBYRE  BERBNUEK - RE(FBR
WHREER)REF B HRRE > BEREEE
RREREAURATDHFRERS BB EH
Do MZEREMINBIREESARE
BFEANGER Bt RB(EBYHBREE
BI) 4R ) B9 B 35 3R 3% oh SR B A AR XX 5 K 85 A
BRNBBERRERERABR AR -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—B-—&F C—ZB-FF
HKS$ million HK$ million
& #ET H & E T
Total premium and fee income reported RIEREBGEHARENRERE
under 10 AW ABEE 11,147 10,329
Less: Premium deposits separated out B RRBERPERES IR
from insurance contracts and ERFeNEARAER
recognition of fee income (2,667) (2,604)
Premium and fee income recognized in EEMKE BT EREEL) UK
the income statements under HKFRS mRPERANREREAKRA 8,480 7,725

Management considers TPl as one of the important
measures of the Group’s operating performance and
believe they are frequently used by analysts, investors
and other interested parties in the evaluation of
insurance companies. The management also uses TPI
as an additional measurement tool for the purposes
of business decision-making. TPl is not a measure of
operating performance under HKFRS and should not
be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, profit
before tax in accordance with HKFRS.
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BUSINESS VOLUME

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

The tables below set forth the TPl of the Insurance
business by (i) geographical region, (ii) distribution
channel and (iii) product type based on internal records.

(i) By geographical region

For the year ended 31 December

E33

TRENAIBLHZOWEEIT ()2 HR
BA)VERBERBIN T REEBENRERE
FAUR #8258 -

() ®EESE

BE+t-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—E=—F —E-%F
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEET B BB T
Hong Kong 58 7,024 63 7,179 70
Macao B 4,123 37 3,150 30
11,147 100 10,329 100
(i) By distribution channel (i) ROWRE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1T-HLEE
2021 2020
—EC--& —EC%E
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEET
Hong Kong Macao Total Hong Kong Macao Total
BB ! &t E B a%
Tied agency BRAE 4,663 1,260 5,923 4,307 1,136 5,443
Brokers and non-tied RZANEBF
agency RE 1,766 694 2,460 2,289 151 2,440
Banks and other RITMNEMSH

financial institution Mg 595 2,169 2,764 583 1,863 2,446
7,024 4,123 11,147 7,179 3,150 10,329

EHOREBERAT
i
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS VOLUME (Continued)

(iii) By product type

EKE (&)
(iii) ZRERER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BL%E

2021 2020
—E--% —E-EF
HK$ million HK$ million
EE#T EEET
Hong Kong Macao Total Hong Kong Macao Total
B BP At E# s a%
Regular premium HBARE
- First year - B 793 1,623 2,416 763 1,381 2,144
Regular premium EHRE
- Renewal - &N 5,749 2,327 8,076 6,140 1,702 7,842
Single premium BHRE 478 171 649 273 65 338
Fee income ERRA 4 2 6 3 2 5
7,024 4,123 11,147 7,179 3,150 10,329
EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW NEBEMNFXKER

BUSINESS

The Embedded Value method is a commonly adopted
alternative method of measuring the value and
profitability of a life insurance company. Embedded
Value is an actuarially determined estimate of the
economic value of a life insurance business based on
a particular set of assumptions as to future experience,
excluding any economic value attributable to future
new business. Value of New Business represents an
actuarially determined estimate of the economic value
arising from new life insurance business issued in the
relevant 12-month period.

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the components
of embedded value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and guarantees
and other risks associated with the realisation of the
expected future distributable earnings through the use
of a risk adjusted discount rate and is consistent with
the industry practice in the market.

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW
BUSINESS (Continued)

The embedded value of the insurance business as at
31 December 2021 is HK$18,061 million (31 December
2020: HK$15,736 million) with breakdown as below.

HK$ million

BEEENWE DM

NEBEMMEREE @)

BE-Z-_—F+-A=+—-0 RBEHK
HAEEEAE18061EBT(ZEEF+=
A=+—RH : 1573688 x) ' 15U T °

B &ET

31 December 31 December

2021 2020 Change %
—E-— —EEE
+ZA=t-B +=A=t-8 21t
Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW?”) REREE )
(note 1) 5,610 4,724 19
Value of in-force (“VIF”) business after AREBINBRERF AR 2%
CoC (note 2) HEE (HF2) 12,451 11,012 13
Embedded value REEE 18,061 15,736 15
Note 1: The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong Kong Bzt : KARZFEEEBEATREECZINEE
statutory basis, with marked-to-market adjustment to FBE SEARMRBESIBNETE
certain assets. The ANW change is driven by the new EETETEFEAR KAEFES
financial reinsurance arrangement. tREFTNEMBREZTHEEE -

Note 2: The VIF is the present value of future estimated Krato - EREKEBEREERERNREMET

after-tax statutory profits from in-force business,
discounted at the risk discount rate. The VIF growth
is mainly driven by new business acquired and
future economic assumption update, partly offset by
future repayment of the new financial reinsurance
arrangement.

For further detailed discussion and movement analysis
of embedded value of insurance business from 31
December 2020 to 31 December 2021, please refer to
the Embedded Value section.

EHOREBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT

The key financial data of insurance segment is
presented under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) on a full year basis before any fair

REXBIVBETEVHERE

REIBHNEEZMBENERNBBSTRE
EENEAIABEABRNEEARBR ZIE
HA2RATN  RE(BERUBRELED)Z

value adjustment arising from the acquisition accounting >EEBIZIR
policy and intra-group transaction eliminations:
2021 2020 Change %
—E-—F —E-FF 21k
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET BHEET
Income ON
Premiums and fee income RERERAWA (Hia)

(note a) 8,480 7,725 10
Premiums ceded to reinsurer DHRE (2,749) (2,935) (6)
Net premium and fee income RERERBAFHE 5,731 4,790 20
Change in unearned revenue REBBRAEEEE

liability (note b) (Ktatb) (726) (214) 239
Net earned premium and fee WHBRERERAKRA

income HER 5,005 4,576 9
Net investment and other BREFHEMU A FEE

income (note c) (Htite) 5,018 6,103 (18)
Reinsurance commission and BARBE & F:EF

profit 79 97 (19)
Benefits, losses and expenses 1Y BENEH
Net policyholders benefit FREGN (K1)

(note d) 2,506 3,273 23)
Commission and related HEMEBEER

expenses 1,822 1,351 35
Deferral and amortisation of EEREBEBRAN

deferred acquisition costs IEIE RN 8 (B aEb)

(note b) (1,576) (437) 261
Management and other EERHEMBEX

expenses 983 754 30
Change in future policyholder RRRERFBEAKNM

benefits (note e) BB (fite) 5,409 4,695 15
Profit before taxation BR B4 A% A 958 1,140 (16)
Taxation BiE 49 50 (2)
Profit after taxation BREE B IER 909 1,090 (17)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)

BEEENWE DM

REEXBIBETEMBEE @)

Note a: The increase of the balance mainly arises from new Kiita - HRENEMEERERFEBRMNERA
business and natural growth of in-force portfolio. EWEARER -

Note b: The net increase of the balances (i.e. deferral and Ktitb : R EE (BNIE i 1R B R 15 AK A /Y 3R 7 0 42 84
amortisation of deferred acquisition costs minus BERBEBRASEEE) WIEMFEE
change in unearned revenue liability) is mainly due to EEHARBEHESIESRAEM -
increase in acquisition cost from higher sales.

Note c: The balance includes net investment and other Htate - HREDREREFENEMBA  -RITE
income, interest income from bank deposits and other RANEBWAFE ML A o
operating income.

Note d: The balance includes net claims, policy benefits and Kratd - HREEEREREE REWSTNERS
surrenders, interest credited to policyholders’ deposits REBEANEREHINENRERSSF
and dividends to policyholders. ABRE -

Note e: The balance includes both change in future Kiite - HRECERRREFEARRBIRE
policyholders’ benefits to both insurance and ERMKEEL HRENENEERE
investment contracts. The increase of the balance RFEBNEREHENBERER
mainly arises from new business and natural growth of
inforce portfolio.

OPERATING PROFIT FEE il

For management decision making and internal AEBUKEHAN (FTEEEEEENRE

performance management purpose, the Group refers W& BEREBITETIEN A AABEEH

to the operating profit which excludes the investment
income from disposal, fair value changes of risk hedging
derivatives and impairment loss of investments. The
operating profit and profit for the year grew by 3% to
HK$993 million and declined by 17 % to HK$909 million
respectively.

FRENBEEFBRE)IFAEEERERAI
BHEEEN FAEFELERANIERIBE
0.03BB TR AFEEZNEP17%E.09E
BT o

2021 2020 Change %
—F_—F _Z_=F #1{t
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BHEET
Operating profit (note 1) mERF (K1) 993 962 3
Adjust for the following profit or FEEUTEZREH
loss and expenses impact: =2 3
- Investment income from - REEENKREWR
disposal, fair value changes &= BBREHTE
of risk hedging derivatives TEANAAREBESR
and impairment loss of BURIBRENRE
investments K58 (84) 128 N/ATE B
Profit for the year KEERF 909 1,090 (17)

Note 1:

business activities.
ERSRERBRAR
TR -FFR

Operating profit represents profit generated from core

Hratt - RERANIERROEB BB ELENER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table sets out the key financial information
with respect to the assets and liabilities employed by
the insurance division before any fair value adjustment
arising from the acquisition accounting policy and

intra-group eliminations.

EENEE

THREINTRBEARRELENEFALAE
ERBNEEAIBIEE A R D EBAE
ANEENRENEIEZYHBER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2021 2020
—B=-—-f C—E-EF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEE T
Investments wE 66,869 62,357
Cash and deposit BE&MER 3,788 1,878
Deferred acquisition costs ELEREESKAR 8,781 5,998
Other assets HihEE 9,735 6,602
Total assets EEBE 89,173 76,835
Insurance contract provisions REBEREES 63,309 54,287
Investment contract liabilities REAGRAE 4,857 4,529
Other payable Hfth FE {3 FIE 5,173 3,262
Total liabilities BEHRE 73,339 62,078
Net assets EEFHE 15,834 14,757
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INVESTMENT ASSETS

The table below sets forth the asset allocation of the
investment portfolio of the insurance division based on
the classification in conformity with the reports provided
to the management of the Company to measure the
performance of the investment portfolio which can
be reconciled to total investments carrying amount in
above table for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

BEEENWE DM

REEE

TRIEBRIEBHRUVEATNEEENRE
HENEEIBRBRSDE Llﬁlgixﬁﬁﬂm
E’Jia?& *?iﬁ‘t’\xE—JLAEEJ:i'%EPE’JEE
¢1+ A= 'I' Eitif.Vb¢x§EE@1E
HER o

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HKS$ million HK$ million
B & ET H & &
Debt securities BXES 50,730 45,967
Mortgage loans EIFER 6,086 6,547
Equity securities ERES 2,709 1,887
Cash for investment ARKRENES 725 515
60,250 54,916

Unit trusts and investment policyholder BNEARBREREFEA

plans related securities BE LR 7,344 7,915
67,594 62,831

As at 31 December 2021, 95.1% (2020: 94.5%) of the
debt securities invested have Standard and Poor’s
rating of BBB- or above or equivalent rating from
other reputable rating agencies. As at 31 December
2021, 81.2% (2020: 82.2%) of the mortgage loans
have internal rating equivalent to Standard and Poor’s
ratings of BBB or above or equivalent ratings from other
reputable rating agencies.

The table below sets forth the total investment income
based on internal records:

BE-_ZT_-_—F+=-A=+—H REEBHK
EEHEMWBA% (ZE_FF :045%) EBE
'Ejtﬁﬁﬁﬁ&BBB jutﬁﬁ{mn%m}m
FREBHORETFHR RZE-_—F+=A
=t+—8> mz%L_q_?i 82.2% ) HY
HHERWADTREZELTTHTH ABBB
jz;xtjz,ﬁ\ﬂtfn%aﬂ%aﬁ FREBHRET
WS -

TRENTERRDLHMIRE NGB :
For the year ended

31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

HK$ million HK$ m////on

BEET B E BT

Interest income and others FIE U A FIEH b 2,157 1,974
Dividend income [N ON 373 166

The investment income excludes income arising from
investment-linked products.

EHOREBERAT
i
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19



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

KEY OPERATIONAL DATA OF THE

INSURANCE DIVISION

The table below sets forth certain other key operational

data of the insurance division.

RIS BHETELLEHE

TREITREDBNAGERZELHE -

As at 31 December

Market position/share (by regular
premium income)

Number of employees
- Hong Kong
- Macao
Number of tied agents
- Hong Kong
- Macao
Number of brokers and non-tied agents

Number of bancassurance partners

MDRT qualifiers (Note 1)

WSEN, M (REH
WA

BEANMFEBRRERE

RITREBSEBHHE

BRERSERAE (A1)

Expenses ratio (Note 2) BRE (fit2)

Notes: /'(/9‘3:{ E

1. Million Dollar Round Table (“MDRT”) is a global professional 1.
association of life insurance and financial services
professionals that recognizes significant sales achievements
and high service standards.

2. Expenses ratio is operating expenses expressed as a 2.

percentage of TPI.

20

R+=-—A=+-—8
2021 2020
—EC-—F —ECZERF
RE 13th/1.6% 12th/1.6%
$£1311, g£121,
1.6% 1.6%
541 486
27 24
2,423 2,373
1,039 1,036
526 527
5 6
324 235
8.8% 7.3%

BEEEXRS ((MDRT) REHASRENEH
RBEXAEHRS  FIRREEARBEXE
M B RRIBRE -

BERELERURENFEENEILRTNE
EHX e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SOLVENCY
MARGIN

The table below sets forth a summary of the total
available capital and solvency ratio, the ratio expressed
as a percentage, of the surplus to the required solvency
margin of the legal entity carried out the insurance
business related activities, as determined at the relevant
time in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance (Cap.
41 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“10”), as the case may
be, as it may be amended from time to time, and its
subsidiary legislation and based on standards required
by the IO and methodology consistently applied by our
insurance division.

BEEENWE DM

BB HMENEED

TREINTARERBENEN L RER
B R B RIE (R ERD) (FBEE
M) ([REEH ) GREBRME - 78T B
EHERT) ~ REAMBER » LARERBIRH
RENBRENRFRRED I —BERNTGE
REEKERENERERATRERERKM
BERBAMEENEINRBRA DL -

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—B=-—% Z—Z-%F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET B &E T

Total available capital AAEARERE
Regulatory minimum capital REEEER
Solvency Ratio EE=R

The solvency ratio was 281% on 31 December 2021,
down by 7% from 288% on 31 December 2020.

EHOREBERAT
i

7,293 6,868
2,596 2,384
281% 288%

RZBEZ-F+ZA=+—-RH EBEBEXRE
281 % kB =-ZZFEFE+=ZHF=+—8H
288% T FET7%

A\l
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

OTHER BUSINESSES REVIEW

During the year 2021, the turnover of brokerage
business amounted to HK$27,947 million (2020:
HK$20,490 million), representing an increase of 36%.
The brokerage division focused on business function
and products improvement. During the year 2021, the
brokage business team completed the development
of market systems such as channel construction and
optimization of commission exchange rate, and enriched
the market operation portfolio and the number of users
continued to grow.

By the end of 2021, 7 versions of the employee stock
ownership plan (“ESOP”) business proprietary platform
had been iterated and the number of users of the
platform continued to increase.

During the year 2021, the fintech business division
has completed the product planning for the Group
and focused on enhancement of product research
and development capacity to support the technology
needs of the Group’s other business lines (e.g. the
development of the Yunfeng Youyu App) as well as
those of the external clients.

In 2021, the Group’s asset management business
continued to enhance its existing advantages in
overseas asset allocation and enhance the infrastructure
of the ecosystem conducive to stronger synergies
between the asset side and the capital side of
the Group so as to provide customers with high
quality cross-border assets and services. Looking
forward to 2022, the asset management division will
continue to enhance capacity in fund selection and
alternative investment based on market conditions
and the company’s development planning. The asset
management service team strives to provide clients with
quality overseas asset allocation services for all existing
and new products.

22
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the performance of different industries
will be continuously affected to varying degrees by
uncertainties during the recovery amidst the pandemic
and concerns about political tensions, global energy
tightening and rising inflation worldwide. However,
driven by the Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the
Outline of Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the Plan for
Comprehensively Deepening Reform and Opening-Up
of the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service
Industry Cooperation Zone, Hong Kong will continue to
deepen its cooperation with Guangdong and Macao.
To shore up the Group’s economic strength and
competitiveness in this region, we will actively explore
all suitable development opportunities, review existing
business strategies, expand the business scope and
consolidate the Group’s position as a leading insurance
and financial service provider in Hong Kong.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had fixed bank
deposits with original maturity over 3 months and cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$5,085 million
(2020: HK$4,293 million). As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has HK$1,382 million (2020: HK$1,554 million)
bank borrowing outstanding and HK$1,641 million
(2020: HK$1,641 million) shareholder’s loan outstanding.
The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 is
13.19% (2020: 14.18%), which was measured as total
debt excluding those operation related liabilities to total
debt excluding those operation related liabilities plus
equity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 42(e) to the financial
statements.

EHOREBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

RISK FACTORS

In 2021,

the Group carried out timely and complete

identification and evaluation to manage the key risks.
The identified risks are being monitored according to
the risk appetite and the related regulation by the board
of directors and also the related committees assisting
the board.

(i)

(i)

24

Strategic Risk

Management recognised the importance of
incorporating insurance business with the financial
service ecosystem of the Group. On the other
hand, management is keen on enhancing the
business process and integration with financial
technology to create values to all customers of the
Group. The overall enhancement and integration
process creates uncertainties and increase
degree of difficulties on related risk management
requirement. Management proactively devotes
sufficient resources to support and enhance the
ongoing process.

Insurance Risk

Management considers insurance risk mainly
comprised:

Product design risk — potential defects in the
development of a particular insurance product.
To mitigate the risk, each of the new products
is required to go through pre-launch reviews
by various departments, including product
development, actuarial, legal and underwriting to
ensure the risk being aligned with the Group’s risk
appetite.

Lapse risk — the possibility of actual lapse
experience that diverges from the anticipated
experience assumed when products were priced
as well as financial loss due to early termination
of policies or contracts where the acquisition
cost incurred may not be recoverable from future
revenue. Management carries out regular studies
of persistency experience which will be assimilated
into new and in-force management and build in
measures including surrender charges to manage
the financial impact upon early termination by
policyholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Insurance Risk (Continued)

Pricing or underwriting risk — the possibility of
product related income being inadequate to
support future obligations arising from a product.
Further details related to this risk and the related
mitigation and monitoring measures is set out in
Note 5 “Insurance and financial risk management”
to the consolidated financial statements.

Claim risk — the possibility that the frequency or
severity of claims arising from insurance products
exceed the levels assumed when the product
was priced. Further details related to this risk and
the related mitigation and monitoring measures
are set out in Note 5 “Insurance and financial
risk management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Market Risk, Credit Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk
and Liquidity Risk

The details of the market risk, credit risk, foreign
exchange risk and liquidity risk identified and
their related mitigation and monitoring measures
are detailed in Note 5 “Insurance and financial
risk management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect
loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, personnel and systems or from external
events. The Group manages the risk primarily
through risk and control self-assessment and
reviews losses and fraud issues and provides
guidance, training and assistance to relevant
personnel for ongoing risk management purpose.

Risk management and internal control

Detailed risk management and internal control is set out
in corporate governance report section in this annual
report from page 56 to 59.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

At the year ended December 2021, the Group did
not have any charges on assets, other than security
deposits of HK$9,900,000 (2020: HK$150,000) for
banking facilities and HK$13,382,007,000 (2020:
HK$7,542,647,000) of investment together with
HK$727,089,000 (2020: HK$309,648,000) of fixed bank
deposit in favour of Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to
guarantee the technical reserves in accordance with the
Macau Insurance Ordinance.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments are set out in note 45 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segments are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 52 to
the financial statements.

STAFFING AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 814
(2020: 708) full time employees, 619 (2020: 553) of
which were located in Hong Kong, 27 (2020: 24) in
Macao and 168 (2020: 131) in the People’s Republic of
China. The remuneration of employees includes salary
retention package and discretionary bonus. The Group
also adopted share option and share award schemes to
provide an incentive to the employees.

The remuneration policy and package, including
the share option and share awards, of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and reviewed
annually by the management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
21 September 2020, the Company entered into
subscription agreements on 7 September 2020 with
(1) Jade Passion Limited (“Jade Passion”) in relation
to the subscription of 484,665,279 ordinary shares
of the Company at the subscription price of HK$3.17
and (2) MassMutual International LLC in relation to
the subscription of 160,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the Subscription Price of HK$3.17 (together
refer to “Issue”). The total gross proceeds for the Issue
was HK$2,043,588,934 and the net proceeds was
HK$2,040,588,934.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated
12 November 2021, there was subsequent update in use
of proceeds which the Company intends to temporarily
deploy in full or any part of the Unutilised Proceeds in
Strategic Investment to investments in medium term
investments with investment horizon of around 1 to
3 years including (i) debt instruments such as bonds,
debenture, notes and convertible notes, (ii) investments
in private equity and (iii) exchange traded funds and
hedge funds, and other fund investments types which
terms are compatible with Company’s investment
strategy.

The table below sets out the actual application of net
proceeds and usage up to 31 December 2021:

Actual usage

BEEENWE DM

RGBBEREAER

WRAABRBHB-ZE=ZFAA=-+—
HeBRABEE XABR-Z=_FFh
B+ HEd(1) Jade Passion Limited ([ Jade
Passion ) SI X TRBEWZE REEBEES
fR3.17%8 T 2 R B E R 484,665,279 A~ 1
AE @R - LLK(2) MassMutual International
LLCAT X TRBWHE  RABBEIR317E
TTZREERE160,000,000 K2 8E
BR (AEAIEIT] - BITHERELLE
£2,043,588,934B tc ISEREFXES
2,040,588,9348 JT

MRAQABEHRE=-ZE=-—%+—8B+=H
ZAEFM RATYAESREREEHE
BEH ALNTREGEERREDRER
FEBFEERRMIBEREREHRN—Z
SEHBERE BRE)EBIAE WEFH
BESE ZBERTERZERE,; (REREY
BRER(INVREARZESRETES UK
HtERTEAAARERK 2 ESRESE
Bl o

TRHEINBE-ZT_—F+_A=1+—HL
FRIEREFENERERBR

Unutilised
Proceeds up

up to to Expected timeline for
Use of 31 December 31 December utilising the remaining net
Proceeds 2021 2021 proceeds
EZB--Ff EZTB--F
 TZA=+-B +=-A=1-"H MERFIERERAD
FiENERE LERERER LHAEARE BB R
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
EEET EEET EEET
Strategic investment BB IR E (ff:21) 1,224.6 - 1,2246  Expected to be fully utilised
(note 1) on or before Dec 31, 2024
BIAE-ZE-MF
+ZA=+—-H%
ZARDFA
Asset management ~ BEEBEN (H/72) 306.1 (306.1) - -
business (note 2)
Securities brokerage ~ EHELEK (H523) 306.2 (306.2) - -
business (note 3)
Working capital EEES (ffit4) 204.1 (204.1) - -
(note 4)
Total: st 2,041.0 (816.4) 1,224.6
EERESHEBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

Remark:

mainly utilised on potential strategic investment for business
diversification and enhancement.

mainly utilised on asset management platform for launching
the financial products from time to time, in order to
achieve positive synergies between the Company’s capital
management and growth of its asset management business,
and facilitate external fundraising for such products.

mainly utilised on the securities brokerage business (i) when
more cash is required to be injected into the business to
increase its liquid capital resources in accordance with the
increased trading volumes; and (ii) the securities financing
business when more cash is required to be injected into the
business to support higher demand for IPO loans or margin
financing transactions.

mainly utilised on general working capital which covers
expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business of
the Group, including but not limited to manpower, rental
expenses, data license and network expenses and office
equipment expenses.

The expected timeline of utilising the remaining
proceeds is subject to significant uncertainties
including but not limited to the negotiation with
counterparties, market conditions and demand,
global economic environment, investment sentiment
and regulatory approval (if applicable) for the
above purposes. The Company adopted a treasury
management model that may involve (but shall not
be limited to) holding fixed income instruments and
high-quality financial investments in order to maximize
the Shareholders’ interest as a whole.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period are set out in
note 53 to the financial statements.

28

RODBEAERBERR (#)

Bt -

&

TEAREBTERRE BREESTME
BEL -

TEAREEEEFTE  FABTREHER
Em UBREAQNFEFAEEREEEEEY
BRC2ENEBHEER BPRULEERE
BHEEE -

TEANBSFELEL  DORBEXZE2ER
FEEZREUMZERIERMEMERE
ELERNER  URARNEBSRMEXH
MEEFSREUMZERIEUZRFTEFR
BEALAHBRIRNENIRBERERS
EEFERNBER -

TEAR-REEES REAEEEEER
BETHREINER BFEETRRAD HE
ER BENTR AKXEBERANRLEREE
[

AR Lt B #Y s R AT S RRIR Y TE
BERFEEATHEN  BEETR
REXZHFHHRH > THERGFMER
PREDRE  REZAMNEEHE (W
REA) ARAAEANESEERAT
AR (ERRM) FEEERZTAM
SEENETRRE URABEH®RRES
RERMEERER -

REHRNEH
BEPRNEHAFRENMBHIRRMEESS -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information
REEBEGEERNNBYREMKRE

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUNFENG
FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

We have reviewed the Embedded Value of YF Life
Insurance International Limited (“YF Life”) (“the YF Life
EV”) set out on pages 31 to 39 of the Annual Report
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company” or
“Yunfeng Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021
(“the EV information”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the EV information in
accordance with the general principle and methodology
of traditional embedded value and industry practice
for publicly listed companies in Hong Kong. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
maintenance of underlying data and information on the
in-force business and preparation of the EV information
which is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; performing EV calculations; selecting
and applying appropriate methodologies; and making
assumptions that are consistent with market information
and are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility, as independent actuaries, is to
perform certain review procedures set out in our letter of
engagement and, based on these procedures, conclude
whether the EV methodologies and assumptions are
consistent with industry practice for publicly listed
companies in Hong Kong, the general principle and
methodology of traditional embedded value and
available market information.

We have reviewed the methodology and assumptions
used in preparing the EV information, including the
following:

° The YF Life EV as of 31 December 2021;

o Value of one-year new business of YF Life issued
during the year ended 31 December 2021; and

° Movement analysis of the YF Life EV and sensitivity
analysis of value of in-force business and value of
one-year new business of YF Life.

Our review procedures included, but were not limited
to, discussing with management of Yunfeng Group
the methodology and assumptions, inspecting
documentation relating thereto, and considering whether
the methodologies are consistent with the general
principle and methodology of traditional embedded
value and industry practice for publicly listed companies
in Hong Kong and whether the assumptions are
consistent with available market information.
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information

RNEBEEGEEHNBYUREMRSE

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUNFENG
FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

The preparation of EV information requires assumptions
and projections to be made about future uncertain
events, many of which are outside the control of
Yunfeng Group. Therefore, actual experience may differ
from these assumptions and projections, and this will
affect the value of in-force business and the value of
one-year new business.

In forming our conclusion, we have relied on the
integrity, accuracy and completeness of audited and
unaudited data and information provided by Yunfeng
Group. Our work did not involve reperforming the EV
calculations, nor verifying the data and information
underlying the EV information.

Based on our review procedures, we have concluded
that the methodologies and assumptions used in
preparing the EV information are consistent with
industry practice for publicly listed companies in Hong
Kong and with available market information.

This report has been prepared pursuant to an
engagement contract between PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited and Yunfeng Financial Group Limited. This
report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first and
third paragraphs of this report and is for the use of the
Board of Directors of Yunfeng Group only and is not to
be used for any other purpose or to be distributed to
any other parties. We expressly disclaim any liability or
duty to any other party for the contents of this report
and howsoever arising in connection with it.

Our work does not constitute an audit or other
assurance engagement in accordance with applicable
professional standards. Accordingly, we provide no
audit opinion, attestation or other form of assurance
with respect to our work or the information upon which
our work was based.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited

Xiaobin Yuan, FSA

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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BACKGROUND

The Group mainly consists of two major segments
including life insurance business and financial
services in the areas of investment holding, asset
management, pensions, other businesses and
corporate services. Life Insurance business is
operated by YF Life, a 69.8% owned subsidiary,
which is the most significant part of the Group in
terms of total asset and profitability. To provide
additional information of the insurance business
of the Group, the Group disclosed the Embedded
Value (“EV”) of the segment.

DEFINITION

EV is a measure of value of shareholders’ interests
in the earnings distributable (“distributable
earnings”) from assets allocated to the in-force
business after sufficient allowance for the
aggregate risks in the business.

The EV equals to:
° Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW?”), plus

° Value of the in-force business before cost of
capital (“VIF before CoC”), minus

° Cost of Capital (“CoC”)

The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong
Kong statutory basis, with marked-to-market
adjustment to certain assets of our insurance
business segment.

The VIF before CoC is the present value of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits from in-force
business, discounted at the risk discount rate
as at 31 December 2021. Cost of Capital is the
difference between the amount of required capital
as at 31 December 2021 and the present value
of future releases, allowing for future after-tax
investment earnings on the capital.

Similarly, the new business value is calculated as
the difference of new business value before CoC
and CoC arising from new business sales in the
period. The new business value before CoC is the
present value, discounted at issue date, of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits emerging from
new business sales in the past 12 months, i.e. 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Embedded Value
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Embedded Value
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the
components of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and
guarantees and other risks associated with the
realisation of the expected future distributable
earnings through the use of a risk adjusted
discount rate and is consistent with the industry
practice in the market.

In determining the value of in-force business, our
insurance segment’s in-force policy databases as
at 31 December 2021 were used. New business
volumes and mix were based on the actual
business written by our insurance segment in
the 12-month period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021.

It should be noted that, in assessing the total value
of a life insurance company, the value attributed
to future new business can be determined as the
product of the one-year new business value and a
multiple which reflects an allowance for future new
business sales and the risks associated with it at
the assumed profit margin.

The Group has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC?”), an international firm of consulting
actuaries, to examine whether the methodology
and assumptions used by us in the preparation of
the Embedded Value as at 31 December 2021 is
consistent with standards generally adopted by
insurance companies in Hong Kong.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The calculations of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value of insurance business segment
are based on certain assumptions with respect to
future experience. Thus, the actual results could
differ significantly from what is envisioned when
these calculations were made. In addition, the
insurance business segment is held through a
69.8% owned subsidiary of the Group. With the
Embedded Value and the New Business Value of
the insurance business being presented on a 100%
basis below, the related value assessment should
be considered accordingly.
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Embedded Value

NEEE
5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE 5. BERBANSEE
5.1 Embedded value 51 NEEE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
=B-—F ZE-FF
+=A +=A
=+—H =t+—~H

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEE T

Adjusted Net Worth KA FE 5,610 4,724
Value of in-force business before EMEBRIIBREREAFH

cost of capital BE 14,834 13,287
Cost of capital EARR A (2,383) (2,275)
Embedded value NEEE 18,061 15,736
Attributable to: bR
Owners of the Company RATIEERR 12,607 10,984
Non-controlling interests IR = 5,454 4,752
Embedded value AEEE 18,061 15,736

5.2 New Business value 5.2 HEKEE

For the past For the past

12 months 12 months
as of as of

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

B=E BHZE
—E-—F —EEHE
+=A +=A
=+—HIH =+—H1EH
1218 A 1218 A

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEE T

New Business Value before cost of 1R & < B 7% A BY 27 £ 78

capital BEE 851 668
Cost of capital BEARR A (171) (127)
New Business Value after cost of HMBRERR BN ER
capital BE 680 541
EESREBEERAR

—E-—EER 33



Embedded Value

NEEE

5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.3 Movement analysis of embedded value

5.

BEERBRASEE @)
53 AEEEZBHOM

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEHE
Notes  HKS$ million HK$ million
k=3 BEET B &E T
Embedded Value as at 1 January RA—BA—BHRE
BE 15,736 16,351
New business value HMEKERE a 680 541
Expected return on Embedded REEEEHKS
value b 1,360 1,342
Assumption and model changes R MR &L c 558 (2,375)
Investment return variance REBHERE d 92 152
Other experience variance and Hit &= FE
exchange rate impact REE e (365) (275)
Embedded Value as at 31 R+t=-—A=+-—8
December HREERE 18,061 15,736
Note: Kzt -

a) New business contribution from sales of new

business in the past one-year

b) Return on value of in-force business plus
expected interest on Adjusted Net Worth

a) BE-FRAMEBHENER

b) FEREBWDBMEEAZFEN

a8 25

c) Impact of assumption and model changes on
the future distributable earnings of the in-force
business

d) Differences between the actual investment
returns and expected investment returns

e) Differences between the actual experience and

expected experience for mortality, morbidity,

BRRME S B REB R
PEBENTE

ERREMMBEARREC R 2
=2

ZMEANHARERBANER

lapses, and expenses
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions

Our policies state that it adopts a best
estimate approach in setting the assumptions
which are used in the calculation of its
Embedded Value and New Business Value.
The assumptions were based on the actual
experience of YF Life and certain industry
experience.

The basis and assumptions used in the
calculations are summarised below. These
assumptions have been made on a “going
concern” basis.

Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate represents the
long-term post-tax cost of capital of the
hypothetical investor for whom the valuation
is made, together with an allowance for
risk, taking into account factors such as the
political and economic environment in Hong
Kong.

We use risk discount rate of 8.75% for
31 December 2021 and 2020 as the base
scenario assumption for both in-force and
new business.

Investment returns

Future investment returns have been
calculated as the weighted average of the
investment returns on existing assets and new
assets.

The investment returns on existing assets
and new assets have been determined by
book yield, the forward rate yields available
on US government bonds, credit spreads that
reflects the allowance for risk of default and
equity return of underlying assets respectively.

Embedded Value
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Credit rate

The crediting rates for universal life business
have been set to reflect regulatory and
contractual requirements, policyholders’
reasonable expectations and earn rate
assumptions. The crediting rates were worked
out as earn rate less crediting rate spread.

Mortality

The mortality assumption is based on both
emerging experience and industry experience,
reflecting its expectation of how experience
will emerge.

The experience mortality rates have been set
as a percentage of HKA93 mortality table
with an adjustment of increased mortality at
older ages (“Adj. HKA93”). There were also
adjustment factor for non-smoker and smoker.

Morbidity

Morbidity rate assumptions have been set as
a percentage of the reinsurance rates due to
the lack of credible claims experience.

Lapse

The lapse assumptions were based on YF
Life’s experience and adjusted to reflect
the results of its recent experience. The
assumptions have been set with reference
to pricing assumptions where credible
experience data is not available.

The lapse assumptions vary by products and
policy duration.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Operating expenses

Operating expenses have been projected
based on unit expense assumption. Projected
excess or saving of expense compared
with unit expense assumption has not been
included in VIF or new business value. The
historical excess or saving of actual expense
compared with unit expense assumption has
been included in ANW component of EV.

Inflation rate

Future inflation rate was assumed to be 2%
per annum for 2021. This assumption is based
on expectations of long-term consumer price
and salary inflation.

Taxation

A tax rate of 0.825% of net premium income
has been assumed for 2021.

Required capital

The embedded value projections assume
that it maintains required capital at 150% of
minimum solvency margin.

Statutory valuation

The distributable earnings are based on
statutory reserve in accordance with the Hong
Kong reserving regulations.

Reinsurance

The cost of the financial reinsurance is
modelled based on reinsurance contract
terms. The cost of surplus reinsurance
contract is not material and has not been
explicitly modelled, but reflected in the
margins added to the mortality and morbidity
rates.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.5

Sensitivity testing

We performed sensitivity analysis on the
value of in-force business and the new
business value as at 31 December 2021, by
independently varying certain assumptions
regarding future experience. Specifically, the
following changes in assumptions have been
considered.

New money yields increased by 100
basis points per annum

New money yields decreased by 100
basis points per annum

Risk discount rate increased by 50 basis
points

Risk discount rate decreased by 50 basis
points

10% increase in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 110% of the central
assumptions)

10% decrease in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 90% of the central
assumptions)

10% increase in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)

10% increase in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued) 5. BEBRBRASEE @)
5.5 Sensitivity testing (Continued) 5.5 HEMAE (&
Value of New
in-force business
business value after
after cost
cost of of capital
For the year 2021 capital Assumptions

MERE R HERE A
A K BA K

—E-—F BEREKEE MEKEE
Assumptions HKS$ million  HKS$ million
B& B & ET BB #T
Base scenario EAREE 12,451 680
New money yields increased by FIEEEWESFIEM00

100 basis points per annum & 2%+ 13,659 815
New money yields decreased by FImEERESFRA100

100 basis points per annum 1@ 2+ 9,936 545
Risk discount rate increased by 50  [& & BY IR = 42 hn501E B+

basis points 11,543 599
Risk discount rate decreased by 50 [& [ B 3R =5 45018 B F

basis points 13,454 769
10% increase in lapse rate and skip ER Rk MR B R M

premium rates 10% 12,431 671
10% decrease in lapse rate and BRRENABREZHD

skip premium rates 10% 12,488 689
10% increase in mortality and RTURMBRWRURBEAE

morbidity rates and loss ratios EI10% 11,376 615
10% decrease in mortality and HTERNBEBFERUREBLAR

morbidity rates and loss ratios HA10% 13,547 746
10% increase in acquisition and EEMEFEREMI0%

maintenance expenses 12,286 645
10% decrease in acquisition and ERANESEARD10%

maintenance expenses 12,617 715
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABER

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Yu Feng, aged 58, was appointed as the Chairman
and a non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee in November 2015. Mr. Yu is the
co-founder and chairman of Yunfeng Capital, a private
equity firm founded by Mr. Yu together with other
entrepreneurs in 2010.

Mr. Yu is a director of YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade
Passion. YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade Passion are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Yu obtained an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School, the PRC in March 2001
and a master of arts degree in philosophy from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1991.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung David (former name: Zhang Ke), aged 57,
was appointed as executive Director, Vice Chairman and
chief executive officer in October 2020. Mr. Cheung is
a partner of Yunfeng Capital. He was the chief strategy
consultant of China Taiping Insurance Group Limited,
vice chairman of Taiping Life Insurance Limited (“Taiping
Life”), chairman of Taiping Poly Investment Management
Co., Ltd., director of Shanghai Rural Commercial
Bank Co. Ltd., the secretary of the party committee,
director and general manager of Taiping Life, and
general manager of Taiping General Insurance Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Cheung is the vice-president of the Insurance
Association of China, chairman of China Insurance
Marketing Elite Alliance Council (/B {R b & 85 45 55 Bt B3
HEE), global international director of LIMRA-LOMA,
a full member of Geneva Association, part-time visiting
professor of Sichuan University and is a senior financial
manager.

Mr. Cheung obtained a doctoral degree in economics
from Sichuan University in December 2006 and a
bachelor’s degree in philosophy from Sichuan University
in July 1985.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Huang Xin, aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee in November 2015. Mr. Huang is a partner
and a member of the investment committee of Yunfeng
Capital. Mr. Huang served as vice president of Shanghai
Kaituo Capital Limited from 2006 to 2010, where he
was in charge of various investments. Mr. Huang was
vice president of finance at Target Media Holdings
Limited from 2005 to 2006, where Mr. Huang managed
its daily financial operations and led its equity financing
and merger and integration with Focus Media Holding
Limited. Mr. Huang worked at General Electric Company
from 1997 to 2005.

Mr. Huang is currently a director of YTO Express Group
Co., Ltd (stock code: 600233) which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and he was a director of
Sanxiang Impression Co., Ltd (stock code: 000863)
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange until
29 June 2021. Mr. Huang is also a director of Jade
Passion, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a master of business administration
degree from China Europe International Business
School, the PRC in October 2011 and a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Fudan University, the PRC in
July 1997.

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, aged 42, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in November 2015 and was
re-designated as an executive Director and appointed
as interim chief executive officer in February 2020.
She has ceased to be the interim chief executive
officer of the Company in October 2020. Ms. Hai is a
managing director of Yunfeng Capital and specialises
in investments and management related to the financial
services industry, especially for investments in Internet
Finance and strategic management in insurance
company. Prior to joining Yunfeng Capital, Ms. Hai was
an actuarial partner at Deloitte China from 2012 and
was engaged in the provision of consulting services
to overseas and domestic insurance companies.
Ms. Hai has also worked at HSBC Insurance (Asia)
Limited in Hong Kong from 2010 to 2012 and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the United Kingdom
from 2002 to 2010.

Ms. Hai is a qualified fellow member of the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom and a fellow
member of the China Association of Actuaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed, aged 55, was appointed
as a non-executive Director in November 2018.
Mr. Ahmed is also a director of YF Life. Mr. Ahmed
is the chairman, president and chief executive officer
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Ahmed joined MMLIC, the parent holding company
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company, in
October 2015 as Executive Vice President and Chief
Human Resources Officer. Mr. Ahmed brings with him
an impressive history of more than 20 years of global
financial services and leadership experience, ranging
from operating to human resources roles. He joined
MMI from Citigroup, Inc. in London where he was
Managing Director and Head of Human Resources for
Europe, Middle East and Africa as well as the Global
Head of Recruitment for the firm. Previously, he led
global shared services in the operations and technology
division for all of Citigroup employees.

Prior to joining Citigroup in 2010, Mr. Ahmed began
his career at Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, rotating
through various roles including corporate finance,
operations, credit and human resources. He then spent
17 years at Morgan Stanley in New York, Tokyo, Sydney
and Hong Kong, during which time he held a range of
roles including Chief Administrative Officer and Head of
Human Resources, Asia.

Mr. Ahmed is on the Advisory Board of NPX Capital,
Korea since October 2019 and also on the Advisory
Board of Essenlix Corp., US since November 2020.
He has been a non-executive director on the board
of Nippon Wealth Insurance in Japan, a subsidiary
of Nippon Life from 2018-2021. Prior to these
directorships, he also served on the board of Temasek
Management Services, Singapore between 2010-2018,
Human Capital Leadership Institute in Singapore from
2017-2019, and Bank Handlowy, Poland and Citibank
Turkey, both between 2012-2015.

Mr. Ahmed holds a bachelor of science degree
in computer science, a bachelor of arts degree in
international relations, and a master’s degree in
business administration, all from Tulane University. He
is based in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Michael James O’Connor, aged 53, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in March 2020.
Mr. O’Connor is the General Counsel of MMLIC, leading
its legal, compliance, government relations, internal
audit and corporate governance functions. MMLIC is the
sole member of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. O’Connor was appointed as a manager
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company on
August 2020. He is a member of MMLIC’s Executive
Leadership team. Mr. O’Connor initially joined MMLIC’s
Law Division in 2005 and from 2008-2011, he led the
company’s corporate law and government relations
teams. From 2011 to 2017, Mr. O’Connor served in a
number of business leadership positions at MMLIC,
first as Chief of Staff to MMLIC’s CEO Roger Crandall
and later as head of corporate development and
mergers and acquisitions and then as head of MMLIC’s
international insurance operations.

Prior to joining MMLIC, Mr. O’Connor served from 2002-
2005 as U.S. General Counsel of Irving Oil Corporation,
an independent global petroleum refiner and marketer.
From 1995 until 2002, Mr. O’Connor practiced corporate
law at Goodwin Procter LLP in Boston, where he
was a member of the M&A/Corporate Governance
and Securities & Corporate Finance practice groups.
Mr. O’Connor received a B.A. in Legal Studies from the
University of Massachusetts at Amherst. He earned his
J.D. from the Boston University School of Law, where
he was a G. Joseph Tauro Distinguished Scholar and
an Editor of the Boston University Law Review, and his
M.B.A., majoring in Finance, from the Wharton School
of Business at the University of Pennsylvania.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Daqging, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee in February 2016. In March
2019, Mr. Qi was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Qi is currently a professor
of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business where he
previously served as director and associate dean of the
executive master of business administration department.
Mr. Qi’s research interests primarily focus on financial
accounting, financial reporting and their impact on
corporate business strategy. Mr. Qi has published
many articles in accounting and finance journals. Mr. Qi
worked at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the
Feature Syndicate of the Department of Home News for
Overseas, Xinhua News Agency prior to joining Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2002.

Currently Mr. Qi serves as independent director of
Sohu.com Inc. (NASDAQ: SOHU) and Momo Inc.
(NASDAQ: MOMO), all of which are listed on NASDAQ;
and independent non-executive director of Haidilao
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 06862),
Bison Finance Group Limited (stock code: 00888),
SinoMedia Holding Limited (stock code: 00623) and
Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (stock code: 03303),
all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Qi
served as an independent non-executive director of
Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 00196) from 18
January 2008 to 1 January 2018, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 03699) from 29 January 2016 to 20
September 2016, a company delisted from the Stock
Exchange on 20 September 2016. Mr. Qi had also
been an independent director of Focus Media Holding
Limited (NASDAQ: FMCN) and AutoNavi Holdings Ltd.
(NASDAQ: AMAP), all of which were listed on NASDAQ,
an independent director of Bona Film Group Limited
and iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. which were listed
on NASDAQ and ceased to be public companies, and
an independent director of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 000002; and listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 02202).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Qi graduated with a doctoral degree in accounting
from The Eli Broad Graduate School of Management
of Michigan State University in the U.S.A. in 1996. He
also obtained a master’s degree in management from
University of Hawaii in the U.S.A in 1992 and dual
bachelor’s degrees (in biophysics and international
news) from Fudan University in 1985 and 1987
respectively.

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard, aged 73, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in August 2011. Mr. Chu was the vice
president, Asia and chief representative, China of
Teck Resources Limited. Mr. Chu was responsible
for the development of an Asian strategy for the
company, monitoring China’s economic performance
and promoting business development opportunities
in China. Mr. Chu held various positions including
corporate controller for Teck Resources Limited from
1978 to 2007 and was the vice president, Asia and chief
representative, China from 2007 to April 2011.

Mr. Chu serves as an independent non-executive
director of Grandshores Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 01647), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and was a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Mr. Xiao Feng, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee in
March 2019. Mr. Xiao is currently the vice chairman and
executive director of China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd.
(FEE[ERERAT). Mr. Xiao has more than 27
years of experiences in finance, asset management and
securities management and had served key positions in
different institutions including securities management
office of the People’s Bank of China, Shenzhen Branch
from 1992 to 1993, Securities Management Office
of Shenzhen from 1993 to 1998 and Bosera Fund
Management Co., Ltd. from 1998 to 2011. Since 1998,
Mr. Xiao has also been appointed as the director,
chairman or president of various finance company, fund
or asset management company, trust company and
insurance company.

Mr. Xiao obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in Chinese
from Jiangxi Normal University in 1983 and a doctoral
degree in economics from Nankai University in 2003.
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The Board of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. It believes that a high standard of corporate
governance provides an effective framework and solid
foundation for attracting and retaining high calibre
and talented management, promoting high standards
of accountability and transparency and meeting the
expectations of all the Shareholders.

The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group stress the importance of a quality board, sound
internal controls, and transparency and accountability to
all the Shareholders.

Throughout the Year, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the CG Code in force
during the Year, except for the following deviation which
is summarised below:

Code Provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The Company
deviates from this provision because the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors
do not currently have specific terms of appointment.
However, the articles of association of the Company
states that one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if the number is not a multiple of three, then, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at each annual general
meeting, and offer themselves for re-election. As such,
the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
put in place to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practice in this aspect provides sufficient
protection for the interests of Shareholders to a
standard commensurate with that of the CG Code.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as stated in
the Model Code throughout the Year.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s strategies, policies and business plans,
regulating and reviewing risk management and internal
control systems, formulating the Group’s corporate
governance policy, and supervising the management of
the business operations of the Group to ensure that its
business objectives are met. The Board also ensures
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of the Board members. The senior management of the
Group is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group and accountable to the Board.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung David

(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed
Mr. Michael James O’Connor

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

The current Directors and their brief biographical details
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, there are no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members and between the Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Company has been maintaining the number of
independent non-executive Directors at not less than
one-third of the number of the Board members with a
number of at least three and has ensured that at least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required
by the Listing Rules. The participation of independent
non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent
judgement to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
have been duly considered.

For a Director to be considered independent, that
Director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of Directors, the Board follows the requirement set out
in the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 and the Company considers that they
are independent.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are
complementary, but importantly they are distinct and
separate with a clear and well-established division
of responsibilities. The Chairman, Mr. Yu Feng, is
responsible for setting strategic targets, providing
leadership to the Board, monitoring Board effectiveness
and fostering constructive relationship between
Directors. The CEO, Mr. Cheung David, is responsible
for managing the business of the Group, attending to the
formulation and implementation of Group’s policies, and
assuming full accountability for the Group’s operations.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and at least 4 times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to the Directors the information on
the activities and developments in the businesses of the
Group on a timely basis and, when required, additional
Board meetings are held. In addition, the Directors
have full access to the information of the Group and to
independent professional advice whenever should they
consider necessary. During the Year, a total of 4 Board
meetings and 1 general meeting, including the annual
general meeting were held and the attendance of each
Director is set out below:

TEREBRE

EEE#)

EEESTHAHER BFELETIAR- RN
CESHNERZH AEESREEAE
EERESRHEAEASEXBIBMNER
ZER IREFTERETHEIINES=SS
Zolt/h BEEURKERAREFTERZME
ESASEERNRBINEEER - WAF
B ARAEHBTIRESEEZRIAR
RARE BFEIARREAFAE  SES2H
FEEREINNT

Number of meetings attended in the year ended 31 December 2021/

Number of meetings eligible to attend

BE-B--ET-AZT-BHREBRY/AEKSNNERNY

Board NC RC AC  AGM (Note)
R4 M B RRAE
Eze E3H E3H zEE &)
Chairman g
Mr. Yu Feng (non-executive Director) BELE(FHIES) 4/4 1/1 - - 11
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Cheung David [ 44 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Xin EffE 4/4 - - - 11
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou BExL 4/4 - - - 17
Non-executive Directors FHEE
Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed’t 4 44 - - - 0
Mr. Michael James O'Connor Michael James O'Connorft & 414 - - - 0
Independent non-executive Directors BUfHTES
Mr. Qi Daging BAELE 44 111 - 212 111
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard RRFRE 44 17 - 212 17
Mr. Xiao Feng EREE 44 - - 212 111
Note: Kiat -
NC - Nomination Committee NC-IREZES
RC - Remuneration Committee RC-HMNZEE
AC - Audit Committee AC-ERZES®
AGM - annual general meeting held on 18 June 2021 REBEARE - N-ZBE-—FX<A+NBETHR
RAFKE

The Chairman also held a meeting with independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.
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PROFESSIONAL TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the
Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company.

During the Year, all Directors have received the
following trainings:

EEEXEEZI

2RES(BEBIYFUTES)BBERENS
BARAEECHEERL THRAEEMNELK
BB BEMLECESKRI -—EARBE
BoREAEEEBR EHRARDESARIE
ZEEREEEE-

RAFE 2REFCEZTIEI:

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

Directors relevant topics
EHLEER EERRE

= R E it HBE R R 2 359

Chairman EE

Mr. Yu Feng (non-executive Director)  [E$#%4% (FHITEE) v

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Cheung David RATEE v

Mr. Huang Xin BEELE v

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou BRI L+ v/

Non-executive Directors FHITESE

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar AhmedJt & v

Mr. Michael James O’Connor Michael James O’Connorit 4% v

Independent non-executive BIkBTES

Directors

Mr. Qi Daging BRELE v

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard KRFRE v

Mr. Xiao Feng H =% v
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
October 2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that
possesses an appropriate balance and levels of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
essential to support the execution of its corporate and
business strategies and to enhance the quality and
effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity will
strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in driving
business results; enhance good corporate governance
and reputation; and attract and retain talent for the
Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including
professional qualifications and experience, cultural and
educational background, race and ethnicity, gender, age
and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board composition
under major criteria for diversity was summarised as

follows:
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Board considers that the current Board composition
is diverse and meets the criteria of the board diversity
policy. Accordingly, no measurable objectives have
been set for implementing the aforementioned policy.
The Board will review the policy from time to time to
ensure that the Board Diversity Policy is complied with.

A copy of the Board Diversity Policy is published on the
Company’s website for public information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Regarding the corporate governance function, during the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management. The
Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the code of
conducts, corporate governance policies and practices
and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
Besides, the Company has set up three committees
including, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee. Each committee
has its specific terms of reference with reference to the
CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr. Qi
Daging with existing members of Mr. Huang Xin,
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Xiao Feng. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters such as making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management,
and to assist the Group in the administration of the
fair and transparent procedure for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) was adopted by the Remuneration
Committee. During the Year, the Remuneration
Committee did not hold a meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors who are

also the senior management of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

52

EEERESZTILBER (&)

EEERARTESENAMRSEN 7
SEZESNLBENRE - Bt BES
EAGEEEHAMMBRMUEE EFF
BARBNESENSHRL  UABRRFAE
EEMNZTBEK-

EEES BRI URHERARTHLE
HARER -

EXZEE

BEEERBEMS REBEEZE-_FT=-—F
+ZA= ‘|‘ Elﬂ:ir i%éa*ﬁﬁ&&
REENEREBAEZEINIR G ERER
= i%é/ﬁa*&ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁg—rmﬁﬁiéﬁ
EERE TATE CETAHERER
&m%'ﬁ)‘ﬁi EZWBE oM RRAFER

—EZES BREREZEES FMZEE
éﬁﬁﬁig cREEBHEBELEST
Bl ERRENREEE -

yWEEE

KRR FNEESEHREARBELEETE
B REREEEESLE RARFEER
HRELE - %M§ééﬁfﬁ$%l§$&
BREBAEBCHFNETEBOESZRMEER -
i HFHEESEREEERETEE
%F%Mﬁ@%g&ﬂﬁ$%l2§$&n
REBAEFHNBREREEOESZREE
&) &%%mﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ$&$ﬁln
REBAEBCHFNBREEELNFTERZRE
F-FHNZEENEAREHZBEHNALQT
FEIAAL FMEESCHEMTAEX
B1m)u RAFEE  FNZEaEWEET

Eln?riz"

RAFE BRES(IBERFASREEA
B)WHMFRRBEHN Y BRRME13 -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr. Yu Feng
with existing members of Mr. Qi Daging and Mr. Chu
Chung Yue, Howard. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee have been determined with
reference to the CG Code and posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least once every year, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting individuals
nominated for directorship (if necessary), assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the CEO. In considering the nomination
of new directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
the review of the Board Diversity Policy, considering
factors including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of
Board members, and review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (if any), and monitor the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives (if any).

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 1
January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The objective
of the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Policy sets out
formal procedures for selection, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual
vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon
the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall include but not limited to
his or her integrity, accomplishment and experience, in
particular, in the industry of the Group’s businesses,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest and ability to contribute to the diversity of the
Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure of the Board and the Board Diversity Policy,
and considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election based on the nomination policy. In
considering the nomination of appointment and/or
re-appointment of directors, the Nomination Committee
assessed the relevant candidates on criteria such as
integrity, experience, skill, professional qualifications,
independence and ability to commit time etc, and made
recommendation to the Board for approval.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard, with existing members of Mr. Qi Daging and
Mr. Xiao Feng.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and is a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr. Chu
has appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review
the Group’s interim results and annual results and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, internal audit and to review the
Group’s financial and accounting policies.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year.
There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Audit Committee has reviewed, inter alia, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls, financial reporting and
risk management matters of the Group. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed, and had meetings and
discussions with external auditors, on the interim and
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is
as follows:

CEERBE

BEREEE(#H)

RAEFE BEREEGRT2NER -EFT
HELZESHARE - ZF BEIAER
SNERBMATES L  BREESECER (B
FEE)AEERACSTRUNER I
AmMAREcAMERE  URRERERE
BEH BEXEESTECEHLEIIEZRE
M mAEE PR FEFSMBERRE -

REEHE
BiTHFETTRE2ERBIIWNT ¢
31 December 31 December

2021 2020
ng:—fﬁ E}Q\—?—?ﬂz

Nature of services REMHE +=A=+—-H +=ZB=+-—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Audit services BT R A& 10,579 10,579

Non-audit services FEHEET R 1,603 738

Total “at 12,182 11,317
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING THE EEMBERRNVNER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
for preparing financial statements which give a true and
fair view.

The statement of the auditor of the Company on their
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

While the Group pursues growth in business, it also
recognises the importance of effectively managing
various risks associated with its operations. The Group
aims to achieve a good balance between risks and
growth by implementing appropriate risk management
and internal control.

The Board has the responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As the insurance business has become the Group’s
dominant business, to achieve comprehensive risk
management, the Group conducts risk management
and internal control at the main subsidiary (insurance
business) level as well as the Group level, and has
built a comprehensive system for which the Board has
ultimate responsibilities, and the risk management and
internal control systems covering all business lines are
supervised directly by the management and supported
by relevant professional committees with close
cooperation of all business functions.
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ORGANISATION

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
which it is willing to take whilst achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems (including
their effectiveness) to safeguard Shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets.

The board of directors of the main subsidiary of the
Group (insurance business) (the “Board of Subsidiary”)
has established its own audit committee and board
risk committee which are responsible for overall risk
management and internal control and report to the
Board of Subsidiary together with the management
of the main subsidiary of the Group (“Management of
Subsidiary”). Management of Subsidiary establishes
and supervises the risk management committee
which identifies, prevents and controls various risks
and reports to the board risk committee. The internal
audit functions are conducted by the key management
appointed by the Management of Subsidiary and report
to the Audit Committee. Overall, the Board of Subsidiary
reports to the management of the Group on risk
management and internal audit matters.

The internal control system of the Group is mainly
composed of operations, finance, risk management,
information technology, legal, compliance, and audit
functions, which is responsible for the risk management
of non-insurance business.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Currently, the risk management framework of the main
subsidiary of the Group includes three lines of defences
of the overall risk management model organized by key
business functions, risk management, compliance and
legal, and internal audit:

The first line of defence is in charged by a team of
highly experienced and competent senior management
from key business functions. In particular, the risk
management policies and procedures are put in place
to safeguard a prudent underwriting policy.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS (Continued)

The second line of defence is taken by the risk
management, compliance and legal department, as well
as the board risk committee of the Board of Subsidiary
which manage the respective business risks including
insurance risk, currency exchange risk, investment
and interest rate risk, credit risk, operational risk, and
regulatory and compliance risk.

The third line of defence is maintained by the internal
audit department. The audit committee of the Board
of Subsidiary will oversee and monitor through a
risk-based approach to its work, providing assurance to
the Board of Subsidiary.

At Group level, the industry standard “Three Lines of
Defense” for the management of risks was also adopted,
comprising (1) first line of defence: various business
departments manage risk that they respectively own;
(2) second line of defence: the risk management, legal,
compliance and operation function, which defines
and co-ordinates the operational risk strategy and
framework, and is responsible for the statistics and
reporting of various risks; and (3) third line of defence:
internal and external function provides independent
assurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW

The review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
annually. Issues raised for improvement had been
identified and appropriate actions were recommended.
The major risks and benchmarks are set out in Report
of the Directors from pages 64 to 69 of this report.

In 2021, the management of the Group regularly
conducted risk assessment and management, and to
review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The risk committee of the Board of Subsidiary
held 3 meetings and weekly management meetings were
also conducted to discuss routine risks monitoring.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee of the Board
has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and considered that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate. Various
risks were identified, monitored and reported by risk
management function, legal function and compliance
function. Corresponding measures against those risks
were implemented. In 2021, the risk management
department implemented the internal audit function at
the Group level and conducted internal audit mainly on
department’s operational risks including description
of existing workflow and cases sampling inspection,
which focuses on the inspection of problems and
deficiencies that have occurred, in addition to tracking
and recording follow-up improvements. For the main
subsidiary of the Group (insurance business), internal
audit department has conducted internal control
reviews for various business functions throughout the
Year including operational, management information
systems and regulatory compliance reviews. The audit
engagements are performed according to the risk-based
and strategically-aligned audit plan which was approved
by the audit committee of the Board of Subsidiary.

The Risk Management and Internal Control Reports
were presented to the Audit Committee of the Board for
review in March 2022 and the reports show that as of
the time when the annual review is conducted, all risk
assessment tests and risk monitoring reports showed
stable trends and favorable results and no major risk
incidents or events that have caused significant financial
losses to the Group have been identified.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice
of timely, accurate and sufficiently details disclosure
of material information about the Group. With the
guidelines of the Company regarding the disclosure of
inside information, the Group has management controls
in place to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated for
the attention of the Board to determine the need for
disclosure.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company:

- is well aware of its obligations under the SFO,
the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that information which is considered as inside
information should be announced promptly when it
is the subject of a decision

- conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the SFC

- informs all Directors, senior management
and related staff of the latest regulations and
requirements according to the letters issued or
announcements published by the SFC and the
Stock Exchange

- has developed procedures and mechanisms for the
disclosure of inside information

- has included in its compliance manual a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential,
sensitive or inside information, and has
communicated this to all staff

- has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the
Company’s affairs. Only Directors and delegated
management of the Company can act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to
enquiries on designated areas
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports
to the Board, and is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and for facilitating information
flows and communications among Directors as well as
with Shareholders and the management.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, the company secretary of the
Company, has complied with the training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

How Shareholders Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

An EGM may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders or by such Shareholder(s) who made the
requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to section 566
to 568 of the Companies Ordinance and the articles of
association of the Company. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the requisition which must be signed
by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for convening an EGM.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders
representing not less than one-fortieth (2.5%) of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders; or not less
than 50 Shareholders on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per Shareholder, of not less
than HK$2,000, may make requisition in writing for
proposing resolution or business to be dealt with at
the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in section
615 of the Companies Ordinance for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Rooms 1803-1806, 18th Floor, China Evergrande
Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2845 9036/(852) 3102 9022
Email: ir@yff.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY

The Board is committed to provide clear and
full performance information of the Group to the
Shareholders through the publication of interim and
annual reports. In addition to the circulars, notices and
financial reports sent to the Shareholders, additional
information of the Group is also available to the
Shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting for which at least 20 clear business
days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors
(including chairman/members of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee) as well as the representative of external
auditor, should attend and answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. All resolutions at
the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Group’s share registrar.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on
its effort to promote transparency and foster investor
relationships. Comments and suggestions are always
welcomed.

Further, the Company has adopted a dividend policy
on 1 January 2019. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Board,
depending on results of operations, working capital,
financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Board may consider relevant from time to time.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year. The latest version of the
articles of association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements. An analysis of the revenue and the results
of the Group by business segments during the Year are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review and future development of
the Company’s business are set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) section in this
annual report from pages 7 to 23. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indictors is also provided in MD&A in
this annual report from pages 7 to 26. Discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group and key relationships
with employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) of this annual
report. MD&A and ESG Report also form part of this
report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the
risk management practices of the Group are sufficient
to mitigate the risks present in our businesses and
operations as efficiently and effectively as possible. The
Board delegates some of this responsibility to various
operational departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business
and prospects may be affected by the following
identified risks and uncertainties. The Group adopts risk
management policies, measures and monitoring systems
to prevent and control the exposures to the identified
risks.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Regulatory risk

Our businesses operate in highly-regulated markets
and our success and operations can be impacted by
changes to the regulatory environment and the structure
of these markets. The Group pays close attention to
financial regulatory and legislative developments of the
markets it operates and actively monitors and consults
with regulators of the markets on changes which could
impact our business. Many of our key businesses are
also subject to direct regulatory oversight and we
are required to maintain the appropriate regulatory
approvals and licenses to operate, and in some
cases adhere to certain stringent financial and capital
covenants.

Insurance risks

The Group prices its insurance products based on
estimated benefit payments reflecting assumptions with
respect to mortality, morbidity, longevity, persistency,
interest rates and other factors. If actual policy
experience emerges that is significantly and adversely
different from assumptions used in product pricing, the
effect could be material to the profitability of the Group.
For participating whole life products, the insurance
company’s dividends to policyholders primarily reflect
the difference between actual investment, mortality,
expense and persistency experience and the experience
embedded in the whole life premiums and guaranteed
elements. The Group also makes use of reinsurance to
mitigate the impact of its underwriting risk.

Market risks

Market risk comes from the changes in market value of
investment exposures, which are caused by changes in
market prices. The Group monitors daily market price
fluctuations and major news with evaluation of their
potential impact on the company, and monitors the
company's exposure to the risk. Market risks disclosure
and an overview of market risks are provided in weekly
and quarterly reports.

EHOREBERAT
i

Report of the Directors
EEZERE

TERMEREERE &)
EERR

EMNERISEEENTHEEEER  MAK
MR DEEESIEERERTSEBN
SEXE AEERYBEISERETSHN
TRMEERVERR BREANLOHHEE
ERBHBATRELERMEBNE - K
MAZBROEBTZEERBNEERES
ANSEERENEEEEHXRER B
E-LBERATEABRE -LERNEMEE
IREGE o

R B2 [ B

AEERBRUREBETCE - BHFE-FM
RE -BRE -MNERAEMEZORROMG
AAENSR BREEREE HEBRRRE
REEREEMABRKRBEEREAFMNER
R HASENBRNENTEBEEATE -
DTHAKRBERERFIEH  READHRER
BANANEITEZERREBRE XTXR B
AMEBERKRENEZE  URKSFSBR
BENRBEZTEESNER -AEBTAA
BRERAEARREBHTE -

™ 5 & B2
mEARRERTSEREEH I LAIREM

AMmEZ AEESXRERTSNER
REAMEARHELFEEEQRRANEELE
WHRARWROETERN ESBEEFE
RSP WET SRR R REHTSRBER o

65



Report of the Directors
EEERE

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Currency exchange risks

For the main subsidiary of the Group (insurance
business) (the “Main Subsidiary”), the currency
exchange risk is mainly related to certain insurance
policies that are not denominated in United States (U.S.)
dollars. However, most of the insurance policies are
denominated in U.S. dollars. As the Main Subsidiary
of the Group’s investments are primarily made in U.S.
dollars, coupled with the fact that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the U.S. dollar, management of the Main
Subsidiary does not consider that the currency risk is
material.

For investments made in non-U.S. dollars, Main
Subsidiary mitigates currency risk through the use
of cross-currency swaps and forward contracts.
Cross-currency swaps are used to minimize currency
risk for certain non-U.S. dollar assets and liabilities
through a pre-specified exchange of interest and
principal. Forward contracts are used to hedge
movement in exchange rates. In year 2021, HKD
liabilities were closely hedged by currency swaps and
forward contracts and HKD bond.

Investment and interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the potential for interest rates to
change, which can cause fluctuations in the value of
investments and in the amounts due to policyholders.
To the extent that fluctuations in interest rates cause
the duration of assets and liabilities to differ, the Main
Subsidiary controls its exposure to this risk by, among
other things, asset and liability matching techniques that
account for the cash flow characteristics of the assets
and liabilities.

The main subsidiary of the Group tends to match dollar
duration of the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income with its statutory liability
dollar duration under current statutory regime of Hong
Kong, to minimize the volatility in the statutory solvency
ratio. Thus it allows a certain level of mismatch between
asset and liability duration under economic basis. On
the other hand, to prepare for the new risk-based capital
regime, the Main Subsidiary has started lengthening
of the asset duration (amortised cost investment) in
the upcoming years and will continue to maintain its
dollar-duration matched position under the current
statutory regime.

After assessment of the ability of the Group to withstand

adverse change in interest rates, the Group’s investment
and interest rate risks are under control.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Credit risks

Credit risk is the risk that issuers of investments owned
by the Group may default or that other parties may
not be able to pay amounts due to the Group. The
management of the Group’s credit risk mainly focuses
on whether various credit risks are within the scope of
the Group’s institutional regulations and are summarized
in the weekly risk report. The risk management
department prepares separate reports on margins and
trading limits every day. In the context of the quite
volatile stock market this year, it promptly reminded the
business and reduced the margin exposure, avoiding
possible losses from credit risks.

The Main Subsidiary attempts to manage its
investments to limit credit risk by diversifying its
portfolio among various security types and industry
sectors as well as purchasing credit default swaps to
transfer some of the risk if necessary. For year 2021,
there is no active breach in concentration limit nor
industry limit. Considering the resilience of the business
to counterparty default events, the credit risk exposure
is maintained within acceptable levels.

Cyber risks

Cyber risk means any risk of financial loss, disruption or
damage to the reputation of an organization from some
sort of failure of its information technology systems,
mainly including the security of network equipment and
possible external attacks.

For the year of 2021, the top cyber threats under
concerns also includes:

a) Data loss or theft. Confidential or restricted
information has been exposed to an unauthorized
party, internally or externally.

b) Attrition or denial of Service. An attempt to make
online service unavailable by overwhelming them
with traffic from multiple sources; attacks that
compromise, degrade, or destroy systems, or
networks, over time.

c) Supplier or third Party Breach. When a third
party that the Group has a business relationship
experiences a breach where the Group’s
confidential or restricted information has been
compromised.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Cyber risks (Continued)

d) Improper usage. Any unauthorized activity
resulting in violation of the Company’s technology
acceptable use policy by an authorized user.

e) Insider threat. An insider threat can occur
from people who have some level of access to
the Group’s networks, computer system(s) or
data, including: employees, former employees,
contractors, business associates, or anyone who
intentionally misuses that access to negatively
affect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of the Group’s information or information systems.

f) Malware or ransomware. Software that is intended
to damage or disable computers and computer
systems.

g Remote working. Unsecured/open Wi-Fi
connections, unattended computers, and data
breaches are just some of the potential negative
impacts the company may experience. Less
information protection awareness, and it’s a
combination that can leave the company vulnerable
to cyber-attacks.

h) Internet of Things (loT). IoT is a network of
intertwined devices, software, sensors, and other
‘things’ which enable the world to be connected
throughout physical space. This can include
business software, camera, smart home devices,
or mobile phones. All of these things communicate
with each other without the need for human
interaction. This spider web contains vast amount
of sensitive data and poses serious danger to
information security.

The cyber risk was monitored and the risk management
and internal control report in year 2021 showed that the
number of incidents was stable and manageable. There
was no cyber issue to be alerted.

Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk caused by the fact that
actual losses, incurred for inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and operation systems, or from
external events. The sources of operational risk are
relatively wide. System, personnel, process and
other types of problems can lead to operational risks
which may be transformed to other types of risks. It
summarizes the risks a company undertakes when it
attempts to operate within a given field or industry.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Operational risks (Continued)

The Group reports and tracks various operational risks
that have occurred to ensure the problems are corrected
and resolved. For the potential risks discovered
and recorded, the risk management department has
conducted research and discussion with various
relevant departments on preventive measures and
emergency measures and attempts to avoid unexpected
risk events. Emergency drills for each business line and
support department have been conducted. Solutions for
the problems found were formulated.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year, and the statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in the financial statements from pages
132 to 137.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2020: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 42(e) to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 42(c) to the
financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 338.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are
set out below:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
21 July 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”) which has
a life of 10 years from the date of adoption. The Share
Option Scheme was expired on 21 July 2021.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to the participants (being any
employees (whether full-time or part-time), Directors or
consultants of each member of the Group, provided that
the Board may have absolute discretion to determine
whether or not one falls within the above category) and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve from
time to time.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company
can grant options to participants for a consideration of
HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the participant.

No participant shall be granted an option, if the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted
to such participant under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant would exceed 1% of the shares in
issue unless such further grant has been approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting with the participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

Where the Board proposes to grant any option to a
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to him in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing

price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000,
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

such proposed grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case,
the Company shall send a circular to its Shareholders
containing all those terms as required under the Listing
Rules. The participant concerned and all connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution at such general meeting. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options must be taken on a poll.

Subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted hereunder
shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the date
on which the option is offered to a participant, which
must be a trading day; (b) a price being the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

According to the Share Option Scheme, unless
otherwise determined by the Board, there shall be no
minimum holding period for the exercise of the options
but the options are exercisable within the option period
as determined by the Board and in any event such
period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
upon which any particular option is granted.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the total
number of share options that could be granted was
38,449,452, representing approximately 10% of the total
issued shares of the Company on the date of passing
the resolution to refresh the Share Option Scheme limit
at the annual general meeting on 26 March 2012.

As at the date of this report, no further share options
can be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year, no share options had been granted,
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Board had approved the adoption of two share
award schemes on 30 October 2014 (the “2014 Share
Award Scheme”) and 12 December 2016 (the “2016
Share Award Scheme”) respectively.

The purposes of the above share award schemes are
to (i) encourage or facilitate the holding of Shares by
the selected participants; (ii) encourage and retain
such individual to work with the Group; and (iii) provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance goals.

EHOREBERAT
i

Report of the Directors
EEZERE

BRERE (&

AIEERTEREZZEZLAERRNKR

%t}tt/ﬁ BLAMEE - Eltt%/R‘F’ZIK’D\
AR HEBRRZE—OHAEME LHRAR
EMRR2BR - REERRAEL B
SRERFAESAABEATARARE
MEREME o EARBRAE Lt R
Zﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ% THRAREAUARERRARX
17 °

k=111 \\\

X‘N',I]]H

ﬂ

RITERBEBRES SR E 2 BREMRIT
ZERROZABEHESSZHRERE
HBRE  BELR/TIEENNRSE : (a)
REOZREREZBERERNZA (ZBER
REB)ROEBRXAMARKAH 2 WHE
(b)RE X A B AISER Z B R0 E 8 XA
HBERABWUDEZGE  RORDEE -

REBREFTS  RIBESSETETE
BMETEBRENASABRE ZHKEHIR
BREVTCIESSEE2BREARAK ﬂi
HERHEMASEBRE 2 AL MR
ERUWMATEEBBI0F -

REBERESES IRECERELAH S
38,449,452  HERARBAR-ZE—Z—-F=
A= +/\EZHx%L¢k§tE3@E¥ﬁE§HQ
BFE LR 2RZREBZERITRAY
10% ©

2
2

RAREAH BERBBERETE T TR
H oz B -

RAFE - SEBREERE - 176 BUE
R T RATE ©

i R B &

) L P_TIE‘I'H TtH(=%
—EAFERHR JEJJnJriJJ)}Si —~"F¥+=A
T=B(T=F-"ERHR Eb“fiu)?tt/ﬁ
i8R A 4D 8 EM‘EIJ‘)

RORBFEEE: (BN EEREESH
ERFREARQXARN : (NEBRBEBEEA
RAEETHE; RijaRERATEINRE -
BBHEXRRRER -

71



Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)

The maximum number of shares can be issued or
purchased under the 2016 Share Award Scheme and
the 2014 Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares
in issue from time to time (i.e. 322,332,639 Shares,
representing 8.33% of total issued Shares as at the date
of this report).

2014 Share Award Scheme

Since the date of adoption of 2014 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 30 October 2014) (the “2014 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, a total of
9,330,239 Shares have been awarded under the 2014
Share Award Scheme, representing about 2.09% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the 2014 Adoption
Date and about 0.24% of the total issued Shares as at
the date of this report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under
the 2014 Share Award Scheme and as at 31 December
2021, 26,667 Shares were held by the trustee under the
2014 Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme are set
out in Note 43 to the financial statements. Details and
other principal terms of the 2014 Share Award Scheme
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
30 October 2014.

2016 Share Award Scheme

Since the date of adoption of 2016 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 12 December 2016) (the “2016 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, 9,330,239
Shares have been awarded pursuant to the 2014 Share
Award Scheme while 43,040,000 Shares have been
awarded pursuant to the 2016 Share Award Scheme,
representing in aggregate about 2.18% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the 2016 Adoption Date
and about 1.11% of the total issued shares as at the
date of this report.

TMF Trust (HK) Limited (“TMF Trustee”) and Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited (“BoCom
Trustee”) have been appointed as the trustees for the
administration of the 2016 Share Award Scheme. TMF
Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of the
selected participants who are not connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.
BoCom Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of
the selected participants who are connected persons of
the Company. BoCom Trustee and/or TMF Trustee shall
not be entitled to exercise any voting rights in respect
of any Shares held under the trusts.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2016 Share Award Scheme (Continued)

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under the
2016 Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2021,
15,395,000 Shares were held by TMF Trustee under the
2016 Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme are set
out in Note 43 to the financial statements. Details and
other principal terms of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
12 December 2016, 11 January 2017 and 24 January
2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung David

(Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed
Mr. Michael James O’Connor

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

In accordance with article 103(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed,
Mr. Michael James O’Connor and Mr. Xiao Feng shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Year and the Company considers
that they are independent.

EHOREBERAT
i

Report of the Directors
EEZERE

IRt B EH & ()
—E-AERORBEHE(F
RAFE  BIERBE-Z - EROREE

BB BR B —F+ZA=+—
H + 15,395,000 RIPHEZEBETAEE

—E-RNEFROBRBHIZE-DFBEARN
MBEmRMFIS - - R"ERORBETE
ZABREMEIEGRAERALCAAHE
—E-A"E+ZA+TZH -ZE—-tHF—-A
t-HR=-Z-—tF-A-t+tHBAZAE-

EE

RAARAFEARBERNGREAH2ES
BEE

ES23

BEE (FHATESE)
BITES

RALE (FIEZERRITHAR)

BEELE
BELL

FBITES

Adnan Omar Ahmed ¥ 4
Michael James O’Connorit 4

BAFHTES

BEARERE
RREFRE
HE L%

BEAQNRABZTEZMAFE103(A)F
Adnan Omar Ahmed?% 4% * Michael James
O’Connort AR ERLEBARA QB ERER
REFASELHESRE UNHEERKREE
BEE

AARCEEZBIFANTESRELTR
B3I EARAFEZH IMRER 21
R MARBRAREYBEY -

73



Report of the Directors
EEERE

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the information of the Directors
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the publication of
the Company’s 2021 interim report and up to the date
of this report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and
up to the date of this report included: Yu Feng, Huang
Xin, Hai Olivia Ou, Cheung David, Qi Daging, Adnan
Omar Ahmed, Chan Man Ko, Ng Yu Lam Kenneth, Liu
Shu-Yen, Lee Siu Chuen, Wong Gah Jih, Yu Tin Yau
Elvin, Tse Chi hung, Liu Zhiguang, Leung Pui Hong, Ku
Sangi, He Shigiang, Wong Yin Hing, Gao Ariana Jiasui,
Dai Shuyan, Zhou Haigen, Zhang Ting, Jiao Qi, Wang
Jing', Liu Shaojie’, Li Wenjia'!, Brian Eden’, Neil Gray',
Qin Li?, Tay Keng Puang?, Liao Yee Ching?, Lam Shing?
and Ng Shan Yung?.

Notes:

1. Companies in which they serve as directors are incorporated
in places other than Hong Kong

2. No longer directors of the subsidiaries as at the date of this
report

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period
of notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation
or make other payments equivalent to more than one
year’s emolument.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short
positions of each director of the Company and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code under the Listing Rules, or known to the
Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company and the underlying Shares:

Name of Director

EEps

B EENE

Capacity/Nature of interests
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PRl o 8B
Percentage
Long of
position  shareholding
) FRBED L

Mr. Yu Feng (note 1)

R RE (M)

Note:

1.

Corporate interest

Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director, is deemed to be interested in 1,827,641,279
Shares under the SFO through Jade Passion, a company
of which 73.21% of its issued share capital is owned by
Key Imagination Limited (“Key Imagination”). 91% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination is owned by Yunfeng
Financial Holdings Limited (“YFHL”), 70.15% of the issued
share capital of which in turn, is owned by Mr. Yu Feng.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of associated corporations:

BEENFTETHAERARQATHEM
HEEEZE RG>  HERORESFH
BEZRER BKE (&)

REBEEROREEARGZEFR

Number of Shares held in
Associated Corporation

REBZERMEROHE
Percentage
Name of Associated Capacity/Nature of Long of

Corporation Name of Director Interests position shareholding
HEEEEE EsnA B REatE ¥r BRESHK
Yunfeng Financial Mr. Yu Feng Beneficial owner/ 94 70.15%
Holdings Limited Beneficial interest
ERTRERBRAA E#EE ERBEBAER
S
Key Imagination Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 9,100 91%
corporation/
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited [E# %4 (F1aE1) BEEEEEEE
EE R
Mr. Huang Xin (Note 2) Held by controlled 900 9%
corporation/
Corporate interest
BELE (WiE2) HEZEFEEFE
EE RS
Jade Passion Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 7,321 73.21%

corporation/
Corporate interest

Jade Passion Limited EE T (K1) HSEFEEEE
EEER
Notes: /}/QLL;:\_—{ B
1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive 1. FAEBEXFERAQDAFFTESTEERLE

Director, was interested in 9,100 shares, representing 91%
of equity interest in Key Imagination through YFHL, the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu Feng was
also interested in 7,321 shares, representing 73.21% of
equity interest in Jade Passion through Key Imagination.
Both Key Imagination and Jade Passion are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

2. Mr. Huang Xin, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder

of Perfect Merit Limited which owns 900 shares, representing
9% of the equity interest in Key Imagination.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model
Code adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, at no
time during the Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors (including their
respective spouses and children under the age of 18)
to acquire benefits by the means of the acquisition of
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company was notified N-ZZEZ

the SFO.

FRHEERMIEI6HRIFE 2ECMAXR
AEBRITRMPE5%H U L2 o

FTERRRAEMALIRRG 2ER

—F+ZA=1+—-H ARAEA
of the following substantial Shareholders’ and other ETHNEFERREEMATEEZ  BIRE
persons’ interests, being 5% or more of issued Shares
and recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of

> kit

Number of Shares held
FERGEE

Long Percentage of

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests position  shareholding
TERRHS 50/ EatE 3} FRBEDL
Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest
B %% (BiE1) HMERHEEEE LEER
Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
ERSRERBRAR (A1) MEEHEEEE LEER
Key Imagination Limited (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited (/#z#1) MEEHEEEE LEER
Jade Passion Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Jade Passion Limited (#7%1) BERBEAA/BRER
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Held by controlled corporation/ 960,000,000 24.82%
Company (Note 2) Corporate interest
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance HEEFLEEREE LEER
Company (#71#£2)
MassMutual International LLC (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 960,000,000 24.82%

MassMutual International LLC (##522)

ERBEEA EnEs

Notes:

1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director, is deemed to be interested in 1,827,641,279
Shares under the SFO through Jade Passion, a company
of which 73.21% of its issued share capital is owned by
Key Imagination. 91% of the issued share capital of Key
Imagination is owned by YFHL, 70.15% of the issued share
capital of which in turn, is owned by Mr. Yu Feng.

2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company was
interested in 960,000,000 Shares through its 100%
controlled corporation “MassMutual International LLC”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
there were no other persons who had an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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RIEES R BERHIKIR R BEBJade Passion
HH1,827,641,279 B 10 2 # # » Key
Imagination# HJade PassionB TR A& Z
73.21% » E# L RIIZER #EBKey Imagination2
BITIRAZ% MEHLEREEZHSHIE
RERITRAZ70.15% °

2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Companyi® 1@ H100%1% i& A T)MassMutual
International LLC#EE960,000,000% % 13 °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
(i) to which the Company, its holding company or any of
their subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or
his connected entities was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the
Year or at the end of the Year, nor (ii) between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than being a director of
the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following persons, among others, are connected
person of the Company:

- MMI, which holds approximately 24.82% of the
issued Shares, and hence a substantial shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07 (1) of the Listing Rules;

- MMLIC, the sole shareholder of MMI, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules; and

- Barings LLC, a limited liability company organized
in the State of Delaware, the U.S.A. and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of MMLIC, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BAEXZREFEARERXS (&)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the REAFERBEXAKEAH  XEFBETT
Group conducted the following transactions which IR ZEXRIBABFEEERSLEE
constituted continuing connected transactions for the RRBF FmRAFUAENFEERERE -
Company that are not exempt from annual reporting WERZERZR-_Z—tFE+=-A=+—
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, in BE#EEBR([ZZE—tFBER]) RZ=F
respect of which a circular dated 21 December 2017 (the —NFE+—-—BTEEBELASE(([ZZE—IF
“2017 Circular”), an announcement dated 15 November NE]D HRZEBEZEFF+ZHA=1+THEEHL
2019 (the “2019 Announcement”), an announcement FE((ZE=ZEFQE]) URRZE=—
dated 30 December 2020 (the “2020 Announcement”) +T—A+=ZBEREAEF([=ZF=—F2&E] -

and an announcement dated 12 November 2021 (the
“2021 Announcement”) were issued.

1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and 1. FEREFAHDBREIBEREZH
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory &
Agreement
Parties: Barings LLC and YF Life
HESVE Barings LLC & B @R &
Date: 15 December 2017
HE: —E-tHF+=ZA+EHH

Principal terms:

80

Pursuant to the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, YF Life agreed to
engage Barings LLC as its investment adviser to acquire, manage, service
and dispose of investments for YF Life. The assets and the type and amount
of assets to be managed by Barings LLC pursuant to the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement will be determined by the investment committee of YF Life.

The initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement commenced
from the 16 November 2018 and has expired on 15 November 2021. The
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement will be automatically renewed for
successive one-year terms. Either party may terminate the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice to the other party. Following
the initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, and subject
to the satisfactory performance of Barings LLC, the relevant expertise and
the pricing terms, Barings LLC shall continue to be the preferred manager
of YF Life’s fixed income investment portfolio. The Company shall re-assess
the investment needs of YF Life closer to the expiry of the initial term of the
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and if the Company considers the
continued provision of such services by Barings LLC to YF Life to be beneficial
to YF Life, the term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement may be
extended. The Company will re-comply with the applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules as and when the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement
is renewed after the expiry of the initial term. Subsequent to the initial term,
the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was automatically renewed for
an additional year, subject to Automatic Renewal thereafter (“Renewal of
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement”). For details please refer to the 2021
Announcement.

The Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was negotiated by the Company,
YF Life and MMI on an arm’s length basis and entered into on normal
commercial terms.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BEXZRBEBERS (&)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and 1. BEREZAMBIRETBEREENA

Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory & (&)

Agreement (Continued)

FEHRNR: RBEFEREZBAN R BBRREREZZMEBarings LLCAHEHRERE - ABBR

BrUbEE - BE  REMNEERE - 1‘E¢J€§EZE§mn’lﬂTﬁiru%EEBarmgs LLCEEME
ERZEEENERNSE  FHERRRREZESERE

BEREZAMENINS ERAE T \E+—-A+XABE=-T=—F+—
At+HBER BERER JEUT:’J}’J.:;:@EQEJJEETE —FoE—FamEMmE R
ﬁSOfiﬁLiﬂé AL BEREZANZ RBPZEREZAVRISEHRE K
% <FBarings LLCH =BT » $EB§EFEJ§U*§&EE’JI%?)’K‘ HlBarings LLCHE # /&
%Eiﬁﬁl‘ﬁiﬂ&%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂA RAARBRBLBEREZAGRDS FHER
KEHMIHEBRBZIREFTE HTrﬁZF’D\T ?—’.’;Barlngs LLCE B BREIFE
Tﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘ﬂ SHEBRBREN FERELANERFHIER -EHBERE
R E ?‘DLFEHEEE&EEJHT , ZIK’D\ ASEHETLIHRAUEBTHERRE
%ﬂ*iﬁﬂﬁlﬁéaﬁ“h‘ﬁ EHRMRC BEBEMNET —F > HEUBEER ([EF]
FEREZAMRE]D - FREFHLHEARA_E=_—Fn 5o

ZREDAMBDEALRT BERBREMMIZ A FEEER IR IEE B EK

anZ

Pricing terms: YF Life will pay to Barings LLC fees calculated at rates based on asset type.
The fee rates range from 0.25 basis points to 100 basis points. Such fee rates
were determined based on arm’s length negotiations taking into account (i) the
type of assets to be managed by Barings LLC and (ii) preferred partner status
granted by the Company to MMI under the Strategic Cooperation Agreement.

The Company has assessed the business needs of YF Life for the services
under the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement. The Company considered (i)
the historical amounts of fees paid by YF Life to Barings LLC; (ii) the historical
fee rates charged by Barings LLC; and (iii) the fee rates for comparable services
offered by two other competent independent third party service providers
which the Company considered to be fair and representative given that such
independent third party service providers offer comparable investment advisory
services to clients in Hong Kong. The Company considers that the fee rates
offered by Barings LLC are in line with the market rates offered by other
competent independent third party providers for comparable services as a
whole.

EEMRK EERKEEOBarings LLCXNEREERRREXRHENER - EXN F0.25@
HEEZ100EE T - EEAEXRNZEE() Barings LLCEEMNEERR R ()AD TR
BERSEHTEOMMBFTHNELESERHEBUELATEREE -

ZIK’D\TE‘Hﬁ**Wxﬁmu’IﬂTﬂi RETHRBHEBRBZEREZE - AQRFAZRE 0
AIRKE @ Barings LLCEX (S 2B EFH S % ; (i) Barings LLCEBIKZEEL B %
(|||),H\{’rbﬁﬁ§$ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ"'m_7‘ﬂ JE 7 1R 4 ZTéttixHEﬁ%EZ(EEE’\‘QZﬁJ_%—
FREHEREEBAEPIRM Ttbiﬂ“’é%’é’“ﬂﬁﬁi’% ARATARBEBBAFR
BEREKM) - AAFR ABarings LLCIRB v EXRBHAMBRE LS = HE

BRECHBEER—H -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory
Agreement (Continued)

HEXZREEARERS (M)

1. BEREFHAGBERBEITFERERN
1 & (#)

82

Reasons for the
transaction:

REEH:

Annual caps:

FELER:

In connection with underwriting insurance policies, YF Life invests policy
premium, to generate sufficient return for satisfying future insurance claims
and dividend obligations. Barings LLC has assisted YF Life in executing its
long term investment asset allocation strategies since the year 2000. The
continuation of Barings LLC’s asset management services will not only avoid
the operational risks resulting from contracting a new asset manager but will
also avoid any material disruptions in the execution of YF Life’s long term asset
allocation strategies.

RERREMS  BERBRENRE  UELERUENRRREBREEUR 24
BEEMEH - Barings LLCE-ZZZFE—HHBEBRRBUTERPRESR
EBRERRE - Barings LLCEEEERBNSESTETHREHEELETY
ERNEERRE  TURSEBERBRVBEERERKIATHENTMEKRPE -

The maximum aggregate annual amount of fees payable by YF Life to Barings
LLC for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022, 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024 shall not exceed the caps set out below:

BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—-RHA -ZEBZ=ZF+ZA=+—H -ZBZ=F+=
A=Z+-BEREZZE-_NE+-A=+HLLFE BBERKEBarings LLCH &
EFEEBRABETESEBTI LR

Proposed Annual Cap for the Year Ending 31 December

(HKD’000)
BE+t-A=t-BHLEE
NWESFELR(FET)
2021 2022 2023 2024
—EC-F —ECCE “EC=FE g 11 -2
Total fees BB 111,000 122,000 138,000 155,000

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BERZREEBERS (&)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
2. Extension to the Transitional Services 2. HEHIBERKEIGE
Agreement
Parties: MMI and YF Life
HE PR MMIK & B 1R B
Date: 15 November 2019
HE: —E-NE+—A+EHH

Principal terms:

EBEMHRMN

Pricing terms:

EHOREBERAT
i

MMI will provide certain treasury and financial reporting services relating to
investment or portfolio management such as classification, monitoring and
allocation of purchases and sales of securities, compiling and monitoring
pricing and fund performance for alternative investments, preparing risk
sensitivity analysis, impairment analysis, facilitating cash management and
managing specified cash accounts to YF Life.

The term of the services will be beginning on 16 November 2019 and ending on
31 December 2021, provided that the term of any Service may be terminated

earlier by YF Life in accordance with the Extension to the Transitional Services
Agreement.

MM BREREBREMEREIREASEEFENVBEER M BRSE RS -
NMEBZBEENIE EENIER - SEREVNEERESRENGREREZ R
[?ﬁiiMJ# oA~ RE DA B R ﬁ?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ °

BEKE=F-NEFT AT BE=T=_—F+_A=+—-BRRH  HEMF
RBNHRAEHBEBRBREBBERBHERELL -

YF Life will pay to MMI a monthly service fee which shall be the greater of:

(i) 0.00275% of the Average Portfolio Book Value for the relevant month; and
(i) US$116,667.

The service fee shall be payable to MMI monthly in arrears.

Pursuant to the Extension to the Transitional Services Agreement, the service
fee is subject to the following caps:

(@) US$250,000 for the period from 16 November 2019 to 31 December 2019;
(b) US$2,277,000 for the year ending 31 December 2020; and

(c) US$2,619,000 for the year ending 31 December 2021.

Furthermore, YF Life has the right to terminate any portion of the Services by
giving three months prior notice. In the event one or more (but not all) of the
Services are terminated, prior to the expiration of the term, MMI and YF Life

will negotiate in good faith a pro rata reduction of the remaining balance of the
service fee.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND

HEXZREEARERS (M)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

2.

84

Extension to the Transitional Services 2. TEHIBERRIEE (&
Agreement (Continued)

=h -

EERE

The fees for the Services were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and taking into account the current size and the
anticipated growth in the investment portfolio of YF Life managed by MMI and
with reference to the prevailing market rate charged by independent third party
service providers in the ordinary course of business.

The Company has compared the fees payable by YF Life to MassMutual for
the Services with the prevailing market rate offered by two other competent
independent third party service providers which the Company considered to
be fair and representative given that such independent third party service
providers offer comparable services in Hong Kong. The Company considered
that the fees payable by YF Life to MMI are no less favourable than the
prevailing market rate offered by other competent independent third party
service providers. In view of this and taking into account that the Services
are currently provided by MassMutual to YF Life, the Company considers it is
beneficial to and in the interests of YF Life for it to enter into the Extension to
the Transitional Services Agreement.

BERBEOMMIZAHNEERBERSRN

() HBEAOFEHREASKREMEMN0.00275% ; &

(i) 116,667% T °

R B IR — 8 B BMMISZ AT °

RIBLERBEREHZ  REELROT :

(@ BZE—NAFT+-—A+RHEZZ—NAF+ZA=+—HBHH  250,000% 7T ;
b) BE-_FE-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLFE 2,277,000 ; &

© BE-Z--F+-A=+—-HLEEE " 2,619,000%7 °

e BERBREERIZEAREHBEN RKUERBNEATRD - MR—EBHZ
H(BIE2E) RBALL  RABZEDB WA - MMITI BB REEEHRGE - L
IR AR 75 B RYRI 8RB 2 ©

MBEERREENETAFHAAER ARZEMMIEENEBRBREAGNE
ARENARER  Y2EBBBLE =S HEBRRZRITHEMBED -

AREEHEBRFRRERERERBGHRERTRBAMMIEN 2 & FEH bl RE
BEYE=SHEBRRM2BTHEMRL (HRZBLE=TRBUEHEE R
RHUALBRE  ARARXB/LBBRAFTRARKY) - AQXARSEERED
MMIER2EBRFTBEREMBRBLFE=SHEBRHEZBITTE -ENEKER
REZBEMMIBEIRBEERBERBHZABBREEHRRYE  N2ARXBHET
ERBERBHZAFNNRRTEBBRBOFE
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HEXZREEARERS (M)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

2. Extension to the Transitional Services 2. WHUBERIEIGE (E)
Agreement (Continued)

Reasons for the
transaction:

REEH :

Annual caps:

The Services are currently provided by MMI to YF Life under the Transitional
Services Agreement. The Company believes that the continued provision of the
Services by MMI to YF Life is economically efficient as it will cost YF Life more
to establish the necessary systems and recruit the appropriate staff if YF Life
were to carry out the Services itself.

MMIREEEBERREHERBERZHBRETHRE - A2FMEE  WEBBER
BREZETHERYE  BERRBIELEZHNREAREYXENARLBESHE
MET  BUMMEZEDEBRRERERERBAEBEENS -

US$250,000, US$2,277,000 and US$2,619,000 have been set as the annual
caps for the amounts of service fees payable by YF Life to MassMutual
under the Extension to the Transitional Services Agreement for (i) the period
beginning on 16 November 2019 and ending on 31 December 2019, (ii) the
year ending 31 December 2020 and (iii) the year ending 31 December 2021,
respectively. These annual cap amounts have been set out in the Extension to
the Transitional Services Agreement and have been determined with reference
to the current size and the anticipated growth of the investment portfolio of YF
Life managed by MassMutual. As at 31 December 2018, the book value of YF
Life’s asset portfolio managed by MassMutual was US$4,990.5 million.

FELR: BB R AR 15 1B E BR 7% 1% 1 T HA FE mMMIZ T 89 AR # 250,000 T ~ 2,277,000
EtK2,619,000EtEWZERANE =T —NF+—A+ARBE=ZZE-—NAF+=
B=+—HHHB (EME_FE-FTF+_A=+—HLFER(IBE=Z=—F
+TZA=t-—HLEFENFELR SELEFELIRESFEREHBERKHE
g WREMMIBEENEBRBREEASHENRABNERERME BE2 =
Z-N\F+ZA=+—HB MMEENEBRRBEEHSHWIREER49.905FBXE T -
The aggregate amount paid by the Group in REEMBEREZHDERBITITERE
respect of, the Barings Investment Advisory XHBE UNERBRBERKTHEREBZZ
Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings E- S+ A=+ —HBXT2EBEAD 5
Investment Advisory Agreement, and the Extension 594,681,000 T (§—E=-—FELRY
to the Transitional Services Agreement for the 85% ) }8,759,0008 Tt ((E=—FE=-—FE L
year ended 31 December 2021 is approximately PR#943%) ©

HK$94,681,000 (being 85% of the annual cap for
2021) and HK$8,759,000 (being 43% of the annual
cap for 2021) respectively.

EHOREBERAT
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

All the independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the transactions under the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement, and the Extension to
the Transitional Services Agreement (the “2021 CCTs”),
confirmed that such transactions had been entered into
(a@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the respective agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholder as a whole.

The Company has engaged its external auditor to report
on the 2021 CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work
performed, the external auditor of the Company has
confirmed in its letter to the Board that nothing has
come to its attention which caused it to believe that:

(i) the 2021 CCTs have not been approved by the
Board;

(i) the 2021 CCTs were not entered into, in all
materials respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(iii) the aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect
of the 2021 CCTs has exceeded the annual cap of
2021 as disclosed in the 2019 Announcement and
2020 Announcement.

During the Year, the Group did not have any connected
transactions that were subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

A summary of all related parties transactions entered
into by the Group during the Year is contained in Note
46 to the financial statements. All the related parties
transactions described in the said note do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under the Listing Rules,
other than transactions under the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement, and the Extension to
the Transitional Services Agreement as described in
Note 46 which falls under the definition of “continuing
connected transaction” under the Listing Rules and
were disclosed previously by the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR
CUSTOMERS

During the Year, revenue derived from the Group’s 5
largest customers accounted for approximately 1.4%
of the total revenue for the Year, with the single largest
customer contributing approximately 0.4%.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the
opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no value to
disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the issued Shares, had an interest in the major
customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations is made by the
Group (2020: nil).

EHOREBERAT
i

Report of the Directors
EEZERE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practice of the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision as set out in the
articles of association of the Company that provides
for indemnity against liability incurred by directors and
executive officers of the Group is currently in force and
was in force throughout the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, there was sufficient public
float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by KPMG who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for reappointment of KPMG will be proposed for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard with Mr. Qi Daging and Mr. Xiao Feng being
the other members. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are in line with the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

By order of the Board
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

Cheung David
Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Our Business

Listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Main Board,
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited principally engages
in the provision of insurance products through YF Life,
as well as other financial services covering brokerage,
investment research, corporate finance, asset and
wealth management, employee stock ownership plan
administration services and fintech business.

Through YF Life, we are authorized by the Insurance
Authority to conduct long-term insurance business in
Hong Kong. Based in Hong Kong with branch offices in
Macao, we provide a wide range of insurance products,
including life insurance, medical insurance, annuities,
pension, and mandatory provident fund schemes. YF
Life is one of the first (and few) insurance companies to
introduce annuities to the region.

Reporting Reference

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is committed
to advancing our efforts to make positive steps towards
sustainability and deliver enduring values to our
stakeholders.

To communicate our efforts on environmental, social,
and governance (“ESG”) matters, this Environment
Social and Governance report (“ESG Report”) has
been prepared in accordance with “comply or explain”
provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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BRE #HEREREBSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Reference (Continued)
In the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group follows

the four reporting principles as set out in the ESG
Guide:

Reporting principles

EHEA

Materiality Quantitative

ER# Bt

AR E (&)
R 5 ()
ERHAEE HEREAREN AEE

BRET(RE HERERREEIDFRE
AYPUIEE SRR A o

Balance Consistency
74 ~H#

Material environmental
and social issues were
identified and prioritised

Application in this
ESG Report

The Group accounts for
and discloses KPls in
quantitative terms to

This ESG Report aims
to disclose data
objectively, providing
stakeholders with a

The Group applies a
consistent methodology
in compiling the ESG

with inputs from the
Group’s stakeholders

and are disclosed in this

ESG Report.

properly evaluate the
effectiveness of ESG
policies and actions.

balanced overview of
the Group’ s overall
ESG performances.

data reported to

allow for a meaningful
comparison of ESG
performance over time.

EARE HERER
BETHER

EREARENEREE AREUELWHELZEN
WER  BEMELH BEBRENER U

NEARERMEZE:  REFERR HER
YHEARE HERE ERBRANTHNEN
ARREPFURKE - o

Scope and Boundary of the ESG report

This ESG Report covers the ESG policies and
procedures of the Group’s operation in all jurisdictions
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The boundary of
the ESG Report covers our dominant insurance business
under YF Life and other non-insurance financial
services, including brokerage, investment research,
corporate finance, asset and wealth management,
employee stock ownership plan administration services,
and fintech business.

The scope of this ESG Report primarily covers all offices
of the Group in Hong Kong S.A.R. (“Hong Kong”),
Macao S.A.R. (“Macao”), and the Mainland of People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). The reported ESG data
cover offices of the Group below:

- Three Company offices in Hong Kong, Beijing and
Shenzhen;

- Thirteen YF Life offices and one warehouse in
Hong Kong; and

- Five YF Life branch offices in Macao.
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Any updates in the
methods or KPIs used
are disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Contact

The Group welcomes all stakeholders and the public to
provide valuable comments and feedback to ir@yff.com
regarding the content of this ESG Report, the reporting
approach, and our ESG performance.

OUR APPROACH TO ESG
ESG Governance and Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
which it is willing to take whilst achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and maintain sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems (including
reviewing their effectiveness) to safeguard Shareholder’s
investments and the Group’s assets.

The risk management function of the Group consists
of a defined management structure. The board of
directors of the Main Subsidiary of the Group (insurance
business) (the “Board of Subsidiary”) has established
its own audit committee and board risk committee,
which provides practical guidelines and support on risk
management and internal control, and regularly report to
the Board of Subsidiary together with the management
of the main subsidiary (“Management of Subsidiary”) of
the Group. The risk management committee established
by the Management of Subsidiary is responsible for
continuous identification, monitoring, and reporting
various risks to the board risk committee. Management
of Subsidiary authorises the key management to
supervise the internal audit functions and report to the
audit committee for identified control weakness. Overall,
the Board oversees the implementation and supervision
of the risk management and internal audit matters of
the Group, which the Board of Subsidiary reports to the
management of Yunfeng Financial Group.

The internal control system is supervised by the senior
management of the Group, including executive directors
together with heads of business functions composed
of operations, finance, risk management, information
technology, legal, and compliance, which is responsible
for the regular review of the overall risk management
and effectiveness of control of non-insurance business.
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OUR APPROACH TO ESG (Continued)
ESG Governance and Risk Management (Continued)

As we are primarily engaged in the financial and
insurance service sector, we are required to comply
with all related laws and regulations, including the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Insurance Ordinance, etc. The overall governance effort
is led by senior management of the Group, including
executive directors together with heads of business
functions, and implemented primarily through our
operations, finance, risk management, information
technology, legal, and compliance teams.

In managing ESG issues, the Group adopts a top-down
approach. The Board is responsible for reviewing
and managing the Group’s strategic objectives,
activities, and performance in relation to ESG and risk
management. To effectively manage our ESG-related
issues, coordinators from insurance and non-insurance
businesses work closely with different departments to
identify and manage ESG-related issues and collect
quantitative and qualitative information to prepare
the ESG report. The coordinators report directly to
management and the Board to ensure the Group’s
ESG performances are aligned with relevant goals and
targets. To safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets, the Board reviews its risk management
and internal control systems effectiveness on an
ongoing basis to ensure they can meet and deal with
the ever-changing business environment.

For details regarding corporate governance discussions,

please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
section of this Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group endeavours to communicate openly and
transparently with our key stakeholders to better
understand their concerns and expectations through
different channels, such as meetings, performance
reviews, and exhibitions. During the year, we continued

RE - HEREREBE

M HEEEEREEEEMRTE

REEHLRTEFNDEEE QR BRI
ETER BRER AIRIARREEST
BIRE BT BRMFANBEIMMEAY -
RAFE HMEEEREREEEEEBRE
REFEBVER UEAHTEZBEIHNOT

to maintain close communication with different
stakeholder groups and summarised their key concerns

as follow:

Table 1 Summary of stakeholder communication

R1IFBEEBEEREERBE 2L

channels
Communication and feedback
Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
AERBEER BERRERE RE EES:]
Employees Meetings Monthly Talent attraction, development,
Performance reviews Annually and retention
Internal email correspondences Event-driven basis
8T S =% AZTRE - BRRHE
FRE 5%
NHEHER SHEBEE

Shareholders

BR

Regulators

BB

Clients

EHOREBERAT
i

Annual general meetings (“AGM”),
extraordinary general meetings

(“EGM”)

Announcements, annual reports, interim

reports, circulars

RRBEAS(RREFAE])

BRREFAS ([RREFIAE )

NEFHR - PHRERER

Correspondence mails/emails
Phone calls
Site visits

Bt/ EBLK

&5

BiHHRR

Know-your-client (KYC) onboarding

process
Face-to-face meetings with our
business representatives

Phone calls and emails with our client

service representatives

TREFSIERE
HEBARCAHASE

BEFREARZEFREBER

Annually for AGM
Event-driven basis for other
channels

SERRRRAFAS
HitREvEHREHEE

Event-driven basis

SHEREE

Meeting/phone call, emails on
event-driven basis

Electronic trading platform on
event-driven basis

BEIERERLEE,/ TR
58

REHRBEEZETRSTA

Business development

Financial performance

Corporate governance

Major corporate actions and
transactions

EBBR
BHRR
X8R
IRNATHRRS

Compliance with regulations
Business updates

B3R
EHEH

Product and trading system
quality and development
Fair and transparent dealing

practice
Enterprise branding

EmRRZAGERRER
RYERZRHEH
i 30
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BRE dHERER/RE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Communication and feedback

N EEEEREEEEFE @)

Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion

AERBEER BERRERE RE REES:]

Business partners On-site visits Event-driven basis Business development
Meetings Fair business practice and

Conference calls

market reputation
Sound financial strength and

management
BEBH ERRER SHEHEE EBRRE
EE DNYBEEARTEEE
ERER 2B ER
Media Press releases Event-driven basis Business development and
Marketing campaigns strategies
Exhibitions Product and service promotion
e HER SHEHER EBEERER
2R EmRERHERE
RE
Communities On-site visits Event-driven basis Policy and commitment to
Meetings communities
e BERE SHEHER B WR R
3
Materiality assessment BEEMFM

The Group recognises stakeholders’ concerns
and expectations are crucial for our sustainable
development. We conducted interviews and surveys to
identify the economic, environmental, and social issues
with priority to our operations. The results are reviewed
from time to time in response to significant changes
in our operating environment updates on sustainability
reporting standards to ensure the topics identified could
truly reflect the business nature of the Group.

With no major changes to the Group’s businesses, we
continue to consider the overall social aspects to be
more material than environmental aspects, with the
most important matters being anti-corruption, customer
privacy, and the health and safety of our employees.
Moving forward, the Group will continue to engage
with our stakeholders regularly to identify risks and
opportunities related to our business operations and
any changes in the sustainability reporting trends.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE

The Group believes that attracting and retaining the
talent is the key to the sustainability of our business. We
are committed to providing a diverse, inclusive, safe,
and positive working environment to foster individual
growth and the achievement of business goals. The
Group is an equal opportunity employer and abides
by relevant legislative requirements to ensure our
recruitment activities and human resources decisions,
including recruitment, promotion, salary administration,
and training opportunities, are based on bona fide
occupational requirements, but not individual traits like
race, colour, religion, age, gender, or medical history.

Employment
Talent recruitment and retention

The two Employee Handbooks of the Group and YF
Life cover topics such as compensation, employment
terms, remuneration, benefits, training and regulations,
and business conduct. To attract and retain the talents,
we offer competitive remuneration packages and
incentives including share option and share award
schemes, retirement, and medical benefits, insurance
coverage, and leave entitlement commensurate to
market standards. All employees undergo regular
individual performance reviews in line with their career
development plans. In addition, we offered internal
mobility opportunities to increase our employee’s
exposures and work with different teams and clients.

Diversity and equal opportunity

The Group is fully committed to building an inclusive
workplace that promotes equal employment and
values diversity. We adopt an equal employment
opportunity policy and make recruitment and other
employment-related decisions based on bona fide
occupational requirements, and prohibit discrimination,
harassment, bias, or prejudice based on an individual’s
traits, including but not limited to gender, disability,
family status, race, marital status, or pregnancy.
All employees are encouraged to raise any issues
and report any protentional violations to the Human
Resources Department without fear of reprisal through
designated whistle-blowing channels, and violations
may result in disciplinary action or even termination of
employment.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Employment (Continued)
Diversity and equal opportunity (Continued)

To effectively manage the effectiveness of the Board,
the Group has adopted a board diversity policy since
October 2013, which clearly outlines our commitment
to non-discrimination and equal opportunity. Our
diversity policy guides us to achieve Board diversity
by considering of a number of factors, including
professional qualifications and experience, cultural and
educational background, race and ethnicity, gender,
age, and length of service. For further details, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

Labour Practices

All forms of child, illegal, and forced labour are
prohibited in our business. The Group strictly adheres
to Employment of Children Regulations and other
regulations under the Employment Ordinance in Hong
Kong to prohibit the employment of any forms of
child and forced labour in all operations. During the
recruitment process, personal identification documents
and other documents of applicants are checked to
ensure no underage labour is hired. The two Employee
Handbooks clearly outline our employee rights and
benefits to promote our employees’ basic rights and
prohibit any unfair treatment.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding labour standards.

Our Workforce

As at 31 December 2021, we have 814 employees,

among which male and female employees represent
49.26% and 50.74% of the total workforce, respectively.
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R -2 RERBRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE EBERSIER &)
(Continued)
Our Workforce (Continued) KMWET (&)

BiE Rk FRAZ D NFBIROT

A breakdown by geographical region, and age group are
shown below:

By region By age group
®Rith & RERE
20.64% 9.95%

4.42% 30.47%

74.94% 59.58%
= Located in Hong Kong Aged below 30 = Aged 30-50
UREE 30LAF 30-50
Located in Macao = Aged 50 or above
Rz HEPT 504
= |ocated in China
i 7R B A
The overall turnover rate was 23.91% in 2021, and R-ZIBZ—F BTN RKLEZEAE23.91% -

TRIETRMER - HERFRAE DR
RIBEMR

ABRKLLRFH

breakdown of turnover by gender, geographical region,
and age group is provided in the table below.

Breakdown of turnover rate

Employee turnover Turnover rate

in 2021 in 2021 (%)
—E-—F —E-—F
Turnover by category RENEIHWABRKER BERKE ABERKLEE (%)
By gender 7|
Male B 98 26.92%
Female feg i3 84 21.16%
By geographical region 2 ih 38 & i)
Hong Kong A 111 19.12%
Macao BPY - -
PRC B PO 3t 71 47.33%
By age group RERE
Below 30 30LLT 68 28.04%
30-50 30-50 100 22.65%
Above 50 500 & 14 18.18%
ERSRERBRAR
—E-FFR 97
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Regulatory compliance

During the reporting period, the Group adhered to the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and other relevant
regulations on all three operations and was not aware of
any material non-compliance regarding employment of
child or forced labour.

Employee Health and safety

We place high importance on the health and safety
of our employees. The Group strictly complies
with relevant laws and regulations, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and Fire
Safety (Commercial Premises) Ordinance of Hong
Kong. While the nature of our business is subject to low
occupational safety risk, we maintain regular checks
on our facilities to ensure compliance with relevant
legislation. In line with standards and relevant laws and
regulations, we have also put various measures to raise
the safety awareness of our employees and minimise
the risks of hidden hazards at work.

Furthermore, the Group also promotes employee
wellbeing and health by providing medical insurance
coverage, covering services like clinical visits,
hospitalisation benefits, dental benefits, specialist visits,
and health check-ups.

During the reporting year, we adhered to relevant laws
and regulations and were not aware of any incidence of
material non-compliance relating to health and safety.
Occupational Health and Safety Statistics in 2021
Work-related fatality: 0 (2019-2021)

Work-related injuries: 0

Lost days due to work-related injuries: 0
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Development and training

The Group pays attention to the development and
growth of our employees and believes that upholding
our staffs’ professional competency is essential to
maintain our industry leadership.

At YF Life, we provided a wide range of training
programmes categorised into three main types for
new, existing and management staff. For new joiners
to understand the Group’s high standard of corporate
value and familiar with their responsibilities, we
provide basic training on legal compliance, company
product knowledge, service selling techniques,
and mentor training in person. In addition, we
offer leadership-related training to assist staff with
management roles in discharging their management
responsibilities.

In 2021, the overall trainings for the Group were as
follow:

Percentage of trained employee
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To ensure that our agents comply with the regulatory
requirements, we offer regular legal compliance
e-refreshers on different compliance topics, including
anti-money laundering, direct marketing, and data
privacy. Agents must complete the required compliance
trainings, or their agency contract may be terminated.
For insurance sales to mainland clients, we have also
established an Internal Compliance Guide for Sales
to PRC Clients outlining the requirements for agents
working on sales to clients from PRC.
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BRE dHERER/RE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Development and training (Continued)

Besides the abovementioned regular trainings, we also
encourage our employees at YF Life to pursue further
development by joining the Designation Programs
offered by the Life Office Management Association
(LOMA). The Designation Programs offer various
topics, including customer services, reinsurance,
and compliance, allowing staff to learn more about
various facets of the insurance industry and fulfil
their self-improvement commitments. To support our
employees to seek education relevant to their job
responsibilities, we offer examination leaves and fee
reimbursements to eligible staff.

The Group also offers internal and external training
programmes for our employees engaging in
non-insurance business. For example, we conducted
internal seminars including various team-building
sessions, FATCA' and CRS? updates, SFC® seminars
with regulatory updates and financial reporting updates
etc. During the reporting year, we have also provided
training courses in relation to employees’ awareness
of anti-money laundering and counter financing
of terrorism, cybersecurity, and data breach, and
refresher training on compliance matters for our staff.
Furthermore, we provide training sponsorship for all
employees, and they can apply for examination leaves
and full fee reimbursements upon approval.

We regularly review the contents of our training
materials to keep our employees abreast of the latest
developments in the industry to enhance the Group’s
business development and successive planning needs.

! Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

2 Common Reporting Standard
3 Securities and Futures Commission
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OPERATION PRACTICES
Product responsibility

The Group strives to deliver the best quality in providing
insurance products and other financial services to our
valued customers. Both industries are highly regulated
by the governing bodies and regulators such as the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Hong
Kong Insurance Authority, Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority, and Monetary
Authority of Macao. We strictly adopted and complied
with the local laws and regulations such as sales
practice, KYC check, credit control, compliance, risk
disclosure, information protection and data security, and
trademarks and intellectual property. In addition, the
Group regularly provides refresher training on relevant
regulatory requirements for all employees to ensure
they are capable of providing quality services to our
customers.

During the reporting period, there was no incident of
material non-compliance against the relevant laws and
regulations relating to our products and services.

Providing quality insurance product and services

Our insurance products are developed to protect
customers from unexpected events and support their
long-term life plannings. Therefore, our insurance
products must be high quality and meet relevant
regulatory requirements. We collaborate with different
institutions from time to time to conduct market
researches to keep abreast of the latest market
trends and ensure our products meet the needs of our
customers.

As the bridge connecting our products to the customers,
we ensure our agents provide quality services. Our
agents are all properly licensed according to the rules
promulgated by the Hong Kong Insurance Authority and
the Monetary Authority of Macao and have satisfied
all legal and internal standards of YF Life before being
permitted to distribute YF Life insurance products.
Besides strictly following the Hong Kong Insurance
Authority’s Code of Conduct for Licensed Insurance
Agents and the industry best practices, our agents are
also required to conduct business in accordance with
our “Agent Handbook”. We regularly communicate
and educate our agents with respect to our insurance
products to allow proper and accurate representations
of product features to customers.
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OPERATION PRACTICES

Providing quality insurance product and services
(Continued)

We also have an “Internal Compliance Guide for PRC
sales” in place to provide guidance to our staff and
agents the “Dos and Don’ts” when dealing with PRC
clients. The policy covers daily practices, from sales
and mentoring to internal training and qualification
requirements. Agents are required to follow the internal
qualification requirements with no exceptions.

The monitoring of our service quality also extends to
the post-sales periods. We follow industry practices
as issued by the Hong Kong Insurance Authority, such
as making audio-recorded calls to reaffirm client’s
understanding of the insurance policy purchased,
including both investment-linked and life insurance
products. In addition, we make use of third-party
Mystery Shopper Programmes on an irregular basis to
review and assess the selling practice of our agents.

Providing quality financial products and services

For our investment products, we have an investment
committee chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, which oversees all investment decisions and
the new financial products/services launching process.
An internal approval process is used to govern the new
product launching process and mitigate relevant risks
of new products. Launching new products requires
approvals from all relevant middle and back-office
functions to ensure that relevant market practices and
regulations are met.

It is also important that we empower our customers to
make informed decisions in relation to their wealth and
investment opportunities. Our staff receives trainings
on product sales best practices from time to time, and
we ensure that throughout our promotional campaigns
and press releases, our communication materials
convey clear, concise, and transparent messages to
allow customers to make informed decisions. We have
a chatbot to provide automatic replies to frequently
asked questions from customers, and when clients are
not satisfied with the answer they receive, they will be
directed to our customer service representatives.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback
Information security and business continuity

The Group recognises the increasing concerns
over information security and acknowledges our
responsibility in safeguarding our customers’ personal
data. Our group-wide Cybersecurity Policy and separate
Information Policy for YF Life outline the Group’s
commitment to data security and customer privacy
protection.

To ensure we have adequate measures to protect
customers’ data throughout the operations, the Group
strictly complies with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Any violation of data
privacy obligations is subject to disciplinary actions.
Varying access right levels have been set to prevent
unnecessary access to sensitive client information
and prevent information leakage. In addition, the
Group’s Compliance Manual also outlines the
fundamental principles in handling customers’ data.
It is the responsibility of our employees to protect
the confidentiality of information related to customers
at all times, and those who fail to observe customer
confidentiality are subject to internal disciplinary action.

The protection of information from external threats
is of critical importance when protecting customers’
privacy. Our IT security efforts are guided by the Group
Cybersecurity Policy. From time to time, we also invite
external service providers to provide cybersecurity
trainings and update our staff on the latest cybersecurity
risks.

We fully understand the significance of service
stability to our clients. In order to identify the risk of
occurrence of an emergency and to take immediate
action to mitigate the risk, the Group has established
a business continuity plan (“BCP”) with comprehensive
and systematic measures in place for responding to the
emergency. In addition, we back-up our data servers on
a regular basis, and in case of server breakdown, we
can switch to the back-up server within a short period
to ensure minimal disruption to our services.
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BRE dHERER/RE

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback (Continued)
Customer Feedback

To ensure we stay connected with our customers, the
Group provided various channels and platforms (such as
customer service hotline and email) to collect customer
feedback and suggestions timely. Our customer service
representatives will address all complaints from our
customers in a timely and proper manner prescribed by
regulatory requirements. In addition, we also regularly
seek inputs from our front-line business units to
identify room for improvement and formulate corrective
measures where practicable.

Intellectual property protection

We respect intellectual property rights and endeavour
to protect the Group from reputational damages.
The Group follows the legitimate intellectual property
application procedures for its new trademark, labels,
and product designs in all of our operations. In addition,
all of the software used in our daily operations are with
a legal license.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding product responsibility.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieve and maintain the
highest standards of openness and integrity. Business
practice and controls for preventing and combating
corruption are assessed at both Group-level and
business unit-level. For example, all new joiners
are provided with internal guidelines, including the
Corporate Compliance Guide and different compliance
manuals regarding their professional obligations upon
joining the Group.

We strictly abide by all applicable anti-money laundering
(“AML™) laws and regulations to prevent the use of
its products and services for money laundering and
terrorist financing purposes. For our insurance business,
an AML policy is established with reference to the Hong
Kong Insurance Authority’s Guideline on Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing. Under
the policy, a clear and comprehensive mechanism has
been put in plan to report on money laundering related
matters. From time to time, updates are made to the
AML policy to incorporate the latest legal requirements
that our employees should follow. Any report made
with sufficient supporting evidence will be promptly
investigated and appropriate actions will be taken to
handle the situation.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

For our other financial services regulated by the Hong
Kong SFC, regulated entities under the Company are
governed by our AML/Know-your-client (“KYC”) policy
and is based on the following fundamental principles:

° Exercising due diligence when dealing with
customers, natural persons appointed to act on
the customer’s behalf, connected parties of the
customer and beneficial owner of the customer.

° Conducting business in conformity with high ethical
standards and guarding against establishing any
business relations or undertaking any transaction,
that is or maybe connected with or may facilitate
money laundering or terrorism financing.

° Assisting and cooperating with the relevant
law enforcement authorities to prevent money
laundering and terrorism financing.

The Group has established a Whistleblowing Policy and
a Speak-up Policy for YF Life, encouraging individual
employees across levels and divisions/departments to
disclose (at a high level) any misconduct or malpractice
they are aware of. Under these policies, all information
received shall be kept confidential, and the reporter
shall be protected from any harassment or retaliation.

To foster a corruption-free working culture and raise
employees’ awareness of malpractice, the Group
also provides regular trainings to ensure a clear
understanding of the Group’s compliance requirements.
For example, employees of the Company receive annual
refresher training and updates on important compliance
guidelines, and at YF Life the Independent Commission
Against Corruption is invited to provide annual seminars
to strengthen employees’ awareness towards possible
misconduct. To enhance corporate management, we
standardise our expenditures through the Regulations
on Financial Expenditure Management by clearly
documenting the various approval requirements of
different expenditures by their nature and amount.

During the reporting period, there was no reported
non-compliance relating to corruption or money
laundering.
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BRE dHERER/RE

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply chain and counterparties management

At YF Life, we are committed to upholding high
standard of quality and social responsibility in our
dealing with suppliers. The Group appoints various
service providers to support our operations, particularly
on IT services. We assess and evaluate our service
providers’ capability, price, certifications, availability
of local support, and possible synergy from leveraging
other services.

For our other financial services, effective counterparty
and transaction due diligence processes are vital to
our business operation in order to form long-term
partnerships with our valued business partners. We
promote an ownership system where service/business
users within the Company are responsible for selecting
the counterparties and entering into transactions.
The users are responsible for gathering sufficient
information and using an appropriate mechanism
to address different business, financial, legal, and
compliance-related concerns raised by relevant internal
functions. Once all concerns are addressed and
cleared by the relevant internal functions governed
by the internal new business approval process, the
proposed transactions are then recommended to
senior management for final approval and execution.
Significant concerns and issues identified will be
escalated to the senior management and Risk Oversight
Committee for thorough review and discussion to
determine the next course of action to be taken.

As part of the implementation of the counterparty
management policy, our risk management, finance, legal
and compliance teams review the transaction terms
and related documents and determine the need for,
and depth of, additional due diligence of counterparties
including counterparty risk and the corresponding extent
of on-boarding procedures required. We have outlined
the activities and types of counterparties that the
Company does not associate with, such as those where
there is evidence of forced or child labour and certain
transactions involving market misconduct, mis-selling,
or those with negative publicity. For service quality
maintenance purposes, we continue monitoring all
existing counterparties’ market reputation and business
practice.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

Supply chain and counterparties management
(Continued)

In relation to the sourcing of professional service and
financial data providers, the Company has adopted
a comprehensive set of tendering and quotation
procedures to engage the most suitable service
providers with criteria tailored for covering areas such
as product/service quality together with internal control
and risk management requirements to manage various
operational risks including credit, reputational and
concentration risks. Consequently, in addition to pricing
evaluation, all relevant factors will be considered in the
selection of counterparties/service providers.

The Group also cares about the ESG compliance
and performance of our suppliers. We consider the
environmental impacts and social compliance when
considering cooperating with a potential supplier. The
Group expects fair and equal employment practices
from our suppliers and has zero tolerance for unethical
treatment, illegal labour practices, and any form of
discrimination. Regular monitoring and evaluation are
carried out to assess and evaluate the performance of
our suppliers.

Project management and quality control team are
established to maximise automation and segregation
of duties for the internally developed service provision
processes. These teams liaise with different areas
of operations, including the development of different
product initiatives, financial infrastructure, and
applications, by developing a procedural manual and
conducting regular progress meetings. The teams
ensure quality services and products as per the
standard set by senior management.

As at the end of 2021, the Group had a total of 83
suppliers of which 76% are based in Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY
Environment
Use of resources

As a financial institution, the Group mainly conducts
its business in the office environment and has a
less significant environmental footprint than other
sectors. However, we are committed to minimising the
environmental footprint generated from our operations
by incorporating internal energy-saving practices and
initiatives.

The Group energy consumption is mostly from its server
units and data centres. While we do not have control
over the energy use in the rented data centres, we strive
to reduce energy consumption by having long adopted
in-rack cooling for server units at YF Life’s data centre.

Our strong sense of environmental responsibility is
demonstrated through maintaining resource efficiency
in our daily operations. In our offices, we adhere to
principles of reduce, recycle, and reuse, to further
minimise our already low impact on the environment.
We have also adopted various green practices to
promote efficient electricity consumption, water, and
paper. Examples of such green practices are as follow:

- Switching off idle lightings, air conditioning
and electrical appliances to reduce energy
consumption;

- Encouraging double-sided printing and using
recycled paper for printing and copying;

- Encouraging staff to prioritise the use of email and
other electronic ways for communication; and

- Setting up recycling bins in office areas.

We have been progressively digitalizing our business
operations as part of our effort to reduce our
environmental impact. The Group launched FinTech
mobile applications in 2019 to support eFNA, online
applications, electronic policy issues, online payment,
ePolicy Services, and claims, etc. In the coming years,
we will continue to enhance these applications to enrich
the functionalities and improve customer experience
as well as reducing our environmental impact while
improving efficiency in our operations.

Details of electricity, water and paper consumption at
our offices are summarised in the table below.
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RE - HEREREBE

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued) R E (#)

Summary of resources consumptions BEREFEBR

Use ~of resources Unit 2021
FRER B —E-—F
Electricity kWh 3,805,874
S TR B

Water* m? 437
Ik 4 MK

Paper (A3)° Sheets 110,731
4 (A3)® [

Paper (Ad)® Sheets 8,562,908
4 (A4)° [

Emissions HEB

Due to the nature of our business operations, we do not HREMWEKELME  RMATEELEK

produce significant direct environmental emissions such
as air emission, discharges to water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes,
and do not consider such emissions to be material.
However, we are aware of the carbon emissions caused
by our electricity consumption and strive to minimise
electrical consumption in our offices, servers, and data
centres.

During the reporting period, there was no material
non-compliance regarding environmental emissions
reported.

The environmental and natural resources

The Group recognises the importance of integrating
ESG factors into the decision-making of our investment
strategies and financial services. While we have not
formulated specific policies or guidelines on the ESG
considerations of our investment strategies, ESG
considerations are indirectly addressed as described
below.

4 Since the water consumption of some offices was
managed by the buildings’ property management, we can-
not obtain the actual water consumption data. Hence the
reported water consumption excluded these offices, which
include the Company’s Hong Kong office and Beijing
office, ten YF Life Hong Kong offices and four YF Life
Macao offices.

5 Excluding the Company’s Beijing office, where such data
is not tracked.
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BRE dHERER/RE

ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
The environmental and natural resources (Continued)

At YF Life, we have appointed Barings LLC to be
the investment manager of our fixed-income assets
portfolio, who is a signatory of the United Nation’s
Principle of Responsible Investment and has
incorporated ESG factors into its rigorous investment
analysis process. Such integration of ESG factors into
the investment process provides better insights into
long-term risks and opportunities and enhances the
stability of our portfolio.

We seek to work with top-tier fund managers for our
wealth management services, which we believe have
incorporated fundamental ESG considerations into their
investment decisions. We select mutual fund partners
by focusing on new industries and avoid investment in
industries with obvious negative ESG impact. As part
of our due diligence procedures, we also conduct news
search on funds to better understand their performance.
Any negative news identified, including ESG-related
ones, may trigger further investigation or clarification
with the fund managers, depending on the nature of the
issue.

Community Investment

The Group is dedicated to contributing to the
communities we serve. As part of our community effort,
the Group will provide financial and other assistance
to the maximum practicable extent to charitable
organisations that align with our vision.

YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program

The “YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program” was a first
of its kind programme started by YF Life Insurance
International Ltd. in 1999 to provide simulated astronaut
training for children from Hong Kong, Macao, and China.
Since its inception, this program has helped over 150
children make their space dreams come true. With its
all-round, innovative, and unique training methodology,
the program is designed to spark and nurture children’s
interest in space exploration and advanced aerospace
technology and strengthen the parent-child bond
through a series of parent-child collaboration activities.
The program’s slogan, “It is Possible!” encourages
children to take on challenges and go beyond their
comfort zone.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Community Investment (Continued)
YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program (Continued)

With the spread of COVID-19 and in the interests of
all participants’ health and safety, the 2021 YF Life Jr.
Space Camp Program was temporarily suspended. We
will continue to monitor the pandemic situation and
restart the program when feasible.

Participation and sponsorships in social and
environmental events

Amid the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has
continued to offer multiple free protections for our
customers, including Cash Benefit upon diagnosis of
COVID-19, Hospital Income Benefit, Pre-hospitalization
Outpatient Benefit, and Extra Death Benefit upon
diagnosis of COVID-19/Adverse Vaccination Reaction.
To encourage our customers to get early vaccination
against COVID-19, we have launched “The Good Life
Rewards” program. We have also donated Rapid COVID
Test Kits to over ten community organisations and
elderly homes to help prevent the spread of the virus in
the community.

Furthermore, as the pandemic continues to hit the
economy and livelihoods, we made a donation through
The Community Chest Pandemic Rainbow Fund to
support low-income people who are unemployed, have
their pay cut or are forced to take unpaid leave due to
the epidemic.

Besides our flagship YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program,
we also actively participate in charitable events
organised by non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”).
In 2021, we continued to participate in and make
monetary donations to the Virtual Walk for Millions,
Skip Lunch Day, Dress Casual Day, and Love Teeth Day
organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong. In
addition, we have also participated in the World Sight
Day 2021 and Action for Sight 2021 organised by Orbis
in Hong Kong and Macao, respectively.

To raise public awareness on climate change, we
participated in the Green Low Carbon Day 2021
co-organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong
and the Earth Hour 2021 organised by the World Wide
Fund for Nature. Staff members were encouraged
to participate in these community events and make
donations to show their support.

Moreover, to support the promotion of wealth and
financial management by the Investor and Financial
Education Council and the Monetary Authority of Macao,
we covered news and information about Hong Kong
Money Month 2021 and several educational videos on
our website.
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BRE dHERER/RE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX

Aspects
gl

A Environmental
RiE

A1 Emissions

B
(@) Policies and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BHRBERREREBHM - kRN - BER
BEBRRYNELSHN

(@) BXR K
(o) BIFEBITABEAZENEBEERRM

A1A1 The Types of Emissions and respective emission
data.

RN EEREBEHFRER -

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

EE(BE1)REFREZ(CE2) REREHNE
(UMt H) R (B EE (MUASEEEN
iIE u-l- ) °

A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

FFEEEEEEYAE UEAE) R (NER)BE
(MU BEEEN - BERETE) ©

112

nﬁé‘ﬁz

BERARZCRE -HEBRER
# 5|y &5l
Section Remarks
=5 BFE
5
5.1

- Due to our business nature,
no significant amount of air
emission was generated.

HAREMNEBEE  REEE
BERHENBEEREY -

- Greenhouse gas emissions are
not identified as material to
the Group. We will continue
to observe any regulatory
changes to review our
disclosure in the future.

BEREBBCRHGER HYEAE
IFEE B EFEERE
Bt FRFEZR R

EFgo

- Due to our business nature,
no significant amount
of hazardous waste was

generated.
AREMBNEBMLE  REEE

EXRBENEEEREY -
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R -2 RERBRE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE Mg . BEEXZHA(RE - HTERESB
INDEX (Continued) wEESl) RS (&)
Aspects Section Remarks

Col B8 B

A1.4  Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) - Non-hazardous wastes are

A1.6

A2

A2.1

A2.2

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FFEEEERERYEAE (UHEAE) R (MER) ZE (A0
LEESEN 8ERXRAE) °

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken 5.1
to achieve them.

BRI VN BERERERBE
B -

£ D5 L B R ATERELA 2

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HEEEEREZEZEYNG L » R FTET AV
BEEERAZEDELEEMEMMLSE

Use of Resources 5.1

EIRE A

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water, and other raw materials.

EEEMERER(BIEER - KREMEN R KK
ﬂ o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 5.1
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in “000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

REDSSNERER LEEER(NE - | 2%
BEUUTETESFAE) REE(MUESEEEN - &
BREETE) ©

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per 5.1
unit of production volume, per facility).

REKEREZEE(NMUSESEN - 8EREAE) ©

EERTREBARLTF

—=—_

—_—

FER

ERAEBHRBILE

not identified as material to
the Group and no data was
tracked.

BEBRUAEEABNDHEAE

EEEE  RIRRHRABEH
5 e

Emissions and wastes are

not considered to be

the most material issues
comparatively given the
Group’s business nature.
While we put effort to reduce
our negative environmental
impact, currently specific
targets with respect to these
aspects are not defined.

» AT
= ’ }#E&%D@%WIZ:T‘&WL,
EE—EEH’JF‘EJEE o BRI
IRADHRENEETE B
B Al 2 AR SR EEL 45 L 75 [ AH RS
WERBBE-
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RE -#HERERRE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE Mtk . EBXBE(EE HERER
INDEX (Continued) HERESI) Rl (#)

Aspects Section Remarks

giE NI Fi

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 5.1 The Group is reviewing

steps taken to achieve them. its operations and
MATET L WEERFE A MG B ER BERE L B 2 environmental performance
I ER o in considering target
setting on energy and water

A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 5.1 consumption.
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency AEBERTHERLERRE
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. RENEEXTRERAKE

RASREUGE AR LRI B EARRE - LR FTET /9 A K BfE e
MHEEERAEZELBEMRIMNDSER -

A2.5  Total packaging material used for finished products 5.1 Due to our business nature,
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per no significant amount of
unit produced. packaging material was

HRmATASEMBNEE (UME)  R(ER)S used.
AEBNLE - HAREMVEBEE  KEER
BEARHENBEME
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources 5.1
BRERRRER
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact The Group’s businesses
on the environment and natural resources. are mainly conducted in
BEBEERTAHRERRAAERENEAZENRK offices and hence there is
Ko insignificant impact on the
environment and natural

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 5.1 resources.
on the environment and natural resources and the AEENERETERRAETE
action taken to manage them. 7 ALEHRBENERERN

BB EHHRRERAARERNEAZERSEKNME FETK-
Iiﬁﬁgﬁv = H’JTTE]
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R -2 RERBRE

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE Mtz EBRE(RE - HERER
INDEX (Continued) &S| &Sl (#)
Aspects Section Remarks
gilE =4
B Social
e
B1 Employment 3.1

Policies on employment and compliance with local
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer on the following aspects:

o Compensation and dismissal

° Recruitment and promotion

o Working hours and rest periods

° Equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

° Diversity

° Other benefits and welfare

==

FEERNERRRETARUT I HEBRTATEALE
Ry AR R R -

o  HERMEE

e HEREA

o TFREKREH

e FEHERRER

e Zift

e HMSBEREF

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 3.1

group and geographical region.

rHuh - BEREE  FRANEKEEI S NESAH -

B1.2  Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 3.1
geographical region.
B FRERIREEE S NESRKLE -

EHLBEBERAT
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RE -#HERERRE

N

APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE ek EEXEFROBE HERER
INDEX (Continued) WEIESI)ES| (&)

Aspects Section Remarks

Col B8 B

B2 Health and Safety 3.2
REHEZZ

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

FRREZE2THERERREEERRHEMLEENHR
RREBFHBITABEARFENEBEZREH -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred 3.2
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BEZF (BRERFE)BFRITHMARKILER -

B2.2  Lost days due to work injury. 3.2
HAIEEAXIERE -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 3.2
measures adopted, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
mkgi%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁyéﬁm LUK BBEFITREE
% = °

B3 Development and Training 3.3
B R B

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

ﬁﬁ%é&é@ﬁl#ﬁé%ﬂ%&&%%ﬁ%°%m
EAEE o

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender 3.3
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
BUBIREEER (NEREERE - PREERE)ESH
FIEEB DL -

B3.2  The average training hours completed per employee 3.3
by gender and employee category.
BUBIREEERE D BEEETHEIIN TG
o
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B4

B4.1

B4.2

B5

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Aspects
gilE

Labour Standard
2 T 28

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

BRBLETISBHE T REBITATERTZENER
KBFHEBEERBAD -

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

R B ES BB R E T REHET -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

W B RER BRI ERERBERATRMAI T

Supply Chain Management
e EE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
FREEHEENRERTERMBABEEK -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BiES D HEBHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

H B AHERNIES - mEBTHBIEM MAE
BHE - UREBEHITRERGE

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M BRI MHEESERTNRERESRABNE
Bl DRABERITRERGE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M EREMERREESZ ARRER RRBEHEM -
URMEEHITRERFE

EERTREBARLTF

—=—_

—_—

FER

RE - HEREREBE

N

B 8%
HwEE

%I%Fﬁ(f—iﬁ HtErER

51) &Rl (#)

Section Remarks

B8 B

3.1

3.1
3.1

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

118

Aspects
gilE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,

BRMRHERNRENRZERERZS ‘thtgL*E§§Ii%L

=

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject

EERCDEX

labelling, and privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of redress.

BEEURBRTERYRTARE
KEBFHEBEREREAD -

to recalls for safety and health reasons.

Bt e

Y BOR A

FEMABETHERZ > EREER ALY

Number of products and service-related complaints

received and how they are dealt with.

EEENEMNRBVRFHE UAREH G -

Description of practices relating to observing and

i}

protecting intellectual property rights.

AERAEE R RFE AR EEEENIER

Description of quality assurance process and recall

13

procedures

'%-’f%t?m BEREREKRER -

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and

1

monitored.
%%’E%‘ﬁ*ﬂ{ﬂﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁ%
& e

IR BT RS

g . EBBEXZAORE
& ¢

N

HtErER
BB RE

(#)

Section Remarks

B8 B

4.1

- Not applicable to the Group’s
businesses.

HARENEBAEM -

- The Group is currently
assessing the feasibility of
collecting and disclosing
such information.

REBREFEWRERKEZS
ERR AT -

4.1.4

- Not applicable to the Group’s
businesses.

HARENEBAEM -

4.1.3
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX (Continued)

B7

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

B8

B8.1

B8.2

Aspects
gilE

Anti-corruption

k&S

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering.

BRI - B3R - BEFRIERE
?2%5’3&%&1%?*95%%@&%%%

ENHBITABERKR

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RERIA R 251 ‘A‘EEEEE&E&E%%
RHENEE RFDER

PN )
SIEDEEEN

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.

g EE R ERER - URMEBEMTRERSE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

HEESK 8 TRHNREITE -

Community Investment

HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BRUMEBSHERTBRBTAEEMELEZTEMER
HEBTHEZRHEFNZMBR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

EXEREE(NHE BREEHE
Xk~ BAH) -

BIHER 28

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

AEIHRABAER(WESEREFRE) -

EERTREBARLTF

—=—_

—_—

FER

5 #HEgRERRSE

N

B 8%

ERXGM(RE HERER
HwEE ¢

51) &Rl (#)

Section Remarks

B8 B

4.2

4.2

4.2

4.2

5.2

5.2

5.2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 132
to 337, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract provisions

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies at note 2(h).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has significant
insurance contract provisions
comprised of policyholders’
deposits, future policyholders’
benefits and unearned revenue
liability amounted to HK$63,121
million representing 80 per cent of
the Group’s total liabilities.

The computation of future
policyholders’ benefits involves
the use of a reserving model
and significant judgement over
uncertain future outcomes,
primarily the ultimate total
settlement value of future
policyholders’ benefits. The
estimation of these future
policyholders’ benefits includes
the determination of economic
assumptions, including investment
yields and associated discount
rates, and operating assumptions
including mortality, morbidity,
expenses and lapses.

We identified valuation of
insurance contract provisions as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement involved.

EHeMEBERAT
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the valuation of insurance contract
provisions with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

* assessing the Group's
methodology for calculating the
insurance contract provisions
and the movements in
insurance contract provisions
during the year, including
consideration of whether the
movements are in line with the
assumptions adopted by the
Group, our understanding of
developments in the business
and expectation derived from
market experience;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the key assumptions
adopted over the calculation of
insurance contract provisions
based on the relevant
experience studies and future
expectation;

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract provisions
(Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
our audit

o testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls
over the valuation process,
including the accuracy and
completeness of policy data
input into the actuarial models,
assessment and approval of
the methods and assumptions
adopted over the calculation of
insurance contract provisions
as well as appropriate access
and change management
controls over the actuarial
models;

* sample testing the future
policyholders’ benefits
calculation of material product
groups;

o assessing the methodology
and assumptions used by the
management in the Liability
Adequacy Test (“LAT”")
calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assumptions used in the
valuation of insurance contract
provisions are compliant
with the relevant accounting
standard requirements and
appropriately represent the
sensitivities of the liabilities
to alternative scenarios and
inputs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of investments measured at fair value

Independent Auditor’s Report

REXEEHGE

B ZBETHRE

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements - A L )k
and the accounting policies at note 2(j).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, the fair
value of the Group’s investments
carried at fair value totalled
HK$37,205 million, of which
HK$7,878 million was classified as
level 3 investments under the fair
value hierarchy.

The valuation of level 3
investments within the investment
portfolio involves significant
judgement due to the lack of
readily available pricing sources
and the expert judgement involved
in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology and
assumptions to be used.

We identified the valuation of
investments measured at fair value
as a key audit matter because of
the degree of complexity involved
in valuing level 3 investments and
the significant degree of judgement
exercised by management.

EHeMEBERAT
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
fair value of level 3 investments
with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists included the
following:

* assessing the design and
implementation of key controls
over the valuation of level 3
investments;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation methodologies;

o assessing the reasonableness
of a sample of the valuation
assumptions;

* evaluating the valuation
assessment and resulting
conclusions to determine
the appropriateness of the
valuations recorded;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the use of the net asset
value reports provided by
external fund administrators or
the quoted price provided by
external calculation agent when
these are the pricing source
of the level 3 investments at
reporting date; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the level 3 investments are
compliant with the relevant
accounting requirements and
appropriately present the
sensitivities in the valuations
based on alternative outcomes.
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B ZBET RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Recoverability and amortisation of Value of Business

Acquired

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies at note 2(h(v)).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has reported Value of
Business Acquired (“VOBA”) of
HK$9,326 million and amortisation
of the VOBA of HK$163 million
for the year. The recoverability
assessment and amortisation
of the VOBA are based on the
achieved and projected future
premium and profit profile,
which involves management
making assumptions about future
outcomes.

We identified the recoverability
and amortisation of VOBA as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement.

124

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the recoverability and amortisation
of VOBA with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the VOBA amortisation factors
which includes assessing
the appropriateness of
assumptions relating to the
projected future gross premium
and profit profile;

o testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of VOBA;

* assessing management’s
recoverability assessment of
the VOBA in the connection
with the LAT calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the amortisation of VOBA
are compliant with the
relevant accounting standard
requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Recoverability and amortisation of deferred

acquisition costs

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies at note 2(h(iv)).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has reported deferred
acquisition costs of HK$3,506
million and amortisation of
the DAC of HK$609 million for
the year. The recoverability
assessment and amortisation of
the DAC is based on the achieved
and projected future premium
and profit profile, which involves
management making assumptions
about future outcomes.

We identified the recoverability
and amortisation of the DAC as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement involved.

EHeMEBERAT
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the recoverability and amortisation
of the DAC with the involvement
of our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the DAC amortisation factors
which includes assessing
the appropriateness of
assumptions relating to the
projected future deferrable
expenses, future gross
premium and profit profile;

o testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of DAG;

* assessing management’s
recoverability assessment of
the DAC in the connection with
the LAT calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the amortisation of DAC is
compliant with the relevant
accounting standard
requirements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBET RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 22(a) to the consolidated financial

statements and the accounting policies at note 2(d).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, the
Group has recognised goodwill
of HK$1,826 million for the
acquisition of YF Life Insurance
International Limited (“YF Life”).

There is a risk that the carrying
value of goodwill may not be
recoverable in full through the
future cash flows to be generated
from the relevant cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill
has been allocated. To assess the
recoverable amount of goodwill,
management calculated the
appraisal value of YF Life as they
considered this is the appropriate
estimation of the recoverable
amount of YF Life.

We identified the impairment
assessment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree
of management judgement
and estimation involved,
particularly in the determination
of the assumptions used in the
calculation of the appraisal value.
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
impairment assessment of goodwill
with the involvement of our internal
actuarial specialists included the
following:

* assessing management’s
identification of CGU and the
allocation of goodwill with
reference to our understanding
of the Group’s business and the
requirement of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the methodology used to
calculate the appraisal value;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the selected assumptions
with reference to recent
historical experience, expected
future experience and based
on our understanding of
developments in the business;
and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assessment of potential
impairment of goodwill are
compliant with the relevant
accounting standard
requirements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Other matter

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The reconciliation between HKFRSs and US
generally accepted accounting principles included in
note 50 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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BB AR E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence
and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Lok Man.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE W R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E - —#F+ A=+ —HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 ¥ %l 7 )

2021 2020
—B=--fF C—E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
et FET FET
Income KA
Premiums and fee income RERERBA 6 8,478,584 7,723,441
Premiums ceded to reinsurer 2HRE (2,749,249) (2,934,969)
Net premium and fee income RERERABAFERE 5,729,335 4,788,472
Change in unearned revenue REFBRAEEE S
liability (575,893) (525,825)
Net earned premium and fee WHRERERBAFEE
income 5,153,442 4,262,647
Brokerage commission, interest Refde - FEWARMEA
and other service income BR 7 W A 34,809 33,944
Subscription, management and RE - BHEEBERBEREBRA
rebate fee income 7,855 5,432
Consultancy and advisory income  EERI R B WA - —
Net investment income REWANFHE 7a 3,213,404 3,691,641
Overlay adjustment BERE (377,429) (119,419)
Other income H ik z= 7b 2,443,885 2,697,478
Reinsurance commission and profit B 4% k& {8 € 5% Al 78,771 97,301
Total income U A #4228 10,554,737 10,669,024
Benefits, losses and expenses wit - BENEA
Net policyholders benefit FREGL 8 (2,506,126) (8,272,837)
Commission and related expenses {H&MiHEE A 9 (1,813,471) (1,349,851)
Deferral and amortisation of ELEREEESHAR KR
deferred acquisition costs and T B9 (B (B 1Y IR 22 A 1 8
value of business acquired 1,361,780 743,691
Management and other expenses EERHMWEX (1,207,563) (940,046)
Change in future policyholder RRREFE AL 2
benefits 10 (5,441,211) (4,727,089)
Total benefits, losses and expenses #4511 ~ E5i8 & A %E (9,606,591) (9,546,132)
Finance cost LGN 11(c) (149,120) (170,385)
Share of result in associates BENRXEME 740 303
Profit before taxation RR B Al 2 A 11 799,766 952,810
Tax expenses HIEXH 12 (7,101) (3,823)
Profit after taxation R 12 0% F 792,665 948,987
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W aE &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —EFE_—#+_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # %l 7R )

2021 2020
—B--45 —B-%fF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt &t FET FET
Profit attributable to: TH &L EEER :
Equity shareholders of the AARERRR
Company 513,414 618,315
Non-controlling interests JE R 279,251 330,672
792,665 948,987
Earnings per share attributable AAREERREEESR
to equity shareholders of the 27
Company
Basic (HK$) BEAR(GEL) 15(a) 0.133 0.186
Diluted (HK$) % (8 7T) 15(b) 0.133 0.186
The notes on pages 144 to 337 form part of these F14REZRBTAMER AR E M B MRE
financial statements. BB D ©
ERSRERBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E - —#F+ A=+ —HIFEZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 ¥ %l 7 )

2021 2020
—B--45 —B-%fF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
ioka FET FET
Profit for the year after taxation = #*%EB&EYN 792,665 948,987
Other comprehensive income for ZAFEH 2 HEWE
the year
Item that will not be reclassified HEFTGEHN T EABEN
subsequently to profit or loss: BE :
Equity investment at fair value UAREEstEEHEET
through other comprehensive A H fih 2 S B IR 1R
income-net movement in fair B - RAREERERZD
value reserve (non-recycling) FE (T aEE) (360) 732
Items that may be reclassified HETREEHR I EABEMN
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Net movement in the fair FRAEEMEEWEPER
value reserve during the WAREBEEREEEFRE
year recognised in other
comprehensive income 17 (879,766) 1,166,122
Net movement in fair value of BERAETUQAREEFE
financial asset at fair value BH#ZFTABENEHM
through profit or loss under B
overlay adjustment 17 377,429 119,419
Exchange differences arising on RENEXBEEEEZ
translation of results of foreign X EE
operations 7,872 3,085
Unrealised loss related to EEREESRANEER
amortisation of deferred WiBEKWEBHEBEN
acquisition costs and value of REBEEE
business acquired 23, 24 526,138 (986,349)
Unrealised gain related to REHAWASEEHEEED
amortisation of unearned revenue AERINE — REEE
liability — Insurance contract EES
provisions 31 (iii) (234,060) 527,205
Unrealised gain related to REHAWASEEHEEED
amortisation of unearned revenue AERIWE — RESE
liability — Investment contract =N
liabilities 32(iii) (32,932) 67,838
(235,679) 898,052
Total comprehensive income for ZAEEZREWZHEE
the year 556,986 1,847,039
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —EFE_—#+_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # %l 7R )

2021 2020
—B=--fF C—E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
et FET FET
Total comprehensive income EhEmEm A :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the AATERBRR
Company 351,179 1,246,308
Non-controlling interests FEIEPR R 205,807 600,731
556,986 1,847,039
The notes on pages 144 to 337 form part of these F14REZRBTAMER AR E M B MRE
financial statements. HREBD ©
EHRSREEERATE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B RIS R

At 31 December 2021 R=F=—fF1+=-HA=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 ¥ %l )

2021 2020
—B=--fF C—E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k4 FET FET
Assets EE
Property and equipment MERZR 18 711,787 600,451
Statutory deposits SEEFER 19 4,579 5,721
Deferred tax asset EEBIEEE 37(b) 44 150
Investments in associates REERARNRE 20 148,819 30,074
Goodwill and other intangible BERAEMEREE
assets 22 1,910,204 1,909,079
Value of business acquired WEEKER 23 9,325,913 9,012,571
Deferred acquisition costs EEREREBEA 24 3,505,773 1,931,197
Investments BE 25 67,896,304 62,807,704
Advance reinsurance premiums ETBREBREAEE 26 1,277,899 1,289,587
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding RARBERZBREARMDE
claims &5 87,347 55,443
Insurance and reinsurance EWRERBRBEIRM
receivables 27 6,776,768 3,755,753
Other accounts receivable and H {th B IR BR R R FE ST UR A
accrued income 28 79,531 158,878
Other receivables, deposits and HihEWRIE - e RBMS
prepayment FRIE 29 884,618 954,639
Bank balance - trust and IRITEHRE - SERBIRF
segregated accounts 30 779,732 747,841
Fixed bank deposits with original REEHRZA=EANRT
maturity over 3 months EHFER 30 1,060,574 236,733
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEEH 30 4,024,475 4,056,734
98,474,367 87,552,555
Liabilities afE
Insurance contract provisions RBREREES 31 63,121,305 54,487,776
Investment contract liabilities REERAE 32 4,714,346 4,492,855
Outstanding claims RORBERK 33 229,848 184,160
Reinsurance premium payables ERBRERE 34 488,430 321,989
Other accounts payables H fih fE{F BR K 35 844,088 869,533
Other payables and accrued Hih B RRIEMEST B
expenses 36 4,318,281 2,520,712
Tax payable S RIR 37(a) 11,632 13,893
Financial liabilities at fair value LAREBEFTEEEESET
through profit or loss ABENERER 38 376,263 618,561
Lease liabilities HEAR 39 279,608 286,412
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 37(b) 1,176,858 1,220,317
Bank borrowings RITIER 40 1,381,776 1,553,503
Shareholder’s loan REREMK 41 1,641,077 1,641,077
78,583,512 68,210,788
NET ASSETS EEFE 19,890,855 19,341,767
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
136 Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31 December 2021 R=F=—#+=-FHF=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # %l 7R )

2021 2020
—B=--fF C—E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FETT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARMGEE
Share capital [N 42(e) 11,872,683 11,872,683
Reserves & 1,851,174 1,507,893
13,723,857 13,380,576
Non-controlling interests IR ER 6,166,998 5,961,191
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 19,890,855 19,341,767

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 25 March 2022.

Cheung David

A

Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
HITEE FIEFRRITEAEE

The notes on pages 144 to 337 form part of these
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E - —#F+ A=+ —HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 ¥ %l 7 )

2021 2020
—®E=--5 =—B-3F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
iokd FET FET
Profit before taxation BR A1z 799,766 952,810
Adjustments for: PR
Net gain on financial assets and UAREBEFTEEHZET
financial liabilities at fair value ABRNEREERER
through profit and loss BEZWRRFE (152,901) (1,350,924)
Net gain on disposal of financial HEUAARBEFEEHSE
assets at fair value through other Bt AEMZEKEN S
comprehensive income AMEEWRRFE (45,861) (98,620)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HERBHEAATEN S
financial assets measured at BEENEIE (&) F8E
amortised cost 18,130 (8,067)
Dividend and distribution income UARBEFEEESHT
from financial asset at fair value AERHNEREENRE
through profit and loss Mo E WA (416,674) (235,760)
Impairment loss of debt instrument (ZEEHKATTER UAA RE
measured at amortised cost Bt BEHEEBHTT AHEM
and fair value through other 2HKBRNEE T AERE
comprehensive income 8% 31,420 137,992
Impairment reversal and disposal  JE{EE G M HEEE A TR
gain of interests in associates = B9 Y &= (50,521) -
Depreciation and amortisation T B A 85 195,964 157,922
Finance costs ES=§p %N 149,120 170,385
Interest income FE WA (12,404) (19,455)
Equity-settled share-based URREETURMG A2
payment expenses (reversal) B (E(E) (7,898) (12,019)
Effect of shadow accounting on FrasttBESNER
change in value of business B EEREBEEBRA
acquired, deferred acquisition FMARBHBMAESENZE
costs and unearned revenue
liability 259,146 (391,306)
Share of result of associates BENTEENDE (740) (303)
Interest credited to policyholders’ {REFEANEREFTTE
deposits 1,832,747 2,784,500
Effective interest income of RENBRFEWA
investments (66,928) (107,485)
Other movements in investment BREREMPHEMEE
and others (3) 249
2,532,363 1,979,919
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

2-F-

—FtZA=1t—-HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # 5 7 )

2021 2020
—B=--fF C—E-EF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
iokd FET FET
Changes in working capital: EEESHEE
Decrease/(increase) in other Hth e BR 7R 2 (3 0)
accounts receivable 78,198 (34,233)
Decrease/(increase) in other HEWRIE - RERAN
receivables, deposits and MIER A (35 hn)
prepayments 42,769 (259,357)
Increase in bank balances - trust IRITERREIG I — BFER
and segregated accounts BYRP (31,891) (269,376)
(Decrease)/increase in other Hith A EBRR OB2)
accounts payable 3 (18,853) 290,988
Increase in accrued expenses and FESTE AR HMENRE
other payables B 1,628,870 230,207
(Increase)/decrease in value of W EKEE (G M)
business acquired A (313,342) 1,044,875
Increase in deferred acquisition AR E RS B A IE N
costs (1,574,576) (802,217)
Increase/(decrease) in unearned REHW A EEE M,
revenue liability ORLA) 842,884 (69,217)
Decrease in advance reinsurance EANBRRBRRERD
premiums 11,688 165,871
Increase in reinsurer’s share of RARABRZBREAMDE
outstanding claims 2 hn (31,904) (7,094)
Increase in insurance and FE U AR B 0 B4R B BR 7038 0
reinsurance receivable (3,020,227) (2,175,327)
Decrease in policyholders’ deposits REHFH A NEFEFR LD (1,966,334) (2,042,681)
Increase in future policyholders’ RRREFE A TG M
benefits 5,441,211 4,727,089
Increase in outstanding claims ROR BEFRIZ N 45,688 22,247
Increase/(decrease) in reinsurance FETBIRRREZ N~
premium payables OR2>) 166,441 (207,573)
Change in financial assets and UARBEAEEEHSE
financial liabilities at fair value FFTABENEREEMN
through profit or loss E@mEagzgt (73,975) 32,149
Others Hh (813) 3,304
Cash generated from operation REHEREL 2HS 3,758,197 2,629,574
ERSRERBRAR
—EoFER 141



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E - —#F+ A=+ —HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # 5 )

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
Note HK$°000 HK$'OOO
B it FET FET
Operating activities RETER
Cash generated from operations REXBREENRS 3,758,197 2,629,574
Interest received 2 WF E 1,006 769
Interest paid 2 E (21,993) (46,665)
Tax paid: 2B -
Hong Kong profit tax paid EREBHEH (50,802) (88,387)
Overseas tax paid EECRSELY (1,913) (795)
Net cash generated from KRETHELENE ST
operating activities 3,684,495 2,494,496
Investing activities RETED
Payment for purchased of property BE%RRENRK
and equipment (162,658) (156,710)
Payment for purchase of intangible [ E & & E N
asset (1,724) (45)
Proceeds from dividend and UARBESTEEEEEHS
distribution income from financial Kﬁﬁéﬂﬁ%ﬁiﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬂﬁ =
assets at fair value through profit % F k&=
or loss 222,463 54,311
Payment for/purchase of BE THUAREBETE
acquisition of financial assets BEZHHTAHEMEEU
at fair value through other mNEemMEE
comprehensive income (7,749,267) (9,055,787)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEUA R BEFEAHE
assets at fair value through other  Ejst AEM2HEKEN &
comprehensive income BMEEZ S RE 5,384,180 5,395,801
Proceeds from disposal of financial HELUAARBEFTEAHE
assets at fair value through profit Bt ABZMNEMEEZ
or loss FR8 A 3,086,351 2,962,427
Payment for/purchase of BE TRHUAREBESE
acquisition of and contribution BHEZSHTABRERE
made to financial assets at fair ENREBNLE
value through profit or loss (3,053,367) (2,436,149)
(Increase)/decrease in fixed bank REHRZAR=EANEE
deposits placed with original RATFER GEM) D
maturity over 3 months (823,841) 148,684
Purchases of amortised cost BEEEREARE
investments (4,140,158) (3,667,004)
Proceeds from sales, maturities HE - DIEAFIEB BB A
and repayments of amortised REMBIIE
cost investments 1,438,977 1,449,527
Purchases of policy loans BEREEMN (2,625) (2,575)
Proceeds from sales, maturities HE  ZINEZEREER
and repayments of policy loans P8 518 1,837 1,692
Proceeds from disposal of interest  H &= N TR FAERES
in associates 14,447 =
Payment for the acquisition of W E AR ERNAR
interest in an associate (105,463) -
Interest received B WF 2 25,111 24,251
Net cash used in investing RETEHEAZHESFHE
activities (5,865,737)  (5,281,577)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

2-F-

—FtZA=1t—-HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # 5 7 )

2021 2020
—B=--fF C—E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iokd FET FET
Financing activities RMEER
Payment made for interest XHHEERE - FMEMD
component of lease liabilities (2,039) (9,543)
Payment made for capital INHEEEEB - EXKD
component of lease liabilities (146,459) (124,296)
Proceeds from issuance of BITRERSD ZFAERIE
placement shares - 2,043,589
Payment made for redemption of BB B A RV B & IR
preference shares by a subsidiary  {EH (197,108) -
Drawdown of bank borrowings R ENER 1T fE X 1,400,000 843,300
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (1,555,038) (788,232)
Interest paid ENFE (58,083) (57,871)
Policyholders’ account deposits REFEAZRBINRE
for insurance and investment ERZEFH#S
contracts 4,770,747 4,741,469
Policyholders’ account withdrawals REZFH A 2 REFZE
for insurance and investment EEZERFIRE
contracts (2,066,236) (1,981,0083)
Net cash generated from METHMELEZRESFEHE
financing activities 2,145,784 4,667,413
Net (decrease)/increase incash BHERBELZEHIEH
and cash equivalents CR2) BmFE (35,458) 1,880,332
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HWEEREESE
1 January ERERE] 4,056,734 2,169,751
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEERBEFNEE
changes 3,199 6,651
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt-A=+—HBHEZL
31 December RESEEER 4,024,475 4,056,734

The notes on pages 144 to 337 form part of these

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION 1 —REH
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) E#emEBRERAA (A28 IR
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong BEATFMRIL2ERAR  EROES
Kong, the shares of which are listed on The Stock BHERXGMERAR LT - AAFZ
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered EMPEEMREBEF S L HTB385%
office of the Company is Rooms 1803-1806, 18th A 18 K B0 18181803-1806F ©

Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are long term AEEZFEXERAARRIPREERL -
assurance business, the provision of securities REUEFBHFLCL CEREZARKREMN
brokerage, consultancy and advisory services - HEEEBE - BEIERFFEEERE
and investment research, wealth management, ERE -AEEFENBARIZEEX
employee stock ownership plan administration and BREMFERR T REHFE21 0

principal investment. The principal activities and
other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are SEMBRRUBTEYN > BB K
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is NARZIEEY BREEEBHEN i
the functional currency of the Company, and all BEEYUREL 2 TNIE -

values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGHEX
(a) Statement of compliance (a) &EXREBH

These financial statements have been AU ERREREETESTMAE
prepared in accordance with all applicable B EBERAN(EBMKRE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ZRY(HHEBESHEEBNESR
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes (BERMBEREEA) -(FBE:
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial ZAYMAE) BBLAREGHERE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Al B BCA BRI RERE o
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations T BEBREABFE(EBHER
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of SHERAGRES EmHB (£
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and MR DKERE - REERMZ
accounting principles generally accepted in FEESTTBRYUEEHRINOT

Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
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B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEEX#E)
(Continued)
(a) Statement of compliance (Continued) (a) &HREBHAGE)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial information.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries including
the consolidated structured entities (together
referred to as “the Group”) and the Group’s
interests in associates and joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investments
in certain debt and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 4.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions, cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEHE#E)
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) MBARRIEERER (&)
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, no gain or loss is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(t)(ii)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

The Group serves as the manager of funds.
The funds invest mainly in equities, debt
securities and monetary market instruments.
The Group’s percentage ownership in these
structured entities can fluctuate from day to
day according to the Group’s and third-party
participation in them. Where the Group is
deemed to control such funds, with control
determined based on an analysis of the
guidance in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, they are consolidated, with the
interests of parties other than the Group
being classified as liabilities because there
is a contractual obligation for the relevant
group entity as an issuer to repurchase or
redeem units or return of capital in such
funds for cash. These are presented as
“Third-party interests in consolidated funds”
within financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill

(e)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(t)

(if)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

When an investment in a joint venture is held
by, or is held indirectly through, a group
entity that is a venture capital organisation
and similar entities, the Group may elect to
measure investments in those joint ventures at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(t)(ii)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESIBEK#E)
(Continued)
() Associates (Continued) (f) HELQTF (A)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Classification of insurance and investment
contracts

Contracts under which the Group accepts
significant insurance risk from another
party (“the policyholder”) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event (“the insured event”)
adversely affects the policyholder are
classified as insurance contracts. Insurance
risk is risk, other than financial risk,
transferred from the holder of a contract
to the issuer. Financial risk is the risk of
a possible future change in one or more
of a specified interest rate, security price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of prices or rates, a credit rating or credit
index or other variable, provided in the case
of a non-financial variable that the variable
is not specific to a party to the contract.
Insurance contracts may also transfer some
financial risk.

Insurance risk is significant if, and only if,
an insured event could cause the Group to
pay significant additional benefits. Once a
contract is classified as an insurance contract
it remains classified as an insurance contract
until all rights and obligations are extinguished
or expired.

Contracts under which the transfer of
insurance risk to the Group from the
policyholder is not significant are classified as
investment contracts.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Classification of insurance and investment

(h)

contracts (Continued)

Contracts with a discretionary participation
feature (“DPF”)

Certain insurance contracts issued by the
Group contain a DPF. A DPF is a contractual
right held by a policyholder to receive, as a
supplement to guaranteed minimum benefits,
additional benefits that are likely to be a
significant portion of the total contractual
benefits, whose amount or timing is
contractually at the Group’s discretion and is
contractually based on:

(i) the performance of a specified pool of
contracts or a specified type of contract;

(i) realised and/or unrealised investment
returns on a specified pool of assets held
by the Group; and

(iii) the profit or loss of the Group.

Insurance contracts

(i) Recognition and measurement
Revenue

Premiums in respect of insurance
contracts are recognised as revenue
when due. Fee income is recognised as
revenue when services are rendered.
Premiums and fee income exclude any
taxes or duties.

Reinsurance commission refers to the
amount paid by reinsurers to reimburse
the expenses associated with issuing a
policy. It is recognised as revenue when
due. Profit commission is the reward paid
by reinsurers for favourable experience.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Claims

Claims include maturities, annuities,
surrenders and death claims. Maturity
and annuity claims are recognised as
an expense when due for payment.
Surrender claims are recognised when
notified. Death claims are recognised
when notified.

Outstanding claims includes estimates
of both claims that have been reported
but not paid and those that have
been incurred but not reported, also
includes estimates of all future expenses
associated with processing and
settlement of these claims.

The estimation process is primarily
based on the assumption that experience
is an appropriate indication of future
events, and involves a variety of actuarial
techniques that analyse experience,
trends and other relevant factors. The
amount recorded represents the best
estimate based upon currently known
facts and actuarial guidelines.

Policyholders’ deposits

Policyholders’ deposits include deposit
components of insurance contracts,
liabilities for universal and variable life
products, annuities and investment
related policies and contracts. These
liabilities are established by contract
deposits, increased by interest credited
and decreased by interest debited,
contract fees and contract withdrawals.
Interest credited represents the interest
accrued to universal life contracts
account balance based on the credited
rate declared by the Group from time to
time. For linked contracts, it represents
the earnings credited to the account
balance based on the performance of
selected investment choices. Interest
credited is recognised as expense when
paid in payable.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEFTEE@#E
(Continued)
(h) Insurance contracts (Continued) (hy REERE(E)
(i) Recognition and measurement (i) ERHATE
(Continued)

Future policyholders’ benefits

Liability for future policyholders’ benefits
of insurance contracts for traditional
life contracts and additional coverages
offered under policy riders are calculated
using the net level premium method and
assumptions as to investment yields,
mortality, withdrawals and dividends. The
assumptions are based on best estimate
projections of past experience from the
commencement of each contract and
include provisions for possible adverse
deviations. The assumptions are made
at the time the contract is issued and do
not change, unless a loss needs to be
recognised.

The reserves for participating whole
life products are calculated using the
net level premium method based upon
prescribed estimates as to investment
yield, mortality, withdrawals. Dividends
are also included. Reserves for accident
and disability contracts are based upon
mortality, morbidity and withdrawal
assumptions which are based on the
Group’s own experience and certain
reinsurance tables. Unpaid disability
claim liabilities are established based on
disability payments earned from the last
payment date to the valuation date.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

156

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Unearned revenue liability (“URL”)

Amounts assessed against policyholders’
account balances that represent
compensation to the Group for services
to be provided in future periods are
not recognised in the period assessed.
These amounts are reported as unearned
revenue liability and recognised in the
income statements over the period
benefited, using the same assumptions
and factors utilised to amortise deferred
acquisition costs.

Shadow accounting is applied so that
the URL balance is also adjusted by an
amount that represents the change in
amortisation of URL that would have
been required as a charge or credit to
profit and loss had unrealised amounts
recorded in fair value reserve been
realised. These adjustments are charged
or credited to the fair value reserve.

The accounting treatment for URL arising
from insurance contracts is also applied
to investment contracts.

Embedded derivatives in insurance
contracts

Features contained within insurance
contracts that would be considered
derivatives if they were stand alone
instruments which have not been
separated and measured at fair value if
those embedded derivatives are closely
related to the host insurance contract.

The Group has taken advantage of
the exemption available in HKFRS 4
Insurance Contract not to separate
and measure at fair value policyholder
options to surrender insurance contracts
for a fixed amount even if the exercise
price differs from the carrying amount of
the host insurance liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(iii)

(iv)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Reinsurance

The Group cedes reinsurance in the
normal course of business for the
purpose of limiting its net loss potential
through the diversification of its risks.
Assets, liabilities, income and expense
arising from ceded reinsurance contracts
are presented separately from the related
assets, liabilities, income and expense
from the related insurance contracts
because the reinsurance arrangements
do not relieve the Group from its direct
obligations to policyholders.

Only rights under contracts that give
rise to a significant transfer of insurance
risk are accounted for as reinsurance
assets. Rights under contracts that do
not transfer significant insurance risk are
accounted for as financial instruments.

Reinsurance premiums for ceded
reinsurance are recognised as an
expense on a basis that is consistent
with the recognition basis for the
premiums on the related insurance
contracts.

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

The Group’s DAC is an intangible asset
comprised of incremental direct costs
of contract acquisition and the portion
of employee total compensation and
payroll-related fringe benefits directly
related to time spent performing the
following acquisition activities: (a)
underwriting; (b) policy issuance and
processing; (c) medical and inspection;
(d) sales force contract selling; and (e)
other direct costs that would not have
been incurred if the contract had not
been acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

(iv) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC?”)

(Continued)

Incremental direct costs of acquisition
include commissions or volume-related
sales bonuses and medical and
inspection fees for a successful contract
acquisition. The portion of employee
compensation and related benefits
include only those costs directly related
to time spent performing those activities
for actual acquired contracts. Related
benefits include medical insurance,
group life insurance and retirement plans.

The Group also defers the commissions
and volume-related expense allowances
for successful contract acquisitions in
transactions with our career agents. All
other acquisition-related costs such as
soliciting potential customers, market
research, training, administration,
unsuccessful acquisition or renewal
efforts and product development
is charged to expense as incurred.
Administration costs, rent, depreciation,
occupancy, equipment, and all other
general overhead costs are also charged
to expense as incurred.

DAC for universal life and investment-
type products are amortised with
interest spread over the expected
life of the contract in proportion to
the estimated gross profits from
investment, mortality, expense margins
and surrender charges. Amortisation
interest rates are based upon rates in
effect at the inception of the contracts.
The amortisation rate is periodically
updated to reflect current period
experience or changes in assumptions
that affect future profitability, such
as investment returns, asset growth
rates, lapse rates, expenses, surrender
charges and mortality experience.
These changes result in adjustments
to the DAC balances in the period that
the Group changes its assumptions,
as well as changes in prospective DAC
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(iv)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)
(Continued)

DAC for traditional life and non-medical
health products are amortised in
proportion to anticipated premiums.
Assumptions as to anticipated premiums
are made at the date of issuance and are
applied during the lives of the contracts
consistently. Deviations from estimated
experience are included in profit or loss
when they occur.

Shadow accounting is applied so that
the DAC balance is also adjusted by an
amount that represents the change in
amortisation of DAC that would have
been required as a charge or credit to
profit or loss had unrealised amounts
recorded in fair value reserve been
realised. These adjustments are charged
or credited to the fair value reserve.

The accounting treatment for DAC arising
from insurance contracts is also applied
to investment contracts.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

v)

Value of business acquired (“VOBA”)

VOBA, in respect of a portfolio of
long-term insurance and investment
contracts, is an intangible asset that
reflects the estimated fair value of
in-force contracts in a life insurance
company acquisition and represents
the portion of the purchase price that
is allocated to the value of the right
to receive future cash flows from the
business in-force at the acquisition
date of a subsidiary. VOBA is based
on actuarially determined projections,
by each block of business, of future
policy and contract charges, premiums,
mortality and morbidity, separate
account performance, surrenders,
operating expenses, investment returns
and other factors. If this results from the
acquisition of an investment in a joint
venture or an associate, the VOBA is
held within the carrying amount of that
investment. The VOBA is amortised over
the estimated life of the contracts in the
acquired portfolio on a systematic basis.
The rate of amortisation reflects the
profile of the value of in-force business
acquired. The carrying value of VOBA is
reviewed annually for impairment and any
reduction is charged to the consolidated
income statement.

Shadow accounting is applied so that
the VOBA balance is also adjusted by
an amount that represents the change in
amortisation of VOBA that would have
been required as a charge or credit to
profit or loss had unrealised amounts
recorded in fair value reserve been
realised. These adjustments are charged
or credited to the fair value reserve.

The accounting treatment for VOBA
arising from insurance contracts is also
applied to investment contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Insurance contracts (Continued)
(vi) Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period,
liability adequacy tests are performed
to determine if the insurance contract
provisions, less deferred acquisition
costs and VOBA, are adequate. Current
best estimates of all future contractual
cash flows and related expenses, such
as claims handling expenses, and
investment income from assets backing
the insurance contract provisions are
used in performing these tests. If a
shortfall is identified the related deferred
acquisition costs and VOBA are written
down and, if necessary, an additional
provision is established. The deficiency
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year.

Investment contracts

Investment contracts are recognised as
financial liabilities in the statement of
financial position when the Group becomes
a party to their contractual provisions.
Contributions received from policyholders are
not recognised in the consolidated income
statement but are accounted for as deposits
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

All investment contracts issued by the
Group are designated by the Group on initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
This designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement inconsistency that
would otherwise arise if these financial
liabilities were not measured at fair value
since the assets held to back the investment
contract liabilities are also measured at fair
value.

Changes in the fair value of investment
contracts are included in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they
arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Investments

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which
transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how
the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 5. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note

2(x)(ii).

= fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) - recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEFTEE@#E
(Continued)
(i) Investments (Continued) () REGAE
Investments other than equity investments BREREIHRE (1B

(Continued)

- FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an election to designate the investment
at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election
is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income
in accordance with the policy set out in note

2(x)(ii).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)]

(k)

U]

Investments (Continued)
Overlay approach

The Group has applied the overlay approach
under HKFRS 4, to reclassify between profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
the difference between amounts recognised
in profit or loss under HKFRS 9 and those
would have been reported under HKAS 39, for
designated financial assets including hybrid
debt instruments (recognised on bifurcated
basis), unit trust and partnership investments
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A
financial asset is eligible for designation if 1) it
is not held for an activity that is unconnected
with contracts in the scope of HKFRS 4; and
2) it is measured at fair value through profit or
loss under HKFRS 9 but would have not been
under HKAS 39. The overlay impact is shown
in the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, except where the derivatives qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting or hedges of net
investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or
loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVPL
when the financial liability is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer
as part of a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies, (ii)
held for trading or (iii) those designated as at
FVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

A financial liability, other than a financial
liability held for trading or contingent
consideration may be paid by an acquirer
as part of a business combination, may be
designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition

if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a
Group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally

on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKFRS 9 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be

designated as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities. Fair value is determined in

the manner described in note 5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESIBEK#E)
(Continued)
(o) Property and equipment (o) MEKZE

Property and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Shorter of lease term
and useful lives

— Leasehold
improvements

— Office equipment
and furniture

5 years

— Computers
equipment

3 to 20 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in consolidated
income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

Leased assets (Continued)

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Leased assets (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost of leased assets, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Shorter of lease term
and useful lives

— Properties leased
for own use

Shorter of lease term
and 5 years

— Office equipment
and furniture

Shorter of lease term
and 3 to 5 years

— Computer
equipment

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘Property and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Insurance and reinsurance receivables and
other receivables

Insurance and reinsurance receivables and
other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment losses, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment losses.

Reinsurance premium and other payables

Reinsurance premium and other payables
are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Intangible assets

The intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(t)
(ii)). Amortisation begins when the asset is
available for use, ie when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Computers software 3-5 years
Intangible assets, such as trade name, are not
amortised while their useful lives are assessed
to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support
the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of
change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite
lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on
the following items:

- financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
debt securities, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other
receivables and loans to joint
venture);

- debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling); and

- loan commitments issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments,
expected cash shortfalls are measured
as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be
due to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the loan and
(ii) the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive if the loan is drawn down.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- loan commitments: current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to
the cash flows.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

()

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

174

(Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 XEEFEHEXR@#R)
(Continued)
(t) Credit losses and impairment of assets t) FEHEBEXREEREGE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit loss from financial instruments () =BT APEHBEX(E

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk &R X1 L H ()

(Continued)

- existing or forecast changes in the - HEBRABITHHEAEASE
technological, market, economic BEBNEIELEEKX
or legal environment that have a FREZENEM ~ Ti5
significant adverse effect on the KBS EERENE A
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation HFBHIRL -
to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of HREMAFE  AFTETES

initial recognition for the purpose of FEREAMOKRERN A H

assessing ECLs is considered to be ?E%ZIK%}?JZ%W:—HQ%EK

the date that the Group becomes a oyl ) E H o ZF 4B
party to the irrevocable commitment. VEEABRAFREER

In assessing whether there has been a MEAKRELAR XEE

significant increase in credit risk since SZREEBRAEFMIRNE

initial recognition of a loan commitment, NBEELNRBRIEL -

the Group considers changes in the risk

of default occurring on the loan to which

the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the RESBMIANTEE  HiE

financial instruments, the assessment AREERE KNIE LA WM.

of a significant increase in credit risk is ERENEERHEEEY
performed on either an individual basis or 17 o UG EEHTIMEE

a collective basis. When the assessment TRIARBHLEGEARR

is performed on a collective basis, the BEETSE 0 %8 HA AR

financial instruments are grouped based NG AR FTR -

on shared credit risk characteristics,

such as past due status and credit risk

ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting REBREBEHFTEFRHRE

date to reflect changes in the financial AEX UR®E ?ﬂﬂﬁﬁi’]

instrument’s credit risk since initial #ERmIAGARBHNEL -
recognition. Any change in the ECL FHERABXAXEENTME
amount is recognised as an impairment Ebﬁﬁ?éﬁ?&qﬂﬁﬁi%%ﬂﬁﬂﬂ
gain or loss in profit or loss. The mREB AEEERAME
Group recognises an impairment gain TRMIAMN EXEH&EE_SZJEE?E’
or loss for all financial instruments WEBEAEERFHHER
with a corresponding adjustment HEETHEHERAEZ  BUAQ
to their carrying amount through a AEEFEEEEZHTAH
loss allowance account, except for tE2EKkEs (TEE) WEK
investments in debt securities that are EERERN HEBEXER

measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which THME2EKEPER A

the loss allowance is recognised in other RAREBEFE (TEER) H

comprehensive income and accumulated 25t o

in the fair value reserve (recycling).

EHEBEBMARAT
—z-——FEH 175



Notes to the Financial Statements

BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

2

176

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(x)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEHE#E)
(Continued)
(t) Credit losses and impairment of assets t) EHBAXREEREZE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit loss from financial instruments () Z2BITAMEHEX (&)
(Continued)
Write-off policy 25 B &
The gross carrying amount of a financial TREE BUREERDE
asset, lease receivable or contract asset AEENREABEREE

is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current
assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there
is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEEM@E
(Continued)
(t) Credit losses and impairment of assets t) EHBAXREEREZE)
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current (i) EME7EEERHEE (&)
assets (Continued)
Recognition of impairment losses 7 52 6t 1B 5 18
An impairment loss is recognised in EEERBEREES

profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

t)

(u)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(t)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

The fair value of share awards and share
options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
awards and options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
awards and share options that are expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share awards and options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the share-based payment reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the
shares issued) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case they are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTTHE(#E)

(Continued)

(w) FRG® (&)

(w) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

() The accounting policies for the
recognition of revenue from insurance
contracts are disclosed in note 2(h).

(i) Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established. Dividend income from
listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESIBEK#E)
(Continued)
(x) Revenue recognition (Continued) (x) WARER(E)

(iv) Brokerage and commission income is
recognised on trade date basis.

(vy Service fee income, including
advisory fee income, handling fee
income, custodial service fee income,
subscription fee income, placing and
underwriting commission and financial
management are recognised when the
underlying services had been provided.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

Exchange differences relating to investments
at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments are included
in gains or losses from trading securities or
financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to fair value
through other comprehensive income debt
instruments are included in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v)

()

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Items of statement of financial
position, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date
of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the consolidated
income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course
of the regulated business activities. The
Group has classified the “bank balances -
trust and segregated accounts” within the
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised the
corresponding account payables to respective
clients and other institutions on the grounds
that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’ monies.

The Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations. The
cash held on behalf of customers is restricted
and governed by the Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

(ab) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ab) Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(2) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(5) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(i);

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); or

(8) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group as follows:

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

None of the developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

(@) Actuarial assumptions on future
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC

The process used to determine the
assumptions is intended to result in estimates
of the most likely outcome with reasonable
provisions for possible adverse deviations.

The assumptions that are considered include
the expected number and timing of deaths,
surrenders, discount rates, renewal expenses
and inflation over the period of exposure.

(i) Mortality

Prudent mortality tables and industry
mortality tables with margins are used.
They are compared with the Group’s
internal mortality experience on a regular
basis to ensure their appropriateness.
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B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(@) Actuarial assumptions on future
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC
(Continued)

(i) Mortality (Continued)

Basically, the Group’s valuation of
non-annually renewable premium
traditional products is based on the
following mortality tables (except for
some minor blocks of policies):

-  70%/75% of Hong Kong Assured
Lives Mortality Table 1993 with old
age adjustment;

- A1967-70 Assured Lives Mortality
Table (Ultimate).

Both of the above tables are subject to a four
year age setback adjustment for females.

(i) Morbidity

Morbidity is based on the reinsurer’s
risk premiums which are relevant to
its market experience. It is compared
with the Group’s internal morbidity
experience on a regular basis to ensure
its appropriateness.

(iii) Withdrawal
Withdrawal rates are determined with

reference to pricing assumptions and
actual experience.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Actuarial assumptions on future

policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Discount rates

Discount rates are determined from a
prudent assessment of the yields on
existing financial assets and the yields
obtained on sums to be invested in the
future.

The Group’s valuation of non-annually
renewable premium traditional products
is based on the discount rate of 1.5% to
5%.

Renewal expenses and inflation

The level of renewal expenses is based
on pricing assumptions. It is compared
with the Group’s internal expense study
result on a regular basis to ensure its
appropriateness.

The inflation rate assumption is 2%. It is
compared with the Hong Kong Consumer
Price Indices on a regular basis to ensure
its appropriateness.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4 EBEEEHABRGHTIEREERE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEERR (&)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(a) Actuarial assumptions on future (a) BREREFTEALS  WEEK
policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC EERBERERSRANBHER

(Continued) = (4

(vi) Change in assumptions and sensitivity
to changes in variables

(vi) 1RER 2L 7] ] 82 R % B HY
HBE

Sensitivity tests are conducted using FERATRMNET R BHEE
varying mortality, morbidity and discount A BE IR 2R AR R E 1T U
rate assumptions to measure the HoOUFFERBEALSRY

impact of deviations from anticipated
experience.

The Group performs this sensitivity
analysis for non-annually renewable
premium traditional products to estimate
the sensitivity of reserve to a particular
movement in an assumption with all
other assumptions remaining unchanged.
Since the changes in the assumptions
of withdrawal, renewal expenses and
inflation only have minimal impact on the
future policyholders’ benefits, they are
not considered in this sensitivity analysis.
The following table demonstrates the
resulting impacts:

Bs 488
& o

AEEHFEFEEBRNES
EmETHRAMED N UK
BRAMBHEMBRRRETET
A RBHBEZHNHR

E e EFLR ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁL
IREBRNEBEHRRERE

BFEANRASEREMEZE
ALESEHBREI TP T
FTERE - TRESTHULE
ERNFE

2021 2020

Change in Change in

profit after profit after

Change in tax and tax and

Variables variables equity equity

=B CZEZEF

EE-L5ES HEBERF ﬁfﬁmﬂ*ﬂ

AEEER ok -2 BmEEL IR &1L

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Discount rate BEI8 & +1% 794,584 655,561
-1% (928,910) (762,739)

Mortality/morbidity BT R/ BRHE +10% (95,370) (81,606)

-10% 98,254 84,127
Universal life, variable universal koM T EEEASE A
life, deferred annuities and annually HEAER - ELEFELH
renewable premium traditional products FERNESKER MER
whose future policyholders’ benefits RREFEAMNGHEET
are independent of mortality, morbidity, RBFERBFEERR

discount rates, withdrawal, renewal BREFAMNBEREZRS -

expenses and inflation are excluded from
this analysis.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Actuarial assumptions on future

policyholders’ benefits, VOBA and DAC
(Continued)

(vi)

Change in assumptions and sensitivity
to changes in variables (Continued)

The fair values of investments are
sensitive to interest rate changes. As
the Group’s main products are universal
life products, interest rates may have
an impact on the products’ guaranteed
minimum payouts and on interest
credited to account holders. As interest
rates decrease, investment spreads
may contract as interest rates approach
minimum guarantees, potentially resulting
in an increased liability of the Group.
As long as the total interest credited is
higher than the guaranteed minimum
amount, the Group has discretion on the
crediting rate. The Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk associated with these
types of products is therefore minimal.
The Group may be exposed to interest
rate risks in connection with traditional
insurance products, which is considered
inconsequential in view of the Group’s
product portfolio. As such, no sensitivity
analysis for the underlying interest rate
risk is performed.

(vii) Amortisation of VOBA and DAC

The Group selects appropriate
methodology and assumptions for
the amortisation of VOBA and DAC in
accordance with the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The assumptions
used in the estimation of the future
gross premiums and profit are aligned
to those assumptions used for the future
policyholders benefit in majority of
instances.
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BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

194

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

Determination of consolidation scope and
business combination

All facts and circumstances must be taken
into consideration in the assessment of
whether the Group, as an investor, controls
the investee. The principle of control sets
out the following three elements of control:
(a) power over the investee; (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from involvement
with the investee; and (c) the ability to use
power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns.

An investor’s initial assessment of control or
its status as a principal or an agent would not
change simply because of a change in market
conditions (e.g. a change in the investee’s
returns driven by market conditions), unless
the change in market conditions changes one
or more of the three elements of control listed
above or changes the overall relationship
between a principal and an agent.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group assesses the variable returns arising
from other equities and uses plenty of
judgements, in combination with historical
exposure to variable returns, to determine the
consolidation scope.

Note 21 provides detail information about the
acquisition of subsidiaries, note 22 provides
detail information about key assumptions
used in the goodwill impairment assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Classification and fair value of derivative
and financial instruments

Under HKFRS 9, classification of financial
instruments depends on the contractual
cashflow characteristics (the Solely Payment
of Principal and Interest (“SPPI”) criteria) and
driven by the business model of the entity.
A financial asset that does not meet the
SPPI criterion is always measured at FVPL,
unless it is an equity instrument for which
an entity applies the election to measure at
FVOCI. Management judgement is involved
throughout the assessment.

The Group selects appropriate valuation
techniques for financial instruments which
are classified as level 2 and 3 investments
in accordance with the Group’s significant
accounting policies. Note 5 provides detailed
information about the key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of
material financial instruments.

Expected credit loss estimation

The Group selects appropriate methodology
and assumptions in accordance with the
Group’s significant accounting policies. Note
2 provides detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination of the
expected credit loss of financial instruments
classified under amortised cost and for debt
instruments carried at FVOCI.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5

196

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

The Group operates in a business environment
which is subject to various risks and
uncertainties. Such risks and uncertainties can
be classified into two categories, insurance
risks and financial risks.

(i) Insurance risks

The Group manages insurance risks
through prudent pricing guidelines,
reinsurance and underwriting
management and monitoring internal and
external emerging trends and issues.

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks
diversity to ensure a balanced portfolio
and is based on a large portfolio of
similar risks over a number of years
and, as such, it is believed that this
reduces the variability of the outcome.
This strategy is cascaded down to
individual underwriters through detailed
underwriting authorities that set out
the limits that any one underwriter can
write in order to ensure appropriate
risk selection within the portfolio.
Adherence to the underwriting authorities
is monitored through a scheduled
underwriting audit. In addition, the
Group has an Underwriting Committee
to establish policies and procedures to
supervise and assess the insurance risks
and to periodically review and monitor
the overall underwriting management
process. The Group also has a Claims
Settlement Committee to establish
policies and procedures to supervise the
claims settlement policy. The committee
monitors the adequacy of the Group’s
reserves for the settlement of claims,
reviews significant claims or major
events, and investigates any fraudulent
claims.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Risk management objectives and policies

for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(i)

Insurance risks (Continued)

The Group reinsures a portion of the
risks it underwrites in order to control
its exposure to losses to avoid the risk
of concentration and to protect capital
resources. Such transfers of risks do not
relieve the Group of its primary liability
and, as such, failure of reinsurers to
honour their obligations could result
in losses. The Group reduces this risk
by evaluating the financial condition of
reinsurers and monitoring for possible
concentrations of credit risk. The
Group has a Reinsurance Committee
to establish policies and procedures
to properly and regularly supervise
and review proposed and existing
reinsurance activities covering ceded
risks to reinsurers. The committee also
periodically reviews and monitors the
financial stability of reinsurers.

Concentration of insurance risks

The table below illustrates the
concentration of risks based on seven
bands of contracts grouped by benefits
assured for each life assured.
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5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENSHBREREE (&)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEEREREFRANSEE

for mitigating insurance and financial risk B BB (1)

(Continued)

(i) Insurance risks (Continued) () REERE (F)
Concgntration of insurance risks 12 55 JB 5 9 £ o [ (4B
(Continued)

Sum insured Sum insured
before reinsurance after reinsurance
BRBANRRE BRRANRRE
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
HK$°000 FA7 FE7 FE7
2021 —E--&
0-500 0-500 26,485,211 13 36,194,691 42
501-750 501-750 20,124,095 10 28,014,314 32
751-1,000 751-1,000 26,664,679 14 22,142,229 26
1,001-1,500 1,001-1,500 31,555,889 16 72,614 0
1,501-2,000 1,501-2,000 23,803,188 12 189,458 0
2,001-2,500 2,001-2,500 14,460,805 7 56,876 0
>2,500 >2,500 55,533,391 28 213,201 0
Total met 198,627,258 100 86,883,383 100
Sum insured Sum insured
before reinsurance after reinsurance
BERBAINRRE BRBANRRE
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
HK$'000 FET FET &
2020 -k 3:2
0-500 0-500 26,728,165 14 36,164,952 43
501-750 501-750 20,097,085 11 28,239,835 34
751-1,000 751-1,000 26,385,052 14 19,121,205 23
1,001-1,500 1,001-1,500 30,709,608 16 30,826 0
1,501-2,000 1,501-2,000 21,817,767 12 77,928 0
2,001-2,500 2,001-2,500 12,552,838 7 4,669 0
>2,500 >2,500 49,340,411 26 7,723 0
Total me 187,630,926 100 83,647,138 100
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5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBENSBREKER#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) RMEEEEZEREERRANSEHE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (i) =5 E

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate
and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price
risk arising from its equity investments
in other entities. These risks are limited
by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(1) Credit risk

The Group has exposure to credit
risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Key areas
where the Group is exposed to
credit risk are:

- amounts due from issuers of
debt securities;

- bank balances;

- insurance and reinsurance
receivables;

- commercial and residential
mortgage loans;

- other unsecured receivables;
and

- derivative financial instruments.

The Group manages its financial
assets to limit credit risk by
diversifying its portfolio among
various security types and industry
sectors. The Group has an Investment
Committee to supervise and control
investments and related financial
matters. Investment policies and
guidelines have to be approved
by the committee. In addition, the
committee periodically reviews
investment strategies and investment
performance.
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5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(iij) Financial risks (Continued)
(1) Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, none of
the Group’s debt securities (2020:
0.01%) represented investments in
asset-backed and mortgage-backed
securities in the United States
of America and PRC which are
exposed to sub-prime credit risks.
The Group does not originate any
residential mortgages but invests
in residential mortgage loan pools
which may contain mortgages of
subprime credit quality. Residential
mortgage loan pools are pools of
homogeneous residential mortgage
loans substantially backed by
Federal Housing Administration and
Veterans Administration guarantees.
As of 31 December 2021, the Group
had no direct subprime exposure
through the origination of residential
mortgage loans or purchases of
unsecuritised mortgage whole-loan
pools. The Group has implemented
a stringent review process for
determining the fair value of
securities containing these risk
characteristics. At 31 December
2021, 95.2% (2020: 91.8%) of the
debt securities have Standard and
Poor’s ratings of BBB- or above
or equivalent ratings from other
reputable rating agencies. At 31
December 2021, 81.1% (2020:
82.2%) of the mortgage loan
have internal rating equivalent to
Standard and Poor’s ratings of BBB
or above or equivalent ratings from
other reputable rating agencies.
For the year ended 31 December
2021, impairment losses were
recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Further details of
the impairment losses are set out in
note 7(a).
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5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBEISHEARERE#Z)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E
(1) Credit risk (Continued) (1) 1E/HEE (&)

In respect of bank balances, all
of them are due from authorised
institutions in Hong Kong, Macao,
the People’s Republic of China,
the United Kingdom and the United
States of America. Management
periodically reviews the credit
ratings of these authorised
institutions.

With respect to the recoveries
due from reinsurers, the Group is
exposed to the credit risk that the
amounts due under a reinsurance
contract may not be paid. For the
management of the underlying risks,
please refer to note 5(a)(i).

In respect of loans to policyholders,
direct premium receivables
and other loans to agents and
staff, management monitors the
repayment status on an ongoing
basis. Other unsecured receivables
mainly comprise accrued interest
income on debt securities, where
the credit risks are limited by the
diversification of its investment
portfolio as mentioned above.

The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in
the statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from insurance
and reinsurance receivables, other
account receivables and other
receivables are set out in notes 27,
28 and 29.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBENSBREKER#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERERERENESHERE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk PR BR (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) = EE R (&)
(2) Liquidity risk 2) mEELERE
The Group has to meet daily calls rEBEEREAERS
on its cash resources, notably from ERBR - FTEFEE
claims arising from its life insurance BENRE - B AR
contracts. There is therefore a THEFTEUEEDH
risk that cash will not be available EENEAK KEE]
to settle liabilities when due. The BEREAJARIARE
Group manages this risk by setting HRAMERENRER
a minimum level of liquidity cash BESKFEREREILR
that will be available to cover claims B o
maturities and surrenders.
(i) Financial liabilities () ZTHEE
The following tables show TRENTAEE
the remaining contractual TEERMEER
maturities at the end of HEBHRZBTE
the reporting period of KB EEAR - Ty %
non-derivative financial EHRBBERESR
liabilities, which are based on ERAEBETRESA
contractual undiscounted cash T zH&ERAEBE
flows and the earliest date can EBE:
be required to pay:
2021 2020
tEs-E a3
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted ~ 1yearor  Morethan  Camying undiscounted ~ fyearor ~ More than
amount ~ cash flows on demand fyear  amount cashflows ondemand 1 year
Thi¥E 1ER THREE  1ERY
BEE REGEME REREE  (ENL  BEE BERENE HEREE (EML
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000
& FEr fEr T fEr FET FEn T
Reinsurance premium payables EfiERBRE 488430 408430 488430 - 1089 3080 321,989 -
Otheracoounts payables ~ EHERER 844008 844088 044,088 - 8953 BGOSB 869533 -
Other payables and acorued ~ ERENFEAELER
expense 4318281 4318281 2508142 1720130 2520712 2520712 2520712 -
Financial fabifes atfarvalve AR AEBHBEESE
toghpoitorss  FABSHAREE  MEMD OIS - UGHS 6B GiBgH - st
Lease liabiities EEEL 9608 200472 133506 156876 286412 208509 140000 158,509
Bank borowings R 1981776 1474408 33,08 1440410 1553503 1560938 1,360,038 -
Shargholder's loan RREX 1,641,077 1,808,467 - 1808467 1641077 1,892,162 - 189,162
9320523 9600409 4008254 5502155  T8I1767 8082404  HAM3,172 2,669,282
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(ii)

EHSHEBARAT

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 RENSREKRERE#)
Risk management objectives and policies (a) RMEEEEZEREERRANSEHE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(i) E@EEE (E)

(2) Liquidity risk (Continued) 2) mEEZEE (&)
Liabilities under insurance and (i) REEERKES
investment contracts [FAETEE
The following table presents TREH T REF
the estimated timing of REGRETEE
payments for the amounts EEXNRE KRR
recognised in the statement of KPR TEN
financial position arising from I RERE -2
liabilities under insurance and EERBEEER
investment contracts. These EFEEARRKRED
contracts typically include DERRERZE
policyholder surrender or EEREENEER
transfer options at a value EERARE -
equal to, or below, the carrying
value of those liabilities.

2021 2020
“E-- “ECEE
year  More than Tyear  More than
Total or less 1 year Total or less 1 year
g% 1F9ER  1EML g3 1E9ER  1ENL
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS$'000
Fér  TEr  FEr FEn  fEn TEn
Insurance contract REGEERE
provisions 63,121,305 3,788,120 59,333,185 54,487,776 3,198,767 51,289,009
Investment contract REHAE
liabilities 4,714,346 203,051 4,481,295 4,492,855 229,851 4,263,004
Outstanding caims FagE 2088 22984 - 14160 184160 _
68,065,499 4,251,019 63,814,480 59164791 3,612,778 55,962,013
203
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(3) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential for
interest rates to change, which can
cause fluctuations in the value of
investments and in the amounts due
to policyholders. To the extent that
fluctuations in interest rates cause
the duration of assets and liabilities
to differ, the Group controls its
exposure to this risk by, among
other things, asset and liability
matching techniques that account
for the cash flow characteristics of
the assets and liabilities.

(i) Interest rate profile

RN HEREE &)

EREREEEREERENEHEA
B BV BR ()

(i) ZEE R (E)
3) FIEEE

MZEmEBEENRZLH
AREM HUBEEHRKR
EEENENRERLESE
ASBEHNREE - MRA
RRHEREENARE
WHEHBEZE BAKH
BARAEENAGBLIER
(A BEEENER
FESRESE) EHH
RO o

() FIEREEHE
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The following table details T R/EF AN E FH 5
interest-bearing financial EEmEENER
assets and financial liabilities EERBEHARMN
at the end of the reporting = o
period.
2021 2020
—E=-—-F C—E-EfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Statutory deposits EEFER 4,579 5,721
Debt securities and BEEREZRIEHER
mortgage loans 55,582,724 51,073,548
Loans to agents and staff ERERE T/EHN
B 18,219 19,723
Cash and cash equivalents RE& RBE L ZEIEH
and deposits with banks LA 31 = {& A ZI &
maturing more than three  BYSR1T1Z 5K
months 5,085,049 4,293,467
Financial liabilities A =R
Bank borrowings RITER 1,381,776 1,553,503
Shareholder’s loan R E K 1,641,077 1,641,077
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

3)

EHeMEBERAT
i

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

While it is more difficult
to measure the interest
sensitivity of the insurance and
investment contract liabilities
than that of the related assets,
to the extent that the Group
can measure such sensitivities
the Group believes that interest
rate movements will generate
asset value changes that
substantially offset changes
in the value of the liabilities
relating to the underlying
products.

Financial assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2021, it
is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of one
percentage point in interest
rates would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax by
approximately HK$29,925,000
(2020: increase/decrease
by HK$6,991,000 and
HK$17,149,000 respectively)
and decrease/increase the
equity by approximately
HK$2,136,792,000 (2020:
HK$1,657,528,000)
respectively so far as the effect
on interest-bearing financial
assets is concerned.

The sensitivity analysis above
has been determined assuming
that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period.

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(4) Currency risk

The Group’s currency exchange risk
is mainly related to certain policies
that are not written in the United
States dollars. However, most of
the policies are denominated in
the United States dollars. As the
Group’s investments are primarily
made in the United States dollars,
coupled with the fact that the Hong
Kong dollars are pegged to the
United States dollars, management
does not believe that the currency
risk is material. For investments
made in non-United States dollars,
the Group mitigates currency risk
through the use of cross-currency
swaps and forward contracts.
Cross-currency swaps are used to
minimize currency risk for certain
non-United States dollar assets and
liabilities through a pre-specified
exchange of interest and principal.
Forward contracts are used to
hedge movements in exchange
rates. As such, no sensitivity
analysis is prepared for currency
risk.

206
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBENSBREKER#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) RREEEEZEREERRANSEHR
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B B BLER (78 )
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZEERE ()
(4) Currency risk (Continued) (4) EEpE (&)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (i) B e i O
The following table details the TERFANAERAR
exposure at the end of the IREHIRE LB T
reporting period to currency STEZEREED
risk arising from financial EBEMELEEER
assets or financial liabilities Bés 2 FRHE o
which are presented in Hong
Kong dollars.
2021
EC-F
United
States ~ Canadian Macao British  Australian Chinese  Japanese ~ Singapore
Dollars ~ Dollars ~ Patacas  Pounds Dollars Euros  Renminbi Yen Dollars
ey A 15} 1] i Bn ARE An  Fn
HK'000  HK'000  HK'O0  HK'000  HK'O00  HK'000  HK'000  HK'O00  HK'000
tér  fEL FE B tE fER TR FET
Financial assets SHEE
Investments e 56,987,076 - - - - - - - -
hswanceand reinsuance. ~ EURERERRES
receivables 1,664,190 - 4,060 - - - - - -
Advance reinsurance premivms - Bt ERERE 543,000 - - - - - 340 - -
Other aocount receivables  EfENES 19,14 - - - 103 - [ - 2
Other recelvables HfRlzE 614578 - - - - - B - -
Cash and cash equivalents and BERE£ZE%ER
deposts wih banks maturng MR A= EAHE
more than threg months and.~ (DEAEENR
seqregated accounts EUEF 2,365,177 1001 8360 5% 4009 195 64115 286 9
Derivaive financial instruments 74 $RIE 31,059 - - - - - - - -
60,630,204 1,001 87,667 52 4112 1925 100992 26 i
Financial liabities EL L
Reinsurance premium payables  ERERERE 25722 - - - - - 1981 - -
Derivaive financialinstruments 4 2RI E 131,975 - - - - - - - -
Otheraccounts peyebles — ERERER 302,646 1% - [ Pl - B - 1
Other payables AhEfE 1,149,262 - 54 (554) § Ry 166 - -
Invstment contrct blites  REARER 054,050 - %5 - - - - - -
Qutstanding claims RRER 109,512 -8 - - - - - -
Lease fbiltes L - - 1] - - - - - -
403,167 "o f05m (#89) % P - n
Notional amont of EERBfEARY
curencyelated dervatiie 548
contracts 8,362,520 - - - - (40,006) - - -
ERSRERBRAR
s 207



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% Sl 3R MY & E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBEISHEARERE#Z)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E)
(4) Currency risk (Continued) (4) EBE#EE (&)
()  Exposure to currency risk () EmmEEmO (&)
(Continued)
202
it 33
United
States ~ Canedian Mecao Brifsh ~ Australian Chingse ~ Japanese ~ Singapore
Dolars Dollar_s Patacas  Pounds Dolars Euros Renrminbi Yen Dolars

g T &% in Br  ARR in e
KOO HKOO0  HKOOD  HKOOD  HKOOD  HKOOO  HKOOO  HKO0D KOO
TR T TR T TEm TR T TEr Tin

Financial assets SREE
Investments RE 51,461,235 - - - - - - - -
hswanceand rensuance.  EWBERERRES

receivables 13,258 - 151 - - - - - -
Advance reinsurance premiums EffERERE 4401 = = = = = = = =
Other account recelvables ~ EfENER 43087 - - - 6 = 6873 =
Other recelvables AhEhSE 583,007 - - {0 54 20 4358 - -

Cash and cash equiiaents and EERBES5EBRNRE

deposits wih banks maturing = BABEHEFEFM

more than three months and.~ RELEF

segregated accounts 1,989,162 14 97,806 51 3852 8,981 26,665 39 i
Derivative financialinstuments &SR TE 99,028 = = - - - - _ -

54,091,268 9% 918 3982 847t 37,889 39 43

Financalliabilties £R88
Reinsurance preium LE

payables 119760 -0 = = = - - -
Derivative financia fiEEBIR

instruments 151,788 - = = = - - - -
Otheraccounts payebles ~ EfEAES 20032 14 = 66 21 - LW % 8
Other payables SRR 700416 - 1008 - - - 9140 - -
Investment contract REREEE

liabilities 2,036,409 - 17,765 - - = - - -
Qutstanding claims RREH 143 - - - - - - -
Lease s figag - - - - - 0 - -

3,345,648 1 e 66 Jal - 3,281 50 %8

Notiona amount EREBfERAN

of cuencyrelated deratiie. 4548

contracts (23,032,965) - - - - 383 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBEISHEARERE#Z)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E
(5) Equity price risk (5) KERE

The Group is exposed to equity
price changes arising from equity
investments and derivative
instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
held by the Group. Gains and
losses arising from changes in
the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are dealt with
in consolidated income statement.

The portfolio of unit trusts backing
linked insurance contracts, which
the Group carries on its statement
of financial position at fair value,
has exposure to price risk. However,
such price risk is fully borne by
the policyholders as the benefits
payable are linked to the price of
the securities.

The portfolio of unit trusts backing
non-linked insurance contracts,
which the Group carries on its
statement of financial position at
fair value, also has exposure to
price risk. This risk is defined as
the potential loss in market value
resulting from an adverse change in
prices.

At 31 December 2021, the unit
trusts backing non-linked insurance
contracts were classified as fair
value through profit or loss under
overlay approach at their fair
value of HK$1,367,731,000 (2020:
HK$871,782,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(5) Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, it is
estimated that an increase/decrease
of 10% (2020: 10%) in the market
value of Group’s unit trusts backing
non-linked insurance contracts,
with all other variable held
constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s total
equity by HK$136,773,000 (2020:
HK$87,178,000).

For the other investments under fair
value hierarchy level 2 and 3 that
is either backing linked insurance
contract and those that are not
related to insurance contracts,
their price risk impact on the
Group’s profit or total equity is
further analysed under fair value
measurement.

(6) Fair value measurement

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents
the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with
reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique
as follows:

210
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value
measured
using only
Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in
active markets
for identical
assets or
liabilities at the
measurement
date

- Level 1
valuations:

Fair value
measured using
Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable
inputs which
fail to meet
Level 1, and not
using significant
unobservable
inputs.
Unobservable
inputs are
inputs for which
market data are
not available

- Level 2
valuations:

Fair value
measured using
significant
unobservable
inputs

- Level 3
valuations:

EHeMEBERAT
i

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 RENEEEAREEE)
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B BV BR ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has established
and maintained policies and
guidelines that govern its
valuation methodologies and
their consistent application.
These policies and guidelines
address the use of inputs,
price source hierarchies and
provide controls around the
valuation processes.

These controls include
appropriate review and
analysis of prices against
market activity or indicators
for reasonableness, approval
of price source changes,
price overrides, methodology
changes and classification
of fair value hierarchy levels.
The valuation policies and
guidelines are reviewed and
updated as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Annually, the Group conducts
reviews of the primary pricing
vendors to validate that the
inputs used in that vendors’
pricing process are deemed
to be market observable
as defined in the standard.
While the Group was not
provided access to proprietary
models of the vendors, the
reviews have included on-site
walk-throughs of the pricing
process, methodologies and
control procedures for each
asset class and level for which
prices are provided. The review
also included an examination
of the underlying inputs and
assumptions for a sample of
individual securities across
asset classes, credit rating
levels and various durations, a
process the Group continues
to perform for each reporting
period.
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B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

In addition, the pricing
vendors have an established
challenge process in place for
all security valuations, which
facilitates identification and
resolution of prices that fall
outside expected ranges. The
Group believes that the prices
received from the pricing
vendors are representative of
prices that would be received
to sell the assets at the
measurement date (exit prices)
and are classified appropriately
in the hierarchy.

The Group reviews the fair
value hierarchy classification at
each reporting period. Overall,
reclassifications between levels
occur when there are changes
in the observability of inputs
and market activity used in the
valuation of a financial asset or
liability. Such reclassifications
are reported as transfers
between levels at the beginning
of the reporting period in
which the changes occur.
Given the types of assets
classified as Level 1 (primarily
debt securities and unit trusts),
transfers between Level 1
and Level 2 measurement
categories are expected to be
infrequent. Transfers into and
out of Level 3 are summarized
in the schedule of changes in
Level 3 assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of short-term
debt instruments, a maturity
less than 30 days, is assumed
to be equal to the book value.
The Group generally uses
unadjusted quotable market
prices from independent
brokers, when available, to
determine the fair value of debt
instruments with a maturity
greater than 30 days.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Bt % SR AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

5 RENEEEAREEE)

(a) EREZEEEREEARRENSHEA
B BV BR ()

(i) ZEmE (&
(6) AREMEE(E)

RAAEEER (&

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2021 categorised into
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F1ER $0Ef #3ER #1ER FER $3ER
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fén fér fién 77 fién Tér

Recurring fair value measurement
(Liabiltes|/assets

RATRERTRNLARE
(8R) /82

Financial assets atfar value through profit JA BBt B AES T3 A

or loss:

— Private credit and other trust
product type funds

— Listed equity

— Unlisted equity

— Leveraged and structured note
investment

— Unit trust

— Interest in ajoint venture

~ Insurance contract related
partnership investment

- Mutual fund

Financial asset t fair value through other )

comprehensive income

— Debt securities

~ Perpetual capital measured at fair
value
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through profit or loss

— Preference share liabiity

— Third-party interests in consolidated
funds

— Investment contract liabilties
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were
transfers of FVOCI debt
instrument from level 1 to
level 2 of HK$85,887,000.
There were transfers of
FVOCI and FVPL debt
instrument from level 2 to
level 3 of HK$98,498,000 and
HK$63,442,000 respectively
(2020: FVOCI debt instrument
transferred from level 1 to
level 3 of HK$1,504,000) and
an unlisted equity investment
from level 2 to level 3 of
HK$25,949,000. Except for
those mentioned above, there
was no other transfer. The
Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

RN HEREE &)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B WO BUER (48

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(i) Zm@mE (&)

218

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value

(6) AREMEE(E)

M

BAREESEN
THEERARS

REE 16 EE
IR EHIE =R
HME=ZERAAIE

measurements for those 16 &1 2 AT H9 12 18
insurance contract related BB A E
assets and liabilities

The Group determines the AEBETEFHD
estimated fair value of its Z LI WA ERE
investments using primarily the HRENGBT QAN
market approach or the income BE -ERAERE
approach. The use of quoted ENREMNEREE

prices for identical assets and
matrix pricing or other similar
techniques are examples of

18 3 5 b 58 SR i
EWE L AN A
Pl MBEHEBRER

market approaches, while the EXNERARK
use of discounted cash flow AERREK KL
methodologies is an example B = B & KPR E it

of the income approach. The
Group attempts to maximise

EHAEEE A
B AEERDE

the use of observable inputs ATa#HEn AR
and minimise the use of RERERAFEAD

unobservable inputs in
selecting whether the market
or the income approach is
used.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities

U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. government
corporations and agencies —
These securities are principally
valued using the market
approach. Level 2 valuations
are based primarily on quoted
prices in markets that are not
active, or using matrix pricing
or other similar techniques
using standard market
observable inputs such as
the benchmark U.S. Treasury
yield curve, the spreads versus
the U.S. Treasury curve for
the identical security and
comparable securities that are
actively traded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities (Continued)

Debt securities issued by
foreign governments and
state and local government
securities — These securities
are principally valued using
the market approach. Level 2
valuations are based primarily
on matrix pricing or other
similar techniques using
standard market observable
inputs including benchmark
U.S. Treasury or other yields,
issuer ratings, broker-dealer
quotes, issuer spreads and
reported trades of similar
securities, including those
within the same sub-sector
or with a similar maturity or
credit rating. Valuations based
primarily on matrix pricing,
discounted cash flow models
or other valuation techniques
that utilize significant inputs
that are unobservable or
cannot be derived principally
from, or corroborated by,
observable market data or
from inputs including quoted
prices for identical or similar
securities that are less liquid
and based on lower levels of
trading activity than securities
classified in Level 2 are
classified as Level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities (Continued)

Assets-backed securities
(“ABS”) and mortgage-backed
securities (“MBS?”)
— These securities are
principally valued using the
market approach or the
income approach. Level
2 valuations are based
primarily on broker quotes,
matrix pricing, discounted
cash flow methodologies
or other similar techniques
using standard market inputs
including spreads for similar,
actively traded securities,
spreads versus benchmark
yields, expected prepayment
speeds and volumes, current
and forecasted loss severity,
issuer credit ratings, weighted
average coupon, weighted
average maturity, average
delinquency rates, geographic
region, debt-service coverage
ratios and issuance-specific
information including, but
not limited to: collateral
type, payment terms of
the underlying assets,
payment priority within the
tranche, security structure,
deal performance and loan
vintage. If the matrix pricing,
discounted cash flow models
or other valuation techniques
utilise significant inputs that
are unobservable or cannot
be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable
market data, the fair value
measurement is classified as
Level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(iij) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

222

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Debt securities (Continued)

Corporate securities — These
securities are principally valued
using the market or the income
approaches. Level 2 valuations
are based primarily on quoted
prices in markets that are not
active, broker quotes or using
matrix pricing or other similar
techniques that use standard
market observable inputs such
as benchmark yields, spreads
versus benchmark yields,
new issuances, issuer rating,
duration, and trades of identical
or comparable securities.
Privately placed securities are
valued using discounted cash
flow models using standard
market observable inputs,
and inputs derived from,
or corroborated by, market
observable data including
market yield curve, duration,
call provisions, observable
prices and spreads for similar
publicly traded or privately
traded issues that incorporate
the credit quality and industry
sector of the issuer. This
level also includes securities
priced by independent pricing
services that use observable
inputs. Valuations based
on matrix pricing or other
similar techniques that utilise
significant unobservable
inputs or inputs that cannot
be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable
market data, including
adjustments for illiquidity,
delta spread adjustments or
spreads to reflect industry
trends or specific credit-related
issues are classified as Level
3. In addition, inputs including
quoted prices for identical or
similar securities that are less
liquid and based on lower
levels of trading activity than
securities classified in Level 2
are classified as Level 3.

5

RN HEREE &)

(a) ﬁ@%ﬁﬁf&%ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂm

B B9 BUSK (7))

(i) Z@mkE (&)
(6) AAEMETE(E)

M

IR S ()

e IRl s Ok
Fel CH Rl
ELIRETF S NB K
|16 S el B S By 52
,@5%
S - SiS

JESTE
B¢ ol mt S

o
N

E!

- -

Bl 445 5 78

JEONB - R
s
Sor

I

Z|
S

SR T B e s

SO 8 - SEOR i
B I8 I i

.l
ok Ll
Pl
il

<&
=

Eil
St
=]
B
SR pSIRNE > - >R
b BRI - SROKRIEETY - TR S B 4

]
I

L
id

B

< it

| N D ] i s AN D] A

A\
/!

& S

| g oR
-_
=

AN
ai

=

T

% It R YSEEOTRET 3

f

A2 428 ol S e O > o

A}
/!

g
c

g - - BN © B oIR 2 oR 3 -

FE R 2 T S > Tl 5

=
IO

1
\
/

5

- TR R T O\ T R SO R R s+

i

§
.

£ 0 5 2 iy e B B it HH ] 42

=
© - TR 494 B B R T D O

<
=

VR - BT ] m A
SRR | |l (O O S e

SN BODH| |3 HF
G

i

1 DBt 0 A 3 8 2 B 2130 WD SO B B 0 B SR M TR | | S

T KR i ©

el

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(iij) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Unit trusts and equity securities

These securities are principally
valued using the market
approach. Level 2 valuations
for equity securities are based
on quoted market prices
adjusted for certain factors,
such as foreign market
differential. If quoted market
prices are not available, values
provided by other third-party
organisations are used. If
values from other third parties
are unavailable, certain equity
securities, including privately
held securities classified within
equity securities, are valued
using the market and the
income approaches. Valuations
are based primarily on matrix
pricing, discounted cash flow
methodologies or other similar
techniques using inputs such
as comparable credit rating
and issuance structure. Certain
of these securities are valued
based on inputs including
quoted prices for identical or
similar securities, discounted
cash flow, solvency margin
ratio analysis and portfolio
yields. These valuations are
based on lower levels of
trading activity than securities
classified in Level 2 and are
classified as Level 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

These financial instruments
are primarily valued using
the market approach. The
estimated fair value of
derivatives is based primarily
upon quotations obtained
from counterparties and
independent sources, such
as quoted market values
received from brokers. These
quotations are compared to
internally derived prices and
a price challenge is lodged
with the counterparties and
an independent source when
a significant difference cannot
be explained by appropriate
adjustments to the internal
model.

When quoted market values
are not reliable or available, the
value is based upon an internal
valuation process using market
observable inputs that other
market participants would use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant inputs to the
valuation of derivative financial
instruments include Overnight
Indexed Swap and London
InterBank Offered Rate basis
curves, interest rate volatility,
swap yield curve, currency
spot rates, cross currency
basis curves and dividend yield
curves. Due to the observability
of the significant inputs to
these fair value measurements,
they are classified as Level 2.

The use of different
assumptions or valuation
methodologies may have
a material impact on the
estimated fair value amounts.
For the periods presented,
there were no significant
changes to the Group’s
valuation techniques.

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENMSEEREKEE#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued) 6) AXAEEFE(E)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) BAREBETEN
measured at fair value tREERARE
(Continued) (#&)
Derivative financial instruments fTEemMIA (&)
(Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair E=EBRAALEE
value measurements FTEMEE -
Significant
Valuation unobservable Range Weighted
techniques inputs Min Max average
EXRT g8
fhERE BEBAE BME BAE  NETHE
Financial assets: SHEE:
Financial asset at fairvalie ~ BEFRTUAAEES
through profit or loss under B BEBH3 ABEH
overlay adjustment: SHEE:
— Partnership investment - RBRE Net asset Net asset value NA NA NA
value
BEFE  EERE TER TER TER
— Unit trusts - BfifER Net asset Net asset value NA NA NA
value
BEFE  HEFE TER TER TER
Financial asset at fair value NAAEFEERSHH
through other comprehensive  AEt2EHENER
income: BE
— Corporate debt securities ~ — AFE% Matrix pricing ~ Credit spread 78BPS 903BPS 155BPS
and DCF (2020: (2020: (2020:
75BPS) 1,593BPS) 175BPS)
EBEEUR  BRAEE  TeBEE  dBEY  156fEEE
ERReHE (CE-EE: (CECRED (CRCEE
ToEEH) 150EEY)  175fEEY)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(iij) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Information about Level 3
fair value measurements
(Continued)

A description of the sensitivity
of the estimated fair value
to changes in the significant
unobservable inputs for
the more significant level 3
insurance contract related
asset and liability classes is as
follows:

Partnership interest —
the fair value estimation is
based on the net asset value
attributable to the Group
determined by the respective
fund managers. If such net
asset value attributable to
the Group is not yet readily
available, adjustments to the
fair value of the funds are made
based on the latest net asset
value with adjustments based
on subsequent contribution
made and distribution received
by the Group. As at 31
December 2021, it is estimated
that with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/
increase in net asset value by
10% would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by
HK$216,964,000 (2020:
HK$181,444,000) under overlay
adjustment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Information about Level 3
fair value measurements
(Continued)

Unit trusts — The fair value
estimation is based on the
net asset value attributable to
the group determined by the
respective fund managers. At
31 December 2021, for the
fair value sensitivity analysis
of limited liability partnerships
classified as Level 3, it is
estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in net
asset value by 10% would
have decreased/increased the
group’s other comprehensive
income by $79,052,000 (2020:
$28,705,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

M

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Information about Level 3
fair value measurements
(Continued)

Corporate securities -
Internally-priced corporate
securities classified in Level
3 include certain below
investment grade watch list
and distressed fixed maturity
securities. For securities
where discounted cash
flows are used, the primary
unobservable input is the
internally-developed discount
rate. Significant increases
in the discount rate would
result in a significantly lower
fair value, with the opposite
being true for decreases in
the discount rate. In certain
cases, the Group uses an
estimated liquidation value
of the borrower or underlying
assets. The Group also applies
market comparables, such as
earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) multiples for certain
securities. In isolation, an
increase in the value of these
inputs would result in an
increase in fair value, with
the opposite being true for
decreases in the value of these
inputs. As at 31 December
2021, it is estimated that
with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase
in credit spread by 100
BPS would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by
HK$248,968,000 (2020:
HK$279,202,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those
non-insurance contract related
assets and liabilities

Information about Level 2
investment

Unlisted equity securities —
the fair value is based on
recent transaction price, As
at 31 December 2021, it is
estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in recent
transaction price by 5% would
have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit and equity after
tax by HK$19,652,000 (2020:
HK$1,188,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBENSBREKER#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) RMEEEEZEREERRANSEHE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B WO BUER (48
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued) 6) AXAEEFE(E)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) BAREBETEN
measured at fair value tHMEERERE
(Continued) (#&)
Derivative financial instruments TTESMIE (E)
(Continued)
Valuation techniques H RS FAEEE
and inputs used in Level ENEENE=FE
2 and Level 3 fair value RHABE=ZRAT
measurements for those B E 52 AT B 15
non-insurance contract 1B # #ir 7 # A B
related assets and liabilities (&)
(Continued)
Information about level 3 EFE=BRBENES
investment B

Unlisted fair value through

profit or loss investment Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
FEmUALEEIEE _
HEBFABRBZRE BRI EXFABERBAE
Trust products Recent transaction price  Recent transaction price
FREM TR B TRRZ B
Private credit funds and interest ina  Net asset value Net asset value

joint venture o o
MAGRESRREELENER EEFE BEFE
Preference share liability Discounted cashflow Expected distribution from

underlying fund investment per
annum and net asset value of
underlying fund investment

EERAE ERRETE SEREESRAUREBEESR
BEEERENRAH DK

Unlisted equity Market Approach Applied multiples, marketability

N N discount :
FEmkiE 35 % EREY  mEREHR
Third-party interests in consolidated  Net asset value Net asset value
funds
REFEENE=FEE BERE BERE

EHERENERAT
—E——FEH 231



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those
non-insurance contract
related assets and liabilities
(Continued)

A description of the sensitivity
of the estimated fair value
to changes in the significant
unobservable inputs for those
non-insurance contract related
level 3 asset and liability
classes is as follows:

Fund investments - the fair
value of private debt securities
investment fund and interest
in a joint venture holding
based on the net asset value
attributable to the Group
determined by the respective
fund managers. If such net
asset value attributable to
the Group is not yet readily
available, adjustments to the
fair value of the funds are
made based on the latest net
asset value with adjustments
based on subsequent
contribution made and
distribution received by the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

1

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those
non-insurance contract
related assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Credit link obligation note
investment — the fair value
based on valuation model
and price quote provided by
the arranger of the note with
ongoing monitoring of our
investment committee and
risk management team in
conjunction with additional
information compiled by
portfolio manager including
performance and covenant
compliance information as
provided by the independent
trustee.

Unlisted equity — the fair value
based on market approach
valuation model based on the
applied EBITDA multiples of
comparable public companies
and marketability discount to
estimate the fair value of the
unlisted equity.

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(Continued)

Valuation techniques
and inputs used in Level
2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements for those
non-insurance contract
related assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Preference share liabilities
and third parties interest in
consolidated funds - the fair
value of the financial liabilities
are determined mainly based
on the fair value of the fund
investments as the principal
investment of the consolidated
funds and the effective interest
of the third parties in those
consolidated funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

EHeMEBERAT
i

Risk management objectives and policies

for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 RENEEEAREEE)

(a) EREZEEEREEARRENSHEA
B BV BR ()
(i) =@mpE (&)
(6) AREMEE(E)

(1) BAAEBEETEWN
THEERARS

(Continued) (#&)
2021 2020
= )
Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
tax and tax and
Change in the relevant HERERRTE retained retained
equity price risk variable: HE#E . % profit % profit
HH® H# %
s A A i Al K
RE &R REBER
% VR & % HEE
HK$000 HK$000
FEx FiEn
Trust type fund products ~ EFXERELER
Increase 2m 5 12 5 12
Decrease "D (5) (12) (5) (12)
Unlisted equity FLEmER
Increase 210 3 756  NATRER  NATER
Decrease HD k)] (711)  NATEA  NATER
Joint controlled entity HEEHEE
Increase 11 10 13,290 10 10,724
Decrease D (10) (13,290) (10) (10,724)
Private credit funds RAERES
Increase 1 10 50,384 10 63,542
Decrease B (10) (50,384) (10) (63,542)
Preference share liability BERERE
Increase 210 10 - 10 -
Decrease "D (10) - (10) -
Third party interest in RafEen
consolidated fund E-hER
Increase 10 10 (17,286) 10 (21,801)
Decrease "D (10) 17,286 (10) 21,801
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENMSEEREKEE#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E)
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued) 6) AXAEEFE(E)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) BAREBETEN
measured at fair value tREERARE
(Continued) (#&)
The movement during the FRE=ZBHLIA
year in the balance of Level 3 BEGTENERES
fair value measurements is as BT
follows:
Financial assets at fair value UAAEEEA
through profit or loss HEEABmH
THEE
2021 2020
—E--5 C—E-BF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January HN—A—H 742,897 807,641
Capital purchase/injection BE 8 7,797 191,028
Settlement on disposal and HERBEERERZ
redemption of products HEE (206,178) (82,043)
Realised loss on disposal ERENHERR - (16,257)
Transfer into level 3 HAE=FEH 25,949 -
Exchange alignment IEHRITEER 3,574 (7,377)
Fair value change of RENAAEE
investment i 88,888 (150,095)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 662,927 742,897
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

RN HEREE &)

(a) EREZEEEREEARRENSHEA

B BV BR ()

(i) =@mpE (&)

(6) AREMEE(E)

M

BAREESEN
THEERERE

(Continued) (#&)

Financial assets at fair value HURAEETEA

through other comprehensive BE#E T AEME

income (debt securities) B+ EE

(EHE )

2021 2020

—E-—fF —EEF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 4,512,536 4,450,348

Purchase and issuances PREEA B2 1T 180,387 144,152

Settlements HE (412,035) (64,704)
Net realised loss to profit or FTAEBZNEER

loss FEE (56,401) (84,961)
Net unrealised (loss)/gain to & A H & @& K 5

other comprehensive income I & &1 %

(E518) W& (213,316) 67,701

Transfer into Level 3 BAFE =& 98,498 -

At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 4,109,669 4,512,536
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RENMSEEREKEE#)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E
(6) Fair value measurement (Continued) 6) AXAEEFE(E)
(1) Financial assets and liabilities (1) BAREBETEN
measured at fair value ctMmEERERE
(Continued) &)
Financial assets at fair value URrAEEEA
through profit or loss under REE ;A Bm )
overlay adjustments BEREBZHENL
MEE
2021 2020
—E--5 —EB-_BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,114,565 1,749,677
Cost of investment purchased B A #J1% & B 2 743,493 392,838
Distribution received W E W 7 B (264,448) (242,085)
Earnings reinvested BEFNRENNE - 137,267
Disposal HE (1,770) (4,528)
Net realised gain to profit or FTAEZHNEEE
loss IR = 3,205 216
Net unrealised gain to other 5T A Hfb 2 @Kz
comprehensive income B R 2 28 7 U & 446,599 79,675
Transfer into level 3 EAFE =& 63,442 1,505
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 3,105,086 2,114,565
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 RENEEEAREEE)

(a) EREZEEEREEARRENSHEA
B BV BR ()
(i) =@mpE (&)
(6) AREMEE(E)

(1) BAAEBEETEWN
THEERERE

(Continued) (#&)
Financial liabilities at fair URrAEEEA
value through profit or loss HEE Tt A Bz h
THEE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 618,561 630,569
Contribution received/share WKW ZIHE BRE
issued B1T - 37,658
Distribution to third party PEHEE=R
investor BEA (271,084) (5,508)
Exchange alignment IMERKRITEERE - (799)
Fair value change NAEBEEEE 28,786 (43,359)
At 31 December BR+=ZB=+—H 376,263 618,561

EHeMEBERAT
i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

240

Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(iij) Financial risks (Continued)

@)

5 RENEEEAREEE)

() EREEAEREEARENSHEA
B BY BUSK ()

(i) Z@mEE (&

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued) (6) RAEEE (E)
Fair value of financial assets (2 FEAARBMEIK
and liabilities carried at other HEMEERERE
than fair value NAREE
The carrying amounts of £ B 1R B AN SR
financial instruments carried HERAARNS
at cost or amortised cost MITEMWIRAEE -
were not materially different EHEENRZ-_ZE_=HF
from their fair values as at +=-H=+—H8M
31 December 2020 and 2021 —_E-_—F+=A1
except for the following =+t—HWNAAE
financial instruments, for which BEa2BTK BE
their carrying amounts and fair RMAEEULT £
value and the level of fair value TE HEREE-
hierarchy are disclosed below: NREERQIAE
BEEHRFEENOT :
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021
2021 categorised into
RZBZ-F+ZA=1+-HHK
ZE--f DMEEFEDE
Carrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
REE AREBE  F1ER  FER  EER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEx FiEx &z FiEx FiEx
Debt securities EHES 24,696,256 27,940,645 1,549,874 23,610,862 2,779,909
Loans and receivables ERREWF 5995262 6,326,249 - - 6,326,249
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020
2020 categorised into
RZBZBE+-A=1-8H
“EC%f MEBEFENE
Carrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RHE OLQAEBE  FIER  FES  EIER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Debt securities EHES 21,503,917 25,868,866 - 23,012,254 2,856,612
Loans and receivables ERREWRFH 6,420273 6,858,859 - - 6,858,859
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk

(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(6) Fair value measurement (Continued)

EHeMEBERAT
i

Fair value of financial assets
and liabilities carried at other
than fair value (Continued)

Loans and receivables — The
fair value of mortgage loans is
established using a discounted
cash flow method based on
credit rating, maturity and
future income. The fair value
for impaired mortgage loans
is based on the present value
of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate or the
fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent. A
significant increase/(decrease)
in the discount rate would
result in a significant decrease/
(increase) to the fair value.

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 RENEEEAREEE)

(a) EREZEEEREEARRENSHEA

B BV BR ()

(i) =@mpE (&)

(6) AREMEE(E)

@

kA ARBEEIK
MEMEEREE
MR REE(E

EXRERR-E
HERNAAREBE
£ B ERNE R
A&~ EH B M ARR
WARNBRBEER
BEBE -SRE
BEHRERNDRE
BEERUERER
MZRBEBE AR
RREAREBMNBEME
FEFm (WRE
b/ LT DN VPN
REE BAEARN
Rig EFH (T )
HEHAAREEDN
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5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBEISHEARERE#Z)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) RMEEEEZEREERRANSEHE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(i) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E)
(7) Financial assets and liabilities (7) FETHEBHZHBEE
subject to offsetting, enforceable FIEE - A ZHHTH
master netting arrangements FHEEE e
The following summarises gross and TERBEBTITIEEEN
net information of derivative assets EENBEFIFEER
and liabilities, along with collateral UREEFHEEE DS
received and posted in connection HENEWANE 2®/IK
with a master netting agreement: A
2021
—EC--&
Gross
amounts Net Dueand Collateral Net
Gross offset amount  accrued posted amount
B8 HER BEH

nE nE PR EGEE  Efm #H
HK$000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Féx _ FEx  TEx  TExn  TEx  TEx

Other accounts receivable E U ER 46,218  (36,108) 10,115 - - 10,115
Other accounts payable ~ EftEffERE 210,389  (36,103) 174,286 - - 174,286
Derivative assets EEE 39,976 (2,917) 37,059 3,239 (37,986) 2,312
Derivative liabilities L= 102,906 (2,917) 99,989 234 (103,420) (3,197)
2020
=t 58
Gross

amounts Net Due and  Collateral Net
Gross offset amount  accrued posted amount

RE:§:! HHR B2
g ke FE  EieE i ek

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FEx _ TEx  TEx  TExn  TExT  TEx

Other accounts receivable & Ui B = 38,576 (27,903) 10,673 = = 10,673
Other accounts payable ~ HftEMERZ 246,794 (27,903 218,801 - - 218,891
Derivative assets fEEE 110,001 (10973) 99,028 3,946 (99,528) 3,446
Derivative liabilities R 63,232  (10973) 52,259 (83  (50,310) 1,867
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK 5 RBEISHEARERE#Z)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Risk management objectives and policies (a) EREEEERRERENSEE
for mitigating insurance and financial risk B O BUER (48)
(Continued)
(ii) Financial risks (Continued) (i) ZHEE (E
(7)  Financial assets and liabilities (7) BETHEHNEHEE

subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements
(Continued)

The Group’s principal derivative
market risk exposures are interest
rate risk, which includes the
impact of inflation, and credit
risk. Interest rate risk pertains
to the change in fair value of the
derivative instruments as market
interest rates move. The Group is
exposed to credit-related losses
in the event of non-performance
by counterparties to derivative
financial instruments. In order
to minimize credit risk the group
and its derivative counterparties
generally enter into master
agreements that require collateral
to be posted in the amount owed
under each transaction, subject to
minimum transfer amounts. These
same master agreements allow for
contracts in a positive position, in
which the group is due amounts, to
be offset by contracts in a negative
position. This right of offset
combined with collateral obtained
from counterparties, reduces the
Group’s exposure. The Group
regularly monitors counterparty
credit ratings and exposures,
derivatives positions and valuations,
and the value of collateral posted
to ensure counterparties are
credit-worthy and the concentration
of exposure is minimized. The
Group monitors this exposure
as part of its management of the
Group’s overall credit exposures.

EETREEARLTF
—FFR

FIE & - AEHBITHT
EFEHAE hE ()

REBNETENTETA
mEREREBEERANERE
B BEEBERREREAR
B B9 52 & o R fn B2
MENEZEHETET
ENARBEZEERR -
MRTEEMTIAENR
ZHFIEN A&H
HHEREEMRENE
K- BRTBRERKER
Bk AEBERESTE
TERXRSHF-REX
Rl EWE EREFMm
UBEXZMRNEHE
Bk BEAZHREER
TEHAR - SLEEEW
= thh & St R R R IE R
MNERE (HhAREEY
RE S ) WA BRR
EEEE SEKHEE
REBFESHIE
B&ES BMPTH
MEREE A&
EHEEXZHFN
ERFRNEREE -
PTEmBTMMEE KU
RERHERREE:
LERXEZHFARRE
2. YKEBREPER
RIE - ASEEZLE
w o EAHEEAEE
ERERRARN—8D -

It

e
[ 20 7
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)

(7) Financial assets and liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements
(Continued)

If amounts are due from the
counterparty, they are reported as
an asset. If amounts are due to
the counterparty, they are reported
as a liability. Negative values in
the carrying value of a particular
derivative category can result from
the counterparty’s right to offset
carrying value positions in other
derivative categories.

The uncertainties about the amount
and timing of claims payment are
typically resolved within one year.

The tables below reconcile the “net
amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position”, as set out above, to
the other accounts receivable and
other accounts payable together
with derivative financial instruments
classified under other payables
presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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5 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies
for mitigating insurance and financial risk
(Continued)

(ii) Financial risks (Continued)
(7) Financial assets and liabilities

subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

RN HEREE &)

(a) EREZEEEREEARRENSHEA
B BV BR ()

(i) ZEmE (&
(7) FBETEHENZHBEE

FIE & - AEHBITHT
EFEHAE hE ()

(Continueqd)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net amount of financial assets & 20 _t 32 Ff 51 JA 3K 84
after offsetting as stated above #Z&RMEEFE 10,115 10,673
Financial assets not in scope of 3t 3F A K &4 1% = &0 &
offsetting disclosure AZEmERE 69,416 148,205
79,531 158,878
Net amount of financial 3R a0 _E PR B A K 8
liabilities after offsetting as BrreRBBEFE
stated above 174,286 218,891
Financial liabilities not in scope  3f 3F A IK $5 1 FE &5 &
of offsetting disclosure AZE/mas 669,802 650,642
844,088 869,533
6 PREMIUMS AND FEE INCOME 6 REREBEAWA
Premiums and fee income represents gross REREBARAERASNES - HE
premium income and fee income received in EH RUPEHK2ENKRTEEEE1E
respect of life and annuity, linked long term, MESFWINREREARALLE -
retirement scheme management categories | and Il
of long term business.
2021 2020
—E--F CZEZEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Premium and fee income from REEEHNRERERKRA

insurance contracts

Fee income from investment contracts & &R E AW A

8,435,108 7,674,237
43,476 49,204

8,478,584 7,723,441

EHeMEBERAT
i

245



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

7a

246

NET INVESTMENT INCOME

7a REWAFRE

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂE — ? — f'E
HK$°000 HK$'OOO
FET FET
Interest income from unlisted debt K EFEXEIZIHRIEHERZ
securities and mortgage loans FE U A 2,214,524 2,008,279
Bank and other interest income RITREMF B WA 12,404 19,455
Net realised gain on disposal of HEREEUAAREBEFERHR
securities designated at fair value @EJJE‘I‘AE%T&E’J%%Z
through profit or loss I WS TR 686,445 502,870
Net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial LX’RJ‘C13TE‘+EHE =)
asset and financial liabilities FFTABENEREER
designated at fair value through cRABEZARER (FE)
profit or loss W= F R (452,365) 716,328
Net realised gain on fair value through LA REBEFEBHE BT A
other comprehensive income H fih 2 [ Uk 2 VB 7
debt securities EHE 2O BB WM T 45,861 98,620
Net realised (loss)/gain on debt DR AT EZERESFZ
securities measured at 28R (FE) /WmFE
amortised cost (18,130) 8,067
Impairment reversal/(loss) of DB ER AT EZEEN
assets measured at amortised cost JH{EEE  (E5E) 19,892 (72,148)
Impairment loss of fair value through UARBEFEEHEH
other comprehensive income FFARMEEHKENEEES
debt securities ZBERE (51,312) (65,844)
Reversal of impairment loss on BENTBREZRESE
investment in an associate 5| 35,000 -
Gain on disposal of interest BENREE 2 HERE
in associates 8,161 -
Dividend and distribution income skl PN 416,674 235,760
Net derivative (loss)/gain PTEIR (BB /s FEE (81,179) 131,726
Other investment loss Hih iR EE B - (10,891)
Net unrealised gain of fair value BERAETUNUAAREETE
through profit or loss financial BH#ZFHTABENESH
assets under overlay adjustment EEZASR WS FE 377,429 119,419
3,213,404 3,691,641
Total interest income from financial assets ESZ:ZF: E_—F+-_BA=t+—HLHEF
at fair value through other comprehensive E UAAREEFEEEEHT AR
income amounted to HK$850,771,000 (2020: {ﬂléﬁ WENEMEENNE R A4

HK$740,776,000) and from amortised cost financial
assets amounted to HK$1,341,739,000 (2020:

HK$1,281,069,000) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

%8 £850,771,0008 c (ZE=F F
740,776,000/%71:) HER AT REE
A B U A £1,341,739,000& ¢ (=&
—ZE % :1,281,069,0008 T) °
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B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

7b OTHER INCOME 7b Hfl A
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net gain on deemed partial disposal REZ D HEBZ N TH
of associates W 5 58 7,360 =
Trustee fee income EEBEIWA 37,466 28,452
Income from modified coinsurance  EBRHERERELIRE
and coinsurance with fund withheld — H{RU A 2,298,869 2,560,558
Other income H g A 100,190 108,468
2,443,885 2,697,478
8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT 8 EFERF#HH
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —EB-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net claims, policy benefits and BRFE RELTNERRE
surrenders (note a) (Kt&Fa) 607,340 416,275
Interest credited to policyholders’ REBFEANEFEREFTIE
deposits (note b) (B1aEb) 1,832,747 2,784,500
Dividends to policyholders (note c) REFHE ARE (Hitc) 66,039 72,062
2,506,126 3,272,837
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT (Continued) 8 FBRE&HLT#E)

Notes: Btat -
(a) Claims, policy benefits and surrenders (a) BRFE REAKLTNERS
2021
—EC--F
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AE - FEUR RIKGTEIERE RIKGEIERE
#ARAR ERE - %38 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Gross benefits incurred: BEENEEE:
~ Benefits payable - B 994,765 1,054 38,953 1,034,772
— Change in outstanding claims - RRERZ21t 48,691 - (3,003) 45,688
1,043,456 1,054 35,950 1,080,460
Amount recoverable from reinsurers: FEU BRI A R 5 :
- Benefits recoverable - Al E S (437,841) - (3,375) (441,216)
— Change in outstanding claims - RRERZ21t (34,892) - 2,988 (31,904)
(472,733) - (387) (473,120)
Net amount ,%’%_E 570,723 1,054 35,563 607,340
2020
“ECEE
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AE - F2UR RINGTEIER RIKGTEIER
#ARE® F18 £38 a@st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Gross benefits incurred: BEEENREE:
— Benefits payable - R 679,502 1,273 27,829 708,604
- Change in outstanding claims - RABR &1 20,139 - 2,108 22,247
699,731 1,273 29,937 730,941
Amount recoverable from reinsurers: EW B R A RS :
- Benefits recoverable - Al E k& (307,523) - (50) (307,573)
- Change in outstanding claims - RABR &1 (4,105) - (2,988) (7,093)
(311,628) - (3,038) (314,666)
Net amount E%‘_ﬁ 388,103 1,273 26,899 416,275
Benefits payable comprise claims, policy benefits and ERGEAEEER  RELNLNERSE -

surrenders.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT (Continued) 8

Notes: (Continued)

BREGN E)

Bt (4&)

(b) Interest credited to policyholders’ deposits

(b) RAREFEAERWFE

2021
—E--f

Life and Retirement Retirement

annuity scheme scheme

and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total

AE 2K RIRTHEIER RIRGHEIER
#ARGR ERE %38 @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Insurance contracts RBEEE 1,655,628 (339) - 1,655,295
Investment contracts RELAE 177,452 - - 177,452
1,833,080 (333) - 1,832,747

2020
TRIERE

Life and Retirement Retirement

annuity scheme scheme

and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total

A F2UK RINGHEIER RINHEIER
FARER £18 ERE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FET FET
Insurance contracts RBEERE 2,545,301 21,961 - 2,567,262
Investment contracts RERR 217,238 - - 217,238
2,762,539 21,961 — 2,784,500

EERESHEBERAR
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B 7% Sl 3R MY & E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

8 NET POLICYHOLDERS BENEFIT (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) Dividends to policyholders

8 FERF&HMT @
Wit (&)

(c) BREFAARENRE

2021
—EC--F

Life and Retirement Retirement

annuity scheme scheme

and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total

A FEUR RAGHEIER RGHEIERE
#ARER F18 %38 st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET FET FAT
Insurance contracts RS E 66,039 - - 66,039

2020
i

Life and Retirement Retirement

annuity scheme scheme

and linked management management
long term category | category lll Total

LS FEUR RN EIEE RINGHEIEE
HEARER %18 £38 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FET FET
Insurance contracts RS E 72,062 - - 72,062

250

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

9 COMMISSION AND RELATED EXPENSES 9 MAENHEBEEAR
2021
—E--&
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Il Total
AR ERUR BIRGHEERE RIKGTEIER
EARER F18 #3E @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
A THEx T TEr
Insurance contracts RBRER 1,786,670 463 6,990 1,794,123
Investment contracts RESME 19,348 - - 19,348
1,806,018 463 6,990 1,813,471
2020
-2-%%
Life and Retirement Retirement
annuity scheme scheme
and linked management management
long term category | category Ill Total
AS E2UR BIRTEERE BIRGTEER
gARER F18 R @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET T
Insurance contracts REEE 1,325,693 184 7,859 1,333,736
Investment contracts RERR 16,115 - - 16,115
1,341,808 184 7,859 1,349,851
10 CHANGE IN FUTURE POLICYHOLDER 10 RRREFEARKRNTESR
BENEFITS
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Increase in future policyholders’ RRREIFE ALLEM -
benefits — insurance contracts R ER (KaF31)
(note 31) 5,432,801 4,718,917
Increase in future policyholders’ RRREFEALLTEM -
benefits — investment contracts KEER (Ka32)
(note 32) 8,410 8,172
5,441,211 4,727,089
ERSRERBRAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11 BR® A% F
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREADRF B MBR(FTA) -
(crediting):
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(a) Staff costs BT HA
Equity-settled share-based payment LA i 45 & 3 LA IR 12
expenses (reversal) (note 43) X zEX (EE)
(Hfat43) (7,898) (12,019)
Salaries, allowances and benefits #H & - ZREREYFIH
in kind 494,688 442,266
Retention package BB 1T iE B - 4,266
Social welfare HEER
- Staff (note a) - BT (ftata) 36,885 29,130
— Agents - R 24,781 21,453
548,456 485,096
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11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(a)

Staff costs (Continued)

Note a: The Group operates the Mandatory Provident

Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) for all
qualified employees in Hong Kong under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2020: HK$30,000). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees.

The domestic employees of the Group in
the PRC participate in state-managed social
welfare plans, including social pension
insurance, unemployment insurance, health
care insurance, housing funds and other
social welfare plan operated by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments.
According to the relevant regulations, the
premiums and welfare benefit contributions
borne by the Group are calculated and paid
to the relevant labour and social welfare
authorities on a regular basis. The social
pension insurance and unemployment
insurance are defined contribution plans. The
contributions to the defined contribution plans
are expensed as incurred.

There is no forfeited contribution from the
defined contribution schemes for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 that may be used by the Company and
its subsidiaries to reduce the existing level
of contributions as the contributions are fully
vested to the employees immediately upon
contributions are made.

During the year, wealth management products
and securities brokerage transaction fees
approximately amounted to HK$33,000 (2020:
HK$66,000) were waived as part of staff
benefit scheme.

EETREEARLTF

—=—_

—_—

FER

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

11 BREBADER (&)
(a) BEIRHKA (&)

FffsFa :

AEBEEBEEFMELAB S
BRBEEEBERKHAEE
HEAZERREHEBFELTE

£t 8 (TRELTE]) - B

2B R—EREHTE KRG
% HBUINSTIASE R
BESHE BEENEEVER
BIE S MBI A B 5% 5 Bl E
HEZRESENEBAR L
R £30,0008 T (ZE=FF :
wow%m)oﬁ#§¢&Mf

HREERE - sTEEEEAEE
ﬁé HEE HITABTEN
HeER-

FEETARTHEAEANES
2 MEEXEE =R
£ - BIEEERE R E R
FEEEENEEERE - KX
Rz BERRER - EEAEER
Hip kSR A MK - RIEAEER
Bl AEBEENRE R B M
REHRAEL XA FHENS
BRASEAIM - EEZERE
RAERBBREMRRETE - Y
RERRFEINARERLER
FTAER -

——FNM—ZT_ZTHF
T-—BLEEFENRE
{ _% /xﬁ&llﬁlﬂ’ﬂ T'A’—_[
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RAFE BHERRESLL
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 11 BRBANGEF (&)
2021 2020
—E-—-F CZEZEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(b) Other operating items HitR&1HH
Auditors’ remuneration 2 E AN B 2 10,579 10,579
Legal and professional costs ERENEXERER 27,548 24,246
Lease payments — property rentals HEFIE - YE£HEE 5,567 4,385
Amortisation of value of business Uk B % 7& (& (& 19 1 £
acquired 163,450 324,472
Amortisation of deferred EERERES R AR
acquisition cost 608,912 492,362
Depreciation and amortisation on ¥ ERREMNEMERLEE
property and equipment and B 47 B & 4 8H
other intangible assets 195,964 157,922
Information, data and Bl BEERBHAMAX
communication expenses 31,287 28,746
Net exchange gain HMNEE UK 22 7 ER (12,579) (16,152)
Disposal loss for HEEE
- fixed assets -BEEE 62 64
Entertainment and travelling BEREK 5,628 2,755
2021 2020
—Eg-—-F —EZEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(c) Finance costs il & K 2S
Bank loan interest RITERFE 41,394 57,548
Interest on lease liabilities HEEGRE 2,039 9,543
Preference share liability BEREE 21,987 23,267
Other interest expense HibF B X H 6 260
Shareholder’s loan interest BREREFZFE 83,694 79,767
149,120 170,385
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12 AKX RZFER
INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) HmEWBZR2BENREK:
statement represents:

2021 2020
—E-—-fF C—B-BEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax AR IR
Hong Kong B8
Provision for the year RNEEEE 49,291 49,963
Over-provision in respect of NEFEEFERE
prior years (28) (40)
Overseas =3
Provision for the year NEE A 1,284 967
(Over)/under-provision in U FEEEEGBR)
respect of prior years T2 (93) 100
Macao e !
Provision for the year REEEME - -
Over-provision in respect of LWEFEEEHFEBR
prior years - -
50,454 50,990
Deferred tax IR FE B 1E
Origination and reversal of ER=HNELEMERD
temporary differences (43,353) (47,167)
7,101 3,823
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for RZZBE-Z—FNEBANESHEHEE
2021 is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) F e A BUE A #916.5% (=
of the estimated assessable profits for the EFF 16.5%) 5T E  HEARE
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group B —EKMEARFEMAFEFE
which is a qualifying corporation under the BRI AEBR O o

two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.
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BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

12

256

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the
same basis in 2020.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for 2021 is taken into account a reduction
granted by the Hong Kong SAR Government
of 100% of the tax payable for the year of
assessment 2020-21 subject to a maximum
reduction of $10,000 for each business (2020:
a maximum reduction of $20,000 was granted
for the year of assessment 2019-20 and was
taken into account in calculating the provision
for 2020).

The provision for Macao Complementary
Tax is calculated at tax rate of 12.0% (2020:
12.0%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries
is charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

12

ma

(a)

Wik Rz R 8 ()

RERBERZBERR  (HF

REMBARMS  H2008 8T
HY FE R 150 0% A #28.25% # B » BR T
&SRB i Al B 4216.5 % B o 2% MY
BRARANEBAEHBHER _-Z=
TEMNHREENE -

—EC-EMNEBNESHEBEDE
EREBBNTHRERFLS FH
—E_EER_E_-—RHEERE
B FR100% M BR 0 R DT MU
10,0008 TR B LR (ZZ2E ==
F I ZE-AEEZERBFE
E1X20,000c R B LR WEE
CECEERBNEHERBNE
RZE) o

JBLPT BT DN AR BB 0 1R A 5 FERR
BRRZHT12.0% (ZE=FF :
12.0%) 5t E - BIHIHB LB
HUMBEBEREANRTHRENE o
b) BMEBZHMEFTEFNZREA
BEFTENEER
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12 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 12

INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

mEWRERZAEB (&)

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEZHMEBRNIREAF =T
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HREHIER :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’°000 HK$’OOO
FET FEr
Profit before taxation B ADER 799,766 952,810
Notional tax on profit before taxation, 1% 87t 48 £ B X fE £ }i?{lﬂ
calculated at the rates applicable B8 A B RS E B AR
to profits in the jurisdictions FMEEERBIE
concerned 85,637 204,353
Tax effect of surplus transferred ERREBRIABEASE
from Hong Kong long term EBNBHRNBEEE
individual life business (116,176) (273,523)
Notional tax on net premiums MEEBRPEASKRER
written in respect of Hong Kong RRHOREFENES
long term individual life business 18 49,458 47,956
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEHTBAZBEZE (9,994) (29,560)
Tax adjustment in respect of DEFEHRIEFRE
prior years (121) 60
Tax effect of non-deductible FHHBHZR B E
expenses 18,568 28,505
Tax effect of prior year’s tax losses AFEEFHUTFFET
utilised this year RINEBENBESE (27,227) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERA ﬁ'ﬁﬂf’ﬁﬁfjiﬁﬁﬁi’&ﬂ’ﬂ
previously not recognised AENBENHRESE - (1,801)
Tax effect of tax losses AERFEEBRZHB
not recognised =4 50,996 74,730
Tax effect of reversal of taxable ERBEREEEEDON
temporary difference REEE (43,353) (47,167)
Others Hith (687) 270
Tax expenses BIE X 7,101 3,823
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies

13 EEM &

iR15 31 8 (2 TR AI) E383(1) KR (2
A RBESAEEH) R F2H R R

Ordinance and part 2 of the Company (Disclosure ZESHMEWT :
of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulations are as follows:
2021
ZEC-F
Salaries, Contributions
allowances Discretionary  to Mandatory Share-hased
Directors’  and benefits honus Provident payments  Resignation
fees in kind (note ) Fund Sub-total (note ii) payment Total
BOORER  BBRL Bt HEfRER
Ezhe  EhWE W) LEEHR Nt 2Rz BEAR it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr 22 &1 FAr Fir &1 FAr 22
Chairman ik
YuFeng E# - - - - - - - -
Executive directors UiEs
Cheung David & - 10496 9,000 348 10,844 - - 10,844
Hai Olivia Ou BE - - - - - - - -
Huang Xin g8 - - - - - - - -
Non-executive directors FyfEs
Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed - - - - - - - -
Michagl James 0'Connor Michagl James 0'Connor - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Chu Chung Yue, Howard 57T 30 18 - - 378 - - 318
Qi Daging ErE 492 12 - - 504 - - 504
iao Feng L 240 12 - - 25 - - 25
Total Eh) 1,09 10,538 9,000 348 204978 - - 204978
Notes: BiaE :

i The discretionary bonus amount represents bonus
accrued and approved for the year 2021.

ii It represents the estimated value of share award
granted to the individuals under the Company’s share
award scheme. The value of these share awards
are measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 2(v).

HMEREASERARR - -—FER:
Rz 2 REHTEAL -

BEHTREREADDORD LM
5T L ] A 60 B8 49 5 £ 3T (L1
20049 58 ) > 1 T 4R 08 M B2 () M L2
AEENRDBERZ RS2 R
BRI -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

13 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13 EEM£ (&)

2020
-528¢
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  Discretionary to Mandatory Share-based
Directors’  and benefits bonus Provident payments  Resignation
fegs in kind (note ) Fund Sub-total (note i) payment Total
B BER  BBEAL BAMLARS NRHASE
gzne  ENAE W) fi Nt ZfRE)  BRAR it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

Tén TEn Tén TEn TEn Tén Tén Tén

Chairman if
YuFeng E# - - - - - - - -
Executive directors b £
Cheung David &1 - 2161 - 5 2166 - - 2166
Hai Olivia Ou bt - - - - - - - -
Huang Xin -1 - - - - - - - -
LiTing 8 - 1,274 - 5 1,279 - 5,000 6279
Non-executive directors FyfEE
Hai Olivia Ou (note i) B8 (i) - - - - - - - -
Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed - - - - - - - -
Michagl James 0'Connor Michagl James 0'Connor

(note vi) (Wit - - - - - - - -
Gareth Ross (note i Gareth Ross (41 vi) - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ HUFETES

directors
Chu Chung Yue, Howard 57T 30 18 - - 378 = = 378
(i Daging EAE I 12 - - 504 - - 504
iao Feng L pJ) 12 - - 25 - - 259
Total 88 1092 347 - 10 4579 - 5,000 9579

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and

the Group.

The non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the

Company.

LA TESHEETEZRERQFTRAS
EEEHEERBRORE -

LR ITEERBUFHTESHE

FTEREARNRANEEZREEH -

EETREEARLTF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

14 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 14 BEHAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, EFEfUMEESNALTH —VAESE
one (2020: none) is a director whose emoluments (ZZ2-ZF5F &) EENMEFHER
is disclosed in note 13. The aggregate of the R FIS- BN (ZEZFF . 1
emoluments in respect of the four (2020: five) M)ANLTHBESEEENT -

individuals are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e  REREYF S
kind 17,733 34,263
Discretionary bonus B EFE AL 12,815 9,860
Equity-settled share-based payment DRGEEENURNDABER
expenses (note 1) X (fraE1) - -
Contributions to Mandatory Provident & %14 A& & At Z AR K5+
Fund and retirement scheme EIRE
contribution 1,501 2,313
32,049 46,436
Note 1: These represent the estimated value of share KraEt - EEHFERERBEARDTNRKME
award granted to the individuals under the B 8147 F F LB A B AR 10 52 B 1 5T
Company’s share award scheme. The value of EE BEEROERBNEERZRE
these share awards are measured according to MizEo()Fr B BRI AR D A EREN
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based REWAEBETTEEE > MR
payment transactions as set out in note 2(v) BZBR BZEREREBRHME
and, in accordance with that policy, includes ERTENETMELNTEENE
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued STFIEFEE o

in previous years where grants of equity
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

14 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the five (2020: five) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

14 BEHF AL (#E)

AERSHFAL(ZZEZZTF AR 2
MERENATEE :

Number of individuals

N |
2021 2020
—B=-f —E=-Zf
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7t £5,500,00078 7 1 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7t £6,500,0007% 7t 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 T £7,500,0007% T - 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 7T 28,000,000 7t - 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7t £9,500,00078 7t - 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7t £10,500,0003& o 1 1
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 7t £11,000,0005& o 1 -
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 7t £12,000,0005& 7o - 1
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 19,500,001% 7t £20,000,0007& 1 -
15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREAXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share BREXRBRNDEBE-_ZSE—_—HF
is based on the profit attributable to equity +Z A=+ —HLEFEEZXRAARE
shareholders of the Company for the year = IR 3R FE 1k 7% A513,414,00058 T
ended 31 December 2021 of HK$513,414,000 (ZE=-ZF % :618,315,000/%8 Jt)
(2020: HK$618,315,000), and the weighted EBZE—_ZE-_—=®+=-_H=+—H
average number of shares in issue during IEFEFERNBBETRMDZMEFS
the year ended 31 December 2021 of £03,852,570,006%k (ZZE=ZF :
3,852,570,006 (2020: 3,319,175,720). 3,319,175,720/) 7t &
Weighted average number of ordinary BBERZMEFGE
shares
2021 2020
—g=-% -2-%%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R-B-BAMERTLER 3,867,991,673 3,223,326,394
Effect of issue of subscription shares BORBROZTE (HF426)
(note 42(¢)) - 111,270,993
Effect of shares held by share award scheme ~ HBEFRHEB EFTEERH
& (15,421,667) (15,421,667)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ RW+=A=+—-RELERH
at 31 December ZMEFLHH 3,852,570,006 3,319,175,720
ERSREBERAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

15

16

262

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 of HK$513,414,000
(2020: HK$618,315,000), and the weighted
average number of shares during the year
ended 31 December 2021 of 3,852,570,006
(2020: 3,319,175,720).

15

BRER (4)
(b) BR#EFRF

ERBEREANIRBE_ZE=—F
+ZA=+—RLFEZ2AQAE
= IR 3R FE {5 & F)513,414,00058 J©
(ZZ2=-F % :618,315,0008 7t)
rEE_ZE-_—%+-F=+—H
LEFERABEETRMZMEFRY
£(3,852,570,006/8 (= Z =Z F :
3,319,175,720/%) 5t & o

Weighted average number of ordinary ZERZNEFIHE (#E)
shares (diluted)
2021 2020
—®R=-F —ECEF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ R+ =A=+—-BEZERH
at 31 December ZIMEFTE 3,852,570,006 3,319,175,720
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ =A=+—-BWZ BB ME
(diluted) at 31 December T (#8) 3,852,570,006  3,319,175,720
SEGMENT REPORTING 16 D HHRE

The operating segments have been determined
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other operating segments.

After the completion of the YF Life acquisition,
the Group is largely dominated by the insurance
business. As a result, management decided to
streamline and regroup the operating segments.
Insurance business is considered as an operating
segment and other operating segments that
existed prior to the acquisition are consolidated as
financial services and corporate to reflect the long
term business development focus.

REDBIOBREBEALANTESHEH
I PR BT il R 3R % AF H SRS PR E 2 3R
EMEE AEBEEXEBIREH
ERMEERFTRMEZE SRR E 5 E
THARER AEEZKEE I MBAR
—ERBEEBEN  RHZEARR
BRrAE 2 AR R TGz B REH ML

EH WA -

WEBBERRE AEENTEXEBER
Riz-Hit EEERE[LANEARL
Lo REEBREAEELEDIN A
MRRB A FENREDBEHAE
EMRENAREL  AERRER
HMEBBERER -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Consequently, the Group currently has two
operating segments:

() Insurance business — engage in the writing of
long term assurance business

(i) Other financial services and corporate
includes

(@)

Securities brokerage - engages in
securities brokerage and provision of
custodian and other services;

Wealth and asset management -
provision of fund and asset management
services as well as financing and
investing solution for corporate clients;

Consultancy and advisory services —
provision of corporate advisory, placing
and underwriting advisory services to
corporate clients;

Principal investment — utilise capital 1) to
provide funding on developing financial
products and the funds managed by
wealth management team 2) to improve
returns on the Group’s capital and cash
flow management based on treasury
management model that may involve
(but shall not be limited to) holding
fixed income instruments, high grade
equity instruments and other financial
investments;

Financial technology activities — includes
administrative expenses, research and
development costs, staff costs and data
and technology related expenses related
to the Group’s financial technology
activities to support other financial
services function; and

Corporate service includes central
administrative and financing functions to
support other operating segments.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as those followed by the Group in the
last annual financial statements.

EHeMEBERAT
i

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

16

2 EBERE ()

FrEL REBBREMELE D E

(i)

(i)

CIE:

REERE - ZFRRPREER

HttEmRENMQAXEZEE

(a)

BERL-REIRLFELHE
FoORRERMETIERBEMNE A
AR % ;

BEEE-RHEESNEE
EERB URBEXEFR
FERENREBRER

FERE-FNAEA)5 5%
& Bl E M U & 32 B TR ) B
EENESRHEBME)ERT
IR (ERRR) FHEE
WETH SREIKELTA
MEMEMRENESER
B Re&EEEANRES
MEEENDR ;

TRMREE-EBEERE
BXHHMEmRE N
& BB B AE BA Y 1T B B
XoERA BTRARE
BAMRAMAEERS . &

) RARBEEFHMEE
2 EBET R MT A BB B RE
EOWEFRREREBR A

FEMBHRRAMAEEAER -
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264

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment revenue represents the revenue generated
by each operating segment from external
customers. Inter-segment revenue represents
inter-segment services which were transacted with
reference to the normal commercial price made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Segment results represent specific operating
performance of the reported segments by
allocating all specific and related operating and
finance costs, excluding other corporate, general
administrative, and financial expenses, taxation
and non-operating costs. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker, at
the relevant times, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

16

2 EBERE ()

DHMBRAEZSEE I BIBEFEEN
WA D BEBRAESREERTED
B=REHZ-—RBEERMETRS
20 EBE R o

PTHEERERIHNEBIEAARE
REEEERMBRA (TEELMR
B —RITH R BB BIER L
ERA)TEZBELERR - BTN
FHRNEERTERLELERRENFER
PEERRIFGHE2GEEE -
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16 2 W& (4#4)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) BB ARESE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-_—H+=-A=+—AHL
FE
Other financial
Insurance  services and
business corporate Total
. HtsmEHA N
REER NAEH @t
HKS000 HKS$000 HK$000
TEx FEx TEx
Premiums and fee income RERBAUA 8,478,584 - 8,478,584
Premiums ceded to reinsurer PHRE (2,749,249) - (2,749,249)
Net premium and fee income RERERKAZE 5,729,335 - 5,729,335
Change in unearned revenue liability REABUAZALE (575,893) - (575,893)
Brokerage commission, interest and other ~ £2{EE - FISWAME R KA
service income X - 34,809 34,809
Subscription, management and rebate fee M EEERERENA
income - 7,855 7,855
Consultancy and advisory income RERBAUA - - -
Inter-segment income 2EEBA 1,753 12,977 14,730
Reportable segment revenue AREDPUMA - 5,155,195 55,641 5,210,836
Allocated net investment income, other E2BREUANFE  AtEERA
operating income and gains ks ; 5,165,770 192,861 5,358,631
Share of result of associates BELNAXEH0E - 740 740
Allocated operating costs BAREERA (9,389,581) (230,184) (9,619,765)
Allocated finance cost EABBERAR (1,018) (28,057) (24,075)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RSB/ (HE) 930,366 (3,999) 926,367
Elimination of inter-segment (loss)/profit RED S (BR) /FIBH S (450)
Reportable segment profit derived from REERAMIAL 2 AREDH
Group’s external customers Al 925,917
Unallocated legal and professional fees, RABEEREEHT  MERKR
finance cost and other operating expenses ~ E & 5% (126,151)
Taxation HE (7,101)
Profit for the year KEERF 792,665
Depreciation and amortisation on property  MIE KR ENEBEFEENTE
and equipment and other intangible assets K 174,021 21,943 195,964
Bank interest income i ’T ASHA 9,689 2,475 12,164
Reportable segment assets (including ARENHEE (BERBELTN
investment in associates and those RENRWBERRRETRAN
identified intangible asset at acquisition BREE RERNSESEERA
of YF Life, cash and cash equivalentand ~ BEHBRSZR=BANETEHE
fixed bank deposits with original maturity %)

over 3 months) 92,846,628 3,887,773 96,734,401

Additions to non-current segment assets ~ ERAFFBIBEENLE (FHE

during the year other than associates AH) 272,860 37,810 310,670
Cash and cash equivalent and fixed bank ~ BERBEESEERNRETHRS

deposits with original maturity over 3 RZEANRTERER

months 3,797,417 1,287,632 5,085,049
Investment in associates REEAANRE - 148,819 148,819
Reportable segment liabilities (including IRENNEE (BRUBEBRR

those identified deferred tax liabilities at ~ #WmAINELHEEE)

acquisition of YF Life) (74173755  (4,476,015)  (78,649,770)
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16 2 W& (4#4)
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (@) PHBAREE(E
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z_FTF+-A=t+—HL
FE
Other financial
Insurance services and
business corporate Total
L HSREER
REER NEESS @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FE7T T#1
Premiums and fee income REREAUA 7,723,441 - 7,723,441
Premiums ceded to reinsurer THRE (2,934,969) - (2,934,969)
Net premium and fee income RERERAMARE 4,788,472 - 4,788,472
Change in uneamed revenue liability RYBUASELE (525,825) - (525,825)
Brokerage commission, interest and other Befe FASRANHMRERA
service income - 33,944 33,944
Subscription, management and rebate fee AE ERBREREHA
income - 5,432 5,432
Consultancy and advisory income ERRZARA - - -
Inter-segment income AR A 1,635 7,360 8,995
Reportable segment revenue THEIBRA 4,264,282 46,736 431,018
Allocated net investment income, other EAERREUANFE  HpS2HAR
operating income and gains W& 6,195,267 171,734 6,367,001
Share of result of associates BENFXENE - 303 303
Allocated operating costs BEAREERR (9,353,961) (188,409) (9,542,370)
Allocated finance cost EARMERL (7,794) (30,488) (38,282)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) TR52 378/ (BE) 1,007,794 (124) 1,007,670
Elimination of inter-segment (loss)/profit AREDD (BR) /FEHH (1,200)
Reportable segment profit derived from Group’s AEER B MBAL 2 ATHE S HEA
external customers 1,096,470
Unallocated legal and professional fees, finance £2EEEREE£HX  MEMARE
cost and other operating expenses hEERY (143,660)
Taxation WIE (3,828)
Profit for the year REERR 948,987
Depreciation and amortisation on property and ¥R ZGERNHBEVEENTERE
equipment and other intangible assets 8 (135,076) (25,772) (160,848)
Bank interest income BAFNEERA 11,694 7,497 19,191
Reportable segment assets (including RS HEE (BERBEATNR
investment in associates and those identified ~ BNRWEEERBETHRINER
intangible asset at acquisition of YF Life, cash ZZ BE2RBEZEBENRTH
and cash equivalent and fixed bank deposits ~ BZR=EANRTELEH)
with original maturity over 3 months) 81,442,764 4,365,942 85,808,706
Additions to non-current segment assets during ERFRBIHEEMILE (FEE L
the year other than associates ) 257,028 3,890 260,918
Cash and cash equivalent and fixed bank RERREEEER %ﬂﬁ EBRSR=
deposits with original maturity over 3 months {8l AW E T ELHEH 1,880,711 2,412,756 4,293,467
Investment in associates REEARNRE - 30,074 30,074
Reportable segment liabilities (including those ~ AIH&EAHEE (BENEEERRE
identified deferred tax liabilities at acquisition Al AINELEHELEE)
of YF Life) (63449832 (4820726  (68,270,558)
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16 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16 7 &P & (#)
Reconciliation of segment assets and (b) PHEEREBHNHIER
liabilities
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets T REDEEE 96,734,401 85,808,706
Elimination of inter-segment asset D PEAEEER
transfer (8,500) (11,500)
Elimination of inter-segment K 85 5 75 FE U X
receivables (77,140) (70,363)
96,648,761 85,726,843
Goodwill [SES 1,825,562 1,825,562
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE 44 150
Consolidated total assets EHEERE 98,474,367 87,552,555
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities AiREDEHEE 78,649,770 68,270,558
Elimination of inter-segment I 85 05 T S K
payables (77,890) (73,663)
78,571,880 68,196,895
Tax payable FE A4 B 18 11,632 13,893
Consolidated total liabilities EHaBEEEE 78,583,512 68,210,788
Geographical segment information (c) #HEDIHEHR
The Group’s customers, operation and AEEWNEF REMNTHEEE
administration are mainly located in Hong ENREBMNER o @RI

(d)

Kong and Macao. Research and development
for financial technologies divisions are located
in PRC.

Information about major customers
No customer account for more than 10% of

the total revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

EHeMEBERAT
i

(d)

2 EBAL R B R RE o

FHREIEEFZEHR
BEEFERAEEZRE - -—F

tZRA=T-RLEFEZWHEAE
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17 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

268

Reclassification adjustments relating to
components of other comprehensive income

17

Hth 2 W &

Hitt2EKRSZAKB 2 NEREHNRD
AR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note HK$’°000 HK$°000
ioka FET FET
Debt securities classified as UAREEFEEHS
fair value through other Bt AHMEZEKE
comprehensive income: KBS 5
Changes in fair value recognised F£RERAN D AEBE
during the year EE (879,201) 1,194,458
Reclassification adjustments B AEBZWHFEETE
for amounts transferred to FoEAE:
profit or loss:
Net gains on disposal HE WS FE (45,861) (98,620)
Impairment losses REEIE 51,312 65,884
Others Hth (6,016) 4,400
Net movement in the fair FAZHMEZEKES
value reserve during the BRENAIAEBERE
year recognised in other BEFEH
comprehensive income (879,766) 1,166,122
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
iokd FET FET
Financial asset at fair value BREBELRUDAEEE
through profit or loss under EBH#FTAERS
overlay approach: HEmEE :
Changes in fair value recognised FRERZN A AEE
during the year EE 17,585 (32,967)
Reclassification adjustments & AEF W FEET
for amounts transferred to ENOBERE:
profit or loss:
Net losses/(gains) on disposal HERE (k&) F5 - =
Net movement in the fair FREHMBEZERES
value reserve during the BIRANAAEERE
year recognised in other B EEHE
comprehensive income 17,585 (32,967)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

17 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 17 HtbZ2mE W= (&)
(Continued)
Reclassification adjustments relating to Ht2EKWESERB S NEBEEH 2
components of other comprehensive income B (E)
(Continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Hrat FET FETT
Equity and other fund RBELEBAUAR

investment classified as fair EEFTERHESHT
value through profit or loss ABEBRNRERH A
under overlay approach: HEerE:

Changes in fair value recognised FRERN D AEE
during the year ZE 359,844 152,386

Reclassification adjustments EABZWHEETE
for amounts transferred to FoEAE:
profit or loss:

Net losses/(gains) on disposal HEEE (&) F8 - =

Deferred taxation IR FE 75 18 - —
Net movement in the fair FREHEZEKRSP

value reserve during the BRANAIAEBERE

year recognised in other BEFE

comprehensive income 359,844 152,386

Net movement in the fair value SREEMM2EKZE D
reserve during the year BRENAIAEBERE
under overlay approach B A
recognised in other
comprehensive income 377,429 119,419

EHEBEBMARAT
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18 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18 MERZE
Properties Office
leased for Leasehold  equipment and Computers Motor
ownuse  improvements furniture equipment vehicles Total
ERNEENE  RENREE  MORERZA ElRE L] it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
A1 Té1 741 -4 AT 41
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 H-E-%E-F-H 382,965 31,356 31,194 205,007 12 657,248
Addtions g 99,324 25,243 7218 129,088 - 260873
Write off and disposal BENRE (33,284) 1129) (159) (1,969) (126) (34,700)
Exchange alignment MRREEE - 460 200 180 - 840
M Decomber2®d  R-B-REfZASf-R LN T A . ]
At 1 January 2021 \-%--%-5-A 449,005 55,930 37,020 322,306 - 864,261
Additions g 140,324 54211 12,633 101,778 - 308,946
Write off and disposal BEnLE (85,425 (25,122) (8929) (16,719) - (136,19)
Exchange lignment MERAEER - 21 ® % - 449
Mt December2ti  R-=-RfoASt-R I . T i .
Accumulated depreciation and ZiTERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2020 H-E-%E-F-H 106,886 16,282 9,639 28387 12 161,920
Charge for the year REERH 121,436 10,698 6,169 18,081 - 151,384
Write off and disposal BENLE (26,040) (7,102) (1,359) (11,956) (726) (50,079)
Exchange alignment MERRAEER - 22 147 15 - 585
MitDecember2®)  R--RRPSASE-R N T T . R a3
At 1 January 2021 H-Bz-£-8-H 199,382 20,160 14,600 29,668 - 263,810
Charge for the year KEERH 138,757 19,835 707 2677 - 195,346
Wrie off and disposal BENLE (63,519) (25,060) (6,571) (16,710) - (133,854)
Exchange alignment MRREEE - 19 8 8 - mn
M3tDecember20t RSFS-R{ZASTOE N 1L | L L. L S, o 39814
Net carrying amount RaRE
At 31 December 2021 RZE=-E+ZB=1-f 249278 10147 21,625 364,737 - 711,787
At 31 December 2020 H-B-RF+A=1-R 249,623 3,710 2,420 292,638 - 600,451

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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18 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18 MEKRRKRE &)

Right of use asset EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use FREEERENEZEWER MWIREF
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BT :
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Ownership interests in leasehold land AT R grFA S8R E AE
and building held for own use with EXFMBEVMNFERE
remaining lease term of: e
— Less than 10 years —-+F R 249,278 249,623
Office equipment and furniture carried % & 37 & 5 A 51 BR A9 3%
at depreciated cost FENMXRE 10,003 13,439
Computers equipment carried at REMERARYIRHE K
depreciated cost By 1,435 3,119
260,716 266,181

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

SFABBENEEREERBRESMUT !

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Depreciation charge of right-of-use RENEEEINFERESR

assets by class of underlying asset ENHEEAR

Properties leased for own use BERNEEWE 138,757 121,436
Office equipment and furniture MAZBBHNRA 4,273 4,231
Computers equipment e B 2,311 2,202
145,341 127,869

EHEBEBMARAT
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18 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

18 MERRE (&)

Right of use asset (Continued) FERHEESE (&
2021 2020
=B=—% —=Z-%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABHNE 2,039 9,543

Expense relating to short-term leases EHEERHEMEENHEE

and other leases HENE A

Expense relating to leases of low-value KEEEEHRE (EHKE
assets, excluding short-term leases BEEEHRERIN) HEHN

of low-value assets ZH

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were HK$141,967,000 (2020: HK$99,800,000). This
amount is primarily related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities as of 31
December 2021 are set out in notes 30 and 39,
respectively.

As of 31 December 2021, there are no leases
subject to variable lease payment arrangement.

REE  FHAEEEE T 141,967,000
Bt (ZEZZ 4 : 99,800,000 T) °
HWEEEBRASETEEHFHERETE
TN ESEENSREERB

BN -E-_—F+-HA=+—HHE
BEeERHEAENEEESINHAIMMN
15 0 2 BIE A M sE304139 ©

B=z_Z_-F+-A=1+—H %%
B ABREUSHENRNERHFNES -

19 STATUTORY DEPOSITS 19 EEFXK
2021 2020
—B--45 —B-%fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Statutory deposits EEFR 4,579 5,721

The Group has deposited in the name of the
Director of Accounting Services with a bank a sum
of HK$1,553,000 (2020: HK$1,551,000) pursuant
to section 77(2)(e) of the Hong Kong Trustee
Ordinance and also with the exchanges and
clearing house.

All of the statutory deposits are expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

272

AREBEERBEETEB(IFTAELDETT2)
eFUEBRBEEREZORITMIZ
UREERFEA—%%% A1,553,000
BT (ZTEZZF % :1,551,0008 7t) HY
I o

R LEEERAPRSZR-FRKE -
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20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

20 RBMELFANRE

Aggregate information of associates that are not BRAMSEFAERNHEE ATNEREE
individually material: #
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'OOO
FET FET
Aggregate carrying amount of REEMBmERFERIMmS
individually immaterial associates W AREARWEE AR RE
in the consolidated financial #{E
statements 148,819 30,074
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEREZEBERTN
share of those associates’ HEE
Profit from continue operation FIE K E SR 740 303
Other comprehensive income Ht 2wk s 4,166 1,912
Total comprehensive income EH N EEEE 4,907 2,214
21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 AMBAR 2=
(a) Details of the subsidiaries principally (a) EXEREEXEEREEZHE

affected the results and assets of the

Group

The following list contains the details of
the Company’s subsidiaries as at which
principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

-

Proportion of ownership interest

TRAFIBAEENEE - EE
FEBEEAFENWE LA
Bo-REBEREN  FEHEBENR

itk 4 5-0dr]
Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
A LA BRARG/ERR  AREH  ARLE  AKELR
Pk Geny BRBRA (W) EREL el K5 TEEH
Yunfeng Asset Management Hong Kong 7,910,000 shares 100% = 100% Provision of assets management
Limited services
ERERERARLA B 7,910,000 & RUBEEERE
Yunfeng Securities Limited Hong Kong 158,000,000 shares 100% - 100% Securities broking
EREFERAA gE 158,000,000 & {3 b
Yunfeng Financial Markets Limited Hong Kong 125,000,000 shares 100% 100% - Securities broking, securities placing
and underwriting, and provision
of consultancy and advisory
services
ERCRTAERAR g 125,000,008 1. {3 FHEE FSRERRE BERR
EELY
EERESHEBERAR

B -FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

274

Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the

Group (Continued)

21 RHMELQ R 2R ()

(a) FEXELAREXEREEZHWE
DAFE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrERgstLhl
Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business  capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
AR LA BRORR /MR AREN  AXRE  AKELR
ARER Beny BRRA (W) ERER o] K8 IZEK
Youyu Insurance Consultancy Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - 100% Insurance agency and consultancy
Limited service
BARBRBEERLR g# 100R &% RERBREARY
Youyu eKeeper Services Company Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100% Provision of employee stock
Limited ownership plan administration
RARRRHEERAR &k v RUESIHREER
Youyu Smart Technologies Hong Kong 7,500,000 shares 100% - 100% Provision of financial technology
Limited services
FABENRERAT Bk 7,500,0008 1 3 RESRHMRY
Yunfeng Financial International  Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited
ERCRERERARAA &4 1RE# REER
Yuvan Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100% Investment holding
FEERAT g 1REH REER
Youyu Global Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% - Provision of administrative services
BARRERAA &8 1RR A RETHRE
YF Life Insurance International Hong Kong 3,716,000,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Long term assurance business
Limited
EBRRERERLR Bk 3,716,000,000% & 1 RREBREEY
Protective Capital (International) ~ Hong Kong 78,610,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
Limited
RRERRERRAR BB 78,610,000 A 13 RUGARE
YF Life Services Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
&8 AR RUGERE
YF Life Guardian Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
&8 2R RUEGESRE
YF Life Trustees Limited Hong Kong 73,000,000 shares 69.8% = 69.8% Provision of trustee services
EBNEERARAT Bk 73,000,000 & RUETRE

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the

Group (Continued)

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

21 RHMELQ R 2R ()

(a) FEXELAREXEREEZHWE
DAFE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

itk § §-3dr]
Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective  Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business  capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
A LA BRARG/ERR  AREH  AALE  AKELR
Pk Eeny BRBRA(W1) BhER o] K5 TEEH
YF Life Insurance Consultants Hong Kong 50,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of agency services to
Limited non-life insurers
EERBERERAR Bl 50,000% & nESBARARKRERE
YF Life Investors Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares 69.8% - 69.8% Provision of general services
EBNEERERAR B 5,000,000 3 RUGERE
YRERRRRELAERAT  PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Provision of advisory service,
(note 2) RMB70,000,000 marketing and promoting
Paid-up capital products and public relations
RMB48,022,624 services
IRERRRRELAERAD  HE AL ARH RUZARE  EHAREERRD
(Hii2) 70,000,000 8 LBERY
HEA: ARE
48,022,624
IREANEARAFMote )  PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Provision of internet and multimedia
RMB 4,000,000 systems and application
Paid-up capital development
RMB1,600,000
YREAREERAR (HZ3)  HE AR ARE ERENSRRZGNERRIHE
4,000,000
8% \RE
1,600,007
MITEABRNEERAT  PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Technological development
(note 3) RMB100,000,000 of computer software and
Paid-up capital hardware, technical consulting,
RMB8,010,000 technology services, database
and computer network services
MInEABRNEERARY P AMER: ARH 100% - 100% SRBMHRES2BHRY  HilE
(H3) 100,000,000 8 A RiRE  JEERERER
BEX: ARR B
8,010,0007
Majik Cayman GP 1 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US$1 each 100% = 100% Fund management
RERS 1REREEIXT BeER
ZRf
Majik Cayman GP 2 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US$1 each 100% - 100% Fund management
RERS 1RSREEIZR ESER
B
ERSREBERAR
—g-—fEg 275
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 AMBARIZHER (&)
(a) Details of the subsidiaries principally (a) FEFEXEEXEREEZHE
affected the results and assets of the NEFE ()

Group (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FERRELH

Particular of issued
Place of shares/registered Group’s
incorporation  and fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Held by a

Name of company and business  capital (note 1) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities

iMAIN  BRARG/EMR  AREH AKX AKELE

ARER Beny BRBE W) ERER K5 K8 IZEK
Majik Cayman SPV 3 Limited Caymans Island  Authorised capital 100% - 100% Investment holdings
US$50,000 divided common
into 2,500,000 share
preferred shares
and 2,500,000
ordinary shares.
Each share is at
US$0.01 par value
each. 250,100
common shares
and 247,092.27
preferred shares
issued
REHE REBA50,000% 7 » 100%E8R REER
752,500,000 %
1#12,500,000%
k- SREESA
0OIXTEE CF
7250,100R & B R
47,0902 27 B %
k
Majik Access USD Fund 1 L.P.  Caymans Island  US$114.2 million 65.7% - 65.7% Investment
REHE 112EET RE
Note 1:  The class of shares held is ordinary shares ket - MRBERBEI AERGZ
unless otherwise stated. HRREER -
Note 2:  The company is registered as a wholly Ktat2 Z A A= AR IR B B A 2 A
foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of NS BERE -
the PRC.
Note 3:  The company is registered as a limited BtaE3 ZARRBEPEEEZMB
liability company under the laws of the BREMFEDA
PRC.
Note 4: For the fund partnership entities, the Ktat4 : HRESEELE #ER
balance represents capital commitment REREBAHEBLEN
being made by limited partners to the B ARG ©

276

partnership.
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21 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 RBARzER (&)
(b) Information about material non-controlling (b) ERAREAFEZEREZZEHR

interest

TREIEEBRBEBENESR -
RZZB--5+-A=+—-R &
DRARAEEE - FEREAFER
BENMEAR - TREINNHH
EXBZAEEAQAEEEEE
AN E (BEREBRREENE

The following table lists out the information
relating to YF Life, the only subsidiary with
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”) as at
31 December 2021. The summarized financial
information presented below represents the
amounts including intangible assets identified

on acquisition date before any inter-company FEE)
elimination.
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
HK$°000 HK$'OOO
FET FET
NCI percentage FEREENE DT 30.2% 30.2%
Total assets EFW 92,846,628 81,442,764
Total liabilities BEH%E (74,185,300) (63,462,915)
Total net assets AR B EME 18,661,328 17,979,849
Net assets attributable to NCI R I P S R E 5,635,722 5,429,915
Goodwill attributable to NCI FERESELEEHSE 531,276 531,276
Carrying amount of NCI FEERES 2REME 6,166,998 5,961,191
Net earned premium and fee WHRERERARAFEE
income 5,155,195 4,264,282
Profit for the year REERF 924,671 1,094,939
Total comprehensive income %EH&_‘@ 681,479 1,989,174
Profit allocated to NCI palli e Hﬁ*&ﬁﬁzl 3 ) 279,251 330,672
Dividend paid to NCI iﬁ%#?ﬁﬂﬂémzﬂﬁ, - -
Cash flows from operating activities KZEFHEEMNBEESRE 3,894,472 2,641,621
Cash flows from investing activities REFZHELEMNBRERE (5,382,381) (5,513,177)
Cash flows from financing activities BB FHELEMNREHE 2,574,178 2,644,761

T EMEEERAT
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22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE 22 HERHMEKLEE
ASSETS
(a) Goodwill (a) BHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost %N
At 1 January and 31 December BR—B—HE
S, T=A=t—-B 1,829,046 | 1,829,046
Accumulated impairment loss I BEEE
At 1 January and 31 December R—BA—HBREK
e tT=A=t-H 3484 3484
Carrying amount REE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BAK
+=ZA=+—H 1,825,562 1,825,562

278

The recoverable amount of the cash
generating units containing goodwill or
intangible assets arose from the acquisition
of YF Life was determined based on the
value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses
cash flow projection which represents what
management believes is the best estimate of
what the cash generating units are able to
achieve in their business life. The Directors
determined the cash flow projection based
on past performance and their expectation
for market development. The Directors
believed any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount. Management
of the Group determines that there are no
impairments of its cash generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets.

In respect of insurance business, the
recoverable amount was determined based on
YF Life appraisal value, which consists of the
adjusted net worth plus the present value of
inforce business and the new business value
after cost of capital.

HWEERRRMELNHERNE

CEENRESEABUNTHRE S
BORBEEREETEEE ° &t
BEREERRSRETR - LIER
RPEEERRBECELEENEH
BREHPREAERNREMET ©
EXERBBEIRBRAEET SR
RNAHBEERESRERAN - EX
2RB REBRRNEFNSEATRE
ST ERAAEERRT
WmEE e AEBEEEREALY
EHEBNENEENREELEN
IR EBERE ©

PBREEBMS  JTREESHER
BEEBRRRILGEEEE  HhE
BERARFEMLENERERER
MBREARA RN EBREE -
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22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE 22 HENHEMEBEREEE (&)
ASSETS (Continued)
(a) Goodwill (Continued) (a) BEE (&

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill arises primarily in respect of the
Group’s insurance business. Goodwill is
tested for impairment by comparing the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit,
including goodwill, to the recoverable amount
of that cash-generating unit. If the recoverable
amount of the unit exceeds the carrying
amount of the unit, the goodwill allocated to
that unit shall be regarded as not impaired.
The recoverable amount is the value in use
of the cash-generating unit unless otherwise
stated.

The value in use is determined by calculating
as an actuarially determined appraisal value,
based on embedded value of the business
and the present value of expected future
new business of the cash-generating unit.
The present value of expected future new
business, covering a ten year period (in line
with industry practice), is based on financial
budgets approved by management. The
financial budgets reflect management’s best
estimate of future profit based on historical
experience and best estimate operating
assumptions such as premium and expenses.

The key assumptions used in the embedded
value calculations include risk discount rate,
investment returns, mortality, morbidity,
persistency, expenses and inflation. In the
majority of instances these assumptions are
aligned to those assumptions detailed in
Section “Embedded Value”. The present value
of expected future new business is calculated
based on a combination of indicators which
include, among others, taking into account
recent production mix, business strategy,
market trends and risk associated with the
future new business projections. The risk
discount rates that is used in the embedded
value of the business and the present value of
expected future new business is 8.75% (2020:
8.75%).

72 28 6l 18 )

BMEIERANEENRERER -
BRESRTELBMUNREEE (8
EEHE)EZRTELENMMNATR
Bl FRETLER  HEBETRE
A o MRZEBAR AW E £ 2EE
PZEMNKREEER Ao kA&
BEUNBEEREARBE K5H
HEAN  JRECEHEAREELSE
THEREE -

EREERREXEBHRNSEEM
ReEEETWEPRRHELHN
RE BBRERENFEEEM
STEBEN - AHMARRMEZNR
ERENEEEMENMBESE -
WikE T FHR (FETEEM) -
MREERRT EEEREE LK
RMHELEZENEASHRRNE
EfEE - HARRAMBHREME -

RNEBEFETEANEERR
BREEBUBRER - REEK KT
RBRER-FEME -BERANEER
IR - ERZHEBERT » BERR
BINESEE] MBS PFRA L
BR—H - AHMARRHEBNEE
ERE-ZIESITESHN B
LESER (PR &INE
EAS  EBER mHSBZUR
BE R SR T £ 75 TROR AR BA A9 AL B o 3%
EBHANSEENBBRRHE
BOREREANARBRRES
8.75%(=ZF=FF :8.75%) °
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22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE 22 BHERHMWEFRLEE (&)
ASSETS (Continued)
(b) Other intangible assets (b) HMEBERLEE
Trade Trading Club Computer
name rights ~ membership software Total
L XAk E4Pes ERas Y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

-2 FEL FET 22 FEL

At cost S
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEE-A-H 78,910 4,000 2,930 42,530 128,370
Additions e - - - 45 45
Written off Hed - - - (31,291) (31,291)
Exchange alignment NERENEZE - - - 49 49
At 31 December 2020 and RZZ2Z2E+ZA=1-8

1 January 2021 k=%=-%-f-H 78,910 4,000 2,930 11,333 97,173
Additions BE = - - 1,724 1,724
Written off Hed - - - (3,759) (3,759)
Exchange alignment NERENEEE - - - 28 28
At31 December 2021 WF--F1-A=t-B B0 - 290 e %172
Accumulated amortisationand B3t E#EAHE :

impairment
At 1 January 2020 R-ZEZEE-F-H = 3,500 - 21,072 30,572
Charge for the year REETH - - - 6,538 6,538
Written off Hd - - - (23,468) (23,468)
Exchange alignment NERENEER - - - 14 14
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-EE+-A=1-H

1 January 2021 k-E--£-f-H - 3,500 - 10,156 13,656
Charge for the year REELH - - - 618 618
Written off Wi - - - (3,759) (3,759)
Exchange alignment NERENEER - - - 9 9
At 31 December 2021 \_E_-E£+-F=1-H - 3,500 - 7,030 10,530
Carrying amount EHfE
At 31 December 2021 \ZB--E+ZA=1-H 78,910 500 2,930 2,302 84,642
At 31 December 2020 R-2Z2E+ZA=1-H 78910 500 2,930 1177 83,517

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
280 Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

22 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Other intangible assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
two (2020: two) trading rights in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and one (2020: one) trading right
in the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”), of which one
trading rights in the Stock Exchange and one
trading right in the Futures Exchange were
fully amortised as at 31 December 2010. The
Group has one (2020: one) club membership
with indefinite useful life similar to the trading
rights.

Trade name acquired in the acquisition of YF
Life, which is subject to annual impairment
test. The relief-from-royalty approach is
adopted to determine the fair value of trade
name. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group reassessed
the assumptions of this approach. As at 31
December 2021, the valuation of the Chinese
trade name is determined based on the
relevant value of new business estimated by
YF Life. The trade name is considered by
the management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trade name will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

23

24

282

VALUE OF BUSINESS ACQUIRED 23 WEXKEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’OOO
FET FET
At 1 January R—H—H 9,012,571 10,057,446
Amortisation for the year REEHEHE (163,450) (324,472)
o BB491 9,732,974
Effect of shadow accounting allocated & FE32EED AEBER
to fair value reserve BHNEE 476,792 (720,403)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 9,325,913 9,012,571
DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS 24 EEREEBHLK
2021 2020
ZEI-F -t 3:3
Insurance  Investment Insurance  Investment
contracts  contracts Total ~ contracts  contracts Total

REEE REAR B8 GReE RERH aE
HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$(000
FEr _ TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx

Midanuay ] i 11T M2 W05 1,931,107 RGeS
Amount deferred BLLE 2104659 20483 2,134,142 1534394 26131 1,560,525
Amortisation for the year AEEHH (609,516) 604 (608,912  (493,345) 983 (492,362)

1,495,143 30,087 1,525,230 1,041,049 21,114 1,068,163

Effect of shadow accounting allocated e PREMBERENTE

to fair value reserve 42,821 6,519 49,346 (235,396) (30,550)  (265,946)
At 31 December R+t=A=t-H 3,455,112 50,661 3,505,778 1,917,142 14,095 1,931,197
The amount of deferred acquisition costs BIEREEER AN 2SS EETTR —F&
expected to be recognised as expense after Eﬁmiﬁ?yﬁﬁm 879,091,000/ Tt (Z & =
more than one year is HK$2,879,091,000 (2020: FF 1 1,459,912,0008 T) °

HK$1,459,912,000).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # %) )

25 INVESTMENTS 25 ®’E
At fair value At fair
through other  value through
comprehensive profit or
income loss Amortised cost Total
NOABEGE MNAAEBEHRE
BEZ®FN  BEZHHA
Ap2E%E B BERK an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
2021 —E--F
Debt securities: ERES
- Unlisted o A 22,175,259 2,715,947 24,696,256 49,587,462
Mortgage loans BHER - - 5,995,262 5,995,262
. 217529 2715947 30691518 95,962,724
Equity securities: B&E5
- Listed -t - 371,498 - 371,498
-Unlisted fotefg) tnbEg) - e - ey
R - (A L - 790481
Fund Investment and others: ESAHMRE
-Unisted otefe) HLvEY) - e - emam
Unit trusts: BUET:
“Unlisted - R - Gests0 - 8651880
Total b 22,175,259 15,029,527 30,691,518 67,896,304
Market value of listed securities LHEENTSE - 371,498 - 371,498

EHSHEBERAR
—B=—FEH
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Bt 35 R AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ¥l 5)

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®RE(#E)
At fair value At fair
through other  value through
comprehensive profit or
income loss  Amortised cost Total
NAAEEHE UAAEERE
BEZH:;A  BHEHHA
A2 ENE & BRERA an
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 FET &7 AT
2020 St 3:3
Debt securities: EEES
- Unlisted o A 20,608,849 2,540,509 21,503,917 44,653,275
Mortgage loans BRER - - 6,420,273 6,420,273
S 0608849 2540509  27.924190 51073548
Equity securities: EnEs .
- Listed -t - 287,363 - 287,363
-Unisted frotefg) - ko) 809 2798 - 101,767
e 8029 st - 389,150 _
Fund Investment and others: ESAHIRE
~Unisted otefe) RLRE) S ases T ASTE
Unit trusts: BUET:
“Unlisted - HE® S 1120, L - Ao
Total &% 20,686,878 14,196,636 27,924,190 62,807,704
Market value of listed securities LHEENTSE - 287,363 - 287,363

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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25 INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

In 2018, the Group has entered a strategic fund
management agreement with another well-established
financial institution. By sharing the operating and
financing decision making power through the
agreement, the Group is no longer considered to
be the principal of Majik Access USD Fund 2 LP.
As a result, the Group elects to measure its 34.04%
investment holding in Majik Access USD Fund 2 LP
held through a venture capital organisation, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary, at fair value through profit
or loss as management measures the performance
of this jointly controlled entity on a fair value basis
and exempted from applying the equity method. The
valuation process and fair value information for the
joint venture measured at fair value through profit or
loss set out in note 5. During the year, the Group has
made an injection of approximately HK$18,693,000
to the joint venture. As of 31 December 2021,
the carrying value of the jointly controlled entity
amounted to approximately HK$133,000,000 (2020:
HK$107,000,000).

Investments of HK$13,382,007,000 (2020:
HK$7,542,647,000) have been pledged in favour of
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to guarantee the
technical reserves in accordance with the Macau
Insurance Ordinance.

The portion of the investments that is expected to be
recoverable within one year is HK$11,966,319,000
(2020: HK$11,517,210,000) and the portion that is
expected to be recoverable after more than one year is
HK$55,929,985,000 (2020: HK$51,290,494,000).

EHeMEBERAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 ®BE (&)
Bz

(@ RZBE-NE AEEHRZ-RZAHN
SRKESETERESEERE B
BRrEs EREENPBREE NEH
RATEEEAREETESENES
A Bt REFREZUAABENER
HE Bt ABZN A ATEEBERSE
N (BEZENBLAA)BFEREA
REEETEE2EM34.04%1RE  BAE
BEEUAARBEEENEZARESE
BREE HEEARBRRAERS L -4
ERENGEERAERAABEEHNUA

H5FE - RER  AEECBEERE
JEE#18,693,0008 T - BEE=-—F
+TZA=+-—B HEEZEHEENEREA
B4 %£133,000,0008 T (ZZE=FF :
107,000,000 7T ) °

(b) H%13,382,007,000/8 Tt (=B = FF :
7,542,647,0007%8 7T) K 3% & B 3K 3 AR Y
SREER URBRB(RRERLZ
FIEMEH M EES -

) Bt EFERTUREHNRERD B
11,966,319,0008 T (ZE = F & :
11,517,210,0008 7t) » B Z R —F %
] Uy B /Y 2B 2 £55,929,985,00058 7T (=
T =T 1 51,290,494,00058 T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

25

286

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@

The following table set out the credit quality analysis
of financial assets measured at FVOCI (recycling) and
at amortised cost. Unless specifically indicated, the
amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts.
For explanations of the terms ‘12-month ECL’, ‘lifetime
ECL’ and ‘credit-impaired’, see note 2(t).

25 ®RE(#E)

wsz -

(C)

(#48)

TRHEITULAAEEFTEEEZS
AHMEE WS (ATEE) K& L ##ERA
SENETRMEENFEEEEDN - BRER
FEASN  BRAIRPATEEDREMAE -
HRMFEIRF12EAFEHREHEKR]
(ZEFEAANGERERINERLER
RREINERES RHE2() -

021 00
o8-k tE0Ef
Investment grade Non-investment grade Investment grade Non-investment grade
R&gH FRERR RERH HRER
Lifetime ECL ~ Lifetime Lifetime ECL ~ Lifetime Lifefime ECL ~ Lifetime Lfetime ECL  Lifetime
{2-month ot credit- ECLcredit-  12-month not credit- ECL credit- f2-month  notoredit- ECLcredit-  12-month  notcredit-  ECL credit-
ECL  impared  impaired ECL impairment  impaired Total ECL  impared  impared ECL  impaiment  impared Total
BERES EEpES BERES EEpEE BREE 2fiRES BRES  BfiRES
REERE: RBEREX BEEREL REERER EBERRX BBERRZ EHCRE REEREX
AMBA -ARE -BRE ARNBA -ARE -ERY #R0BR  -ARE -ERE AA0BR -RBERR -ERt
EHCREX  ERWE  CRME EBGREX  ERNE  ERME B BEGRER GRNE  GRNE BEGREX BE EREE £
HKS 000 fér
Financial assetsat ~ HBHAATENS
amortised cost REE
Unlsted debt securtes % £ R 25 24,562,238 4,85 - - 1630 19 2479542 21316317 103645 124211 BM7 2157260
Mortgage loan itiE 4,865,375 - - - 1107389 U4 6007018 5,285,860 1015728 10339 3301 6436218
Gross camying amount EHAE 9,447613 4,855 - - 126970 34363 30,756,560 26,602,177 119378 27540 50,748 28,008,838
Less: Loss dlowence . BXEE (47,049) (139) - - (6949 (10005 (65042 (35,001) (1582 (10937 (628 (86
Amortsed cost BEAK B0 4716 - - 12700 2345 0691518 26566276 117790 26608 2850 2794190
Financial assetsat ~ WAABEEEL
FVOC! frecycling) ~ BHFALZH2E
bi(THE)
BEE
Unlisted deot securfes % L BREH %R
goss caryngamownt 48 18572444 105,067 18020 - 2000462 143431 20878124 13639898 2606625 208559 62,087 16,517,169
Less: Lossalowance - BXER (18,765) (7485) 493) - (B4 (ot (157048 (31,169) (f7om) (19919 (757)  (10573%6)
Amortised cost Bipa 18,953,679 97,562 11521 - 200104 5,204 20721076 13,608,729 2580548 188,640 U516 16411433
Camyngamout-  EEE - AAEE
fair valug 0033869 116330 %842 - 1,935,881 62,331 22175259 17,518,985 2814967 230026 44,901 20,608,849
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 ®RE(#E)

Notes: (Continued) Biat - (48)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit - credit -
12-month ECL impairment impaired Total
EERED BEAFES
AR120ER  BEGREX-  EREREA-
BBGEREL  ABEGRNE  CREGREE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAz Fién FAz 223
Debt Securities at amortised cost: NEERATRNERES
Balance as at 1 January 2020 RIZZBE-A-AMLE 6,493 2,697 1,110 10,300
Net increase in loss allowance recognised in EERANBARELFRANG 1RE
current year, net of those derecognised upon ERALBANBAE
settlement 23,957 7,433 27,012 58,402
Balance as at 31 December 2020 ZECERETCAST-BNAR 30,450 10,130 28,122 68,702
Net increase/(decrease) in loss allowance ”‘ﬂ&%ﬁﬂﬁ%'ﬁ e FEEM/ ()
recognised in current year, net of those B NREERALRANEAE
derecognised upon settlement 16,377 (3,678) (28,116) (15,417)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 R-BZ-F+-A=t-ANEH 46,827 6,452 6 53,285
Mortgage loan at amortised cost: NEERATRNERER:
Balance as at 1 January 2020 RIZZBE-A-AMLE 2,200 = - 2,200
Net increase in loss allowance recognised in EERANBARESFREANG  1RE
current year, net of those derecognised upon ERALBANBAE
seftlement 4833 807 8,106 13,746
Balance as at 31 December 2020 ZECRETCAST-BHAR 7,083 807 8,106 15,046
Net (decrease)/increase in loss allowance “ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ’]?ﬁ%'ﬁ HERE (Y / b=y
recognised in current year, net of those B NREERALRANEAE
derecognised upon settlement (6,811) (17) 2,193 (4,189)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 REBZ-F+ZA=T-AGH 202 636 10,899 11,757
Debt Securities at fair value through other NAREBETEERSBT ARG 2 EANE
comprehensive income WERES
Balance as at 1 January 2020 RIEZBE-A-ANGE 7,418 21,569 10910 39,892
Net increase/(decrease) in loss allowance BERANEARESTEEM/ (5D)
recognised in current year, net of those B NREERALEINEAE
derecognised upon settlement 40,833 (1,650) 26,661 65,844
Balance as at 31 December 2020 REBZBETZA=T-ANGH 48,246 19919 37,571 105,736
Net (decrease)/increase in loss allowance EERINEXERSTHEHD) /M
recognised in current year, net of those B NREERALRANEAS
derecognised upon settlement (29,481) 26,014 54,719 51,312
Balance as at 31 December 2021 REBEZ-E+ZA=1-ANESR 18,765 45,933 92,350 157,048

EHSREBARAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®RE(#E)
Notes: (Continued) Kzt - (&
()  The maturity profile of the Group’s debt securities and ) AEEHNEEIFFRERREVRIRNE
loans and receivables is as follows: HBROT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Fixed maturities due in [E 7 2 #A B pR
-1 year or less —-1EREE 818,831 2,556,450
-1 to 5 years — =55 5,721,132 8,100,668
- 51to 10 years —5Z10%F 10,313,435 11,017,351
— More than 10 years —10F L £ 32,734,064 22,978,806
49,587,462 44,653,275
Mortgage loans due in R E SR EI B R
-1 year —1%F 142,601 172,844
- 2 years —2%F 740,026 195,744
- 3 years — 3% 358,169 778,944
— 4 years — 4% 686,309 362,620
-5 years —54F 1,012,788 724,418
- More than 5 years —5F L k£ 3,055,369 4,185,703
5,995,262 6,420,273
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

Interests in collective investment schemes

Included in financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss on the consolidated
statement of financial position are certain
investments in collective investment schemes
which have been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls these schemes.
These collective investment schemes include
investments in unit trusts and limited liability
partnership established by third parties. These
schemes provide the Group with a variety of
investment opportunities through managed
investment strategies.

Owing to the passive nature of these
investments, the maximum exposure to loss
from these interests is limited to the associated
equity price risk (see note 5) and the capital
commitments. The maximum exposure to loss,
which represents the maximum loss that the
Group could be required to report as a result of
its involvement with these collective investment
schemes regardless of the probability of the
loss being incurred, is equivalent to the carrying
amount of these investments (see note 5).

In addition, the Group’s subsidiary, YF Life
Trustees Limited is the sponsor of Mass
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (‘MPF
scheme’) as specified in the respective trust
deeds. Management fee and trustee fee
income that the Group recognised in profit or
loss in return for the administration services
provided to MPF Scheme that the Group
sponsored amounted to HK$37,466,000 (2020:
HK$28,452,000) for the year.

The policyholders invest directly into such MPF
scheme, as such, the Group did not transfer any
of its own assets into these schemes during the
reporting period. Management actively monitor
the compliance with the respective regulation
requirements in order to minimize losses arising
from reputational risk and regulatory compliance
risk.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 RE(#
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) RESREFINES

(i)

EEEREMBRRRPUARE
EfEEHSHFARENERE
EEEEEREMAETHELER
g ELERENRIESRERE
PURERI R R ORTE AR 5 L5
MEBFRZ - EEESREIE
BERE=ZFREINEMLEEMAER
EXARLENRE - SLFTEE
BEEREXBRASERHEER
EHE -

HRAZERENKE M - ELF=E
B9 B K8 K B i O 2 PR A AR BA Y
REER R (SRMES) MEAR
Ao BRABLEABEEAEER
SHELESREEMEZ RN
BRAREBX TWAEEBRANARE
RPN ZRRAEERELEREN
SREE (2 BEMEES5) o

o AEENHBLR -BER
AARDABEEETRZA PSS
M RZREMERABEE TS ([RE
TEEDHBEN - AEBEES
TREIANEEBERZITIAER £
75 U A 7 B2 [ 3R 1 SR AR 5 &)
2 417 BUAR 7% 1Y [l % %337,466,000
BT (ZEZ=ZFF 128,452,000/
JT) e

REFEAEERERZBRE
) Bl AEERNERE AL E
EEHENEEEBEZSHE &
EEEREEHEAREEERNSG
BER - BRI &2 E e
EERERTRNEK -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

25

290

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

The unlisted equity security under FVOCI
(non-recycling) is perpetual capital issued by China
CITIC Bank International Limited registered in Hong
Kong and engaged in banking business. The Group
designated its investment in the perpetual capital at
FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investment is held for
strategic purposes. The investment was disposed
during the year. Dividend of HK$3,307,000 was
received on this investment during the year (2020:
HK$3,294,000).

At year end, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets being accounted for under the overlay
approach are shown as below.

25 ®RE(#E)

Bt (4&)

(9)

URAREEFEEAESFH A ARMEE
WS (PED) NELETRAZSRAE
EBEMARERITEBNRERTE
BMERQXBDKEER - AEE G HE K
,.;‘QZ!SE’JE‘Q?EE?%U\’A uf’fﬁ#zﬂ

I%EiixﬁxetHR‘ﬂHﬁE E’J%EE’J ° a%x
ERFAHE - FR - WIERESDWEUR
83,307,000 5t (ZZFE == : 3,294,000
BIT) °

RER REBEABREAENLIEE
TREENRESH|MMTIR

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET

Financial assets measured at FVPL DAREBEFEEHEEEHTTA

EHEENERmERE
Unlisted equity/partnership fund iR ABESRE

investment 2,174,420 1,814,439
Unlisted unit trust investment Fk EmEMNET 1,367,731 871,781
Unlisted debt securities FETMEBHES 2,541,127 2,547,879
Listed securities EHmEE 119,057 287,363
6,202,335 5,521,462
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B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

25 INVESTMENTS (Continued) 25 ®RE(#E)
Notes: (Continued) izt (#E)
(h)  (Continued) (h)y (#&)
For financial assets at FVPL being accounted under HRAUBEELAABRARNU A ABES
the overlay approach, the amounts charged to the EHHBEHFAEHERNEMEE -
consolidated income statements reported with and BENERFEFEEENREBZFAEN
without overlay adjustments for the year ended are BRT  EEHABERFPISHERMNT

stated as below:

31 December 2021

R-E=-£+-A=1-A
Overlay ~ Under HKFRS 9
Under approach (adjusted by Under
HKFRS 9 adjustments  overlay approach) HKAS 39
REERNE
REERHE REEHHS REERS
BEEAHR BER%T (BE18%) 285398
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET &R 7T FET
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) of fair ~ REEEAAABEFEALEHH A ER
value through profit o loss financial asset under ~ MEBEEDERRALENE/ (B%):
overlay adjustment on:
- Unlisted partnership fund investment ~FImEBESRE 318,976 (318,976) - -
- Unlisted unit trust investment and listed securities —# EmEMETR L% 40,868 (40,868) - -
- Unlisted debt securities -FInEEES 17,585 (17,585) - -
Total BE 377,429 (377,429) - -

31 December 2020
RZBZBE+-F=+-H
Overlay  Under HKFRS 9

Under approach (adjusted by Under
HKFRS 9 adjustments  overlay approach) HKAS 39
REFRHE
REZRHE REEDE0K REBBEH
REERE EER%L (BEtaE) E|E308
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
FiEn AL FEL &L
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) of fair ~ REEEAAAEEHEAAEHH A ER
value through profit o loss financial asset under ~ MEBEEDERRALENE/ (B%):
overlay adjustment on:
- Unlisted partnership fund investment - ITABESRE 62,982 (62,982) - -
- Unlisted unit trust investment and listed securities 3L HEfEXR LHE% 89,404 (89,404) - -
- Unlisted debt securities - LnERES (32,967) 32,967 - -
Total 25 119,419 (119,419 - -
ERSRERBRAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

26 ADVANCE REINSURANCE PREMIUMS

26 ANBRBRE

Analysis of movement in advance reinsurance ENBREREZE DN
premiums

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
At 1 January R—HB—H 1,289,587 1,455,458
Other movements Hith % & (11,688) (165,871)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,277,899 1,289,587

Advance reinsurance premiums are expected to be
recovered within one year.

27 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE
RECEIVABLES

ANBREBREBADBIR-FAKD -

27 BREERBRBEIERX

2021 2020

—g-—% —Z-=F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Loans to policyholders MREFEAFEHNER 3,583 2,795
Direct premium receivables FEREEZERE 6,287 4,581
Reinsurance receivables FE U AR B BR X 6,766,898 3,748,377

6,776,768 3,755,753

At 31 December 2021, none of the insurance and
reinsurance receivables were past due or impaired
(2020: none).

At 31 December 2021, the amount of insurance
and reinsurance receivables expected to be settled
after more than one year is HK$6,172,969,000
(2020: HK$3,467,147,000).

292

R-ZB-Z—F+-A=+—H  BR&KE
ENBRERRIRBHABME (=ZF

7N

R-ZZBE-_—F+=-A=+—H: BHR
—FREBFHNEVRRERBREIRIH
£ %876,172,969,000/8 7T (ZE=ZF :
3,467,147,000& 7T) °
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B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND 28 HEWRR KR EFTWA
ACCRUED INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other accounts receivable arising from EH&ELES W EHA
securities brokerage: FEURBR X
- Cash clients —-BHEERF 38,063 71,074
- Margin clients - REEEF 5,728 10,673
- Clients for subscription of - I TERBHRNER
new shares in IPO - 10,000
- Clearing house, brokers, -BE REwm EEE
fund managers and dealers BANRZZ®E 29,778 60,560
73,569 152,307
Other accounts receivable arising BHARBEBEREEEN
from consultancy and H i fE W BR X
advisory services 1,134 1,134
Other service fees receivables HibFE W RS & 6,762 7,228
81,465 160,669
Less: allowance for credit losses o E B K (1,934) (1,791)
79,531 158,878
There is no balance of other accounts receivable BERERARNISEZHAEENAZAR
from consultancy and advisory services for AR RN EMENERERGRIEAS o
on-going advisory projects which have not been
billed.

The fair value of other accounts receivable
approximates its carrying amount.

bW IR 2 A A BEEAREEMN

ij: i
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28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND 28 HMtEWERAKRETWRA (&)
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)
(a) Ageing analysis of other accounts (a) HEBWERRZERRD N
receivable
The ageing analysis of other accounts KR E B R 2 H fth FE W BR F=X (F0BR
receivable net of allowance for credit losses EHABX)REITAOT :
as of the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—fF C"E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Curent R 74,700 | 154,912
Less than 1 month past due BHEA LT 855 1,711
1 to 3 months past due BHI1Z3@ A 1,934 2,033
More than 3 months past due BHASE A WL £ 2,042 222
Amounts past due BHSEE 4,831 3,966
79,531 158,878
The Group has procedures and policies REEREREFRBEFLEER
to assess the client’s credit quality and FrEEEE WREREFZE
defines credit limits for each client. All client ERZE - TEENEFZ2EERE
acceptance and credit limit are approved by ERFEALEEMZAGRBERS
designated approvers according to the client’s F2iEREH -

creditworthiness.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
294 Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)

(b) Other accounts receivable which are past

due but not impaired

Included in the Group’s other accounts
receivable balance are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,831,000
(2020: HK$3,966,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not made provision for impairment
loss.

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
amount due from cash clients which are past
due but not impaired represented client trades
which are unsettled beyond the settlement
date.

There are no other accounts receivable from
corporate clients (2020: Nil) and amount of
HK$4,831,000 of other fee receivable (2020:
HK$3,966,000) which are past due but not
impaired. These represent other accounts
receivable arising from provision of corporate
finance, consultancy and advisory services
and other financial services which have not
yet been settled and aged by their invoice
date. No impairment loss was provided for
these balances as these clients are trade
counterparties with sound credit rating and/or
reputation.

EHeMEBERAT
i

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

28 Hitb W AR R BT A (&)
(b) TEMERREZH U ARRK

AEBZHMERERSGECRER
HE#{E 54,831,000 T (Z2=F
fF : 3,966,00078 ju) 2 H fib FE W BR
o ZEREBRBEHRCT B
EZI&%jﬁﬁﬁdtwﬁtﬂﬁﬁéﬂéﬁé

BE-B-—F+=A=+-AK
—B-BE+-A=+—H %A
HER LR 2 S MAHE KA
BIER  REREEF 22 ME
SORLAEL P U B 30 B 5 972
REMZEFRR -

RERBEERF 2 HMBYERR
(ZZ2ZEF 1 ) » 5%4,831,000
BITHEBRERRERMERSE
A (ZZ =% :3,966,000/% )
ERMALERE B BARE
RHEAMSBAREEE 2 ERYER
FoHRBHZAHEANDRBER
CEB -ARZEEFREENR
R/BRBERF2XZHF  HI
ERZERBEHRESERE -

295



Notes to the Financial Statements

BB SRR MY R
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28 OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)

(c)

(d)

296

Impairment of other accounts receivable

The Group has a policy for allowance for
credit losses which is based on the evaluation
of collectability, ageing analysis of accounts
and management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collaterals and the past
collection history of each client.

The movement of the allowance for life time
credit impaired losses during the year is as
follows:

28 HttEWARR

(c)

xR BT WA (&)

H th P& 1 Bk 3K 2 Rl 1B

AEEREERERBEZEE
BRABER AW E MR - BRIB 2
REROIMREEEHREFZE
2R R RIBE W R 8 2
RERH-

FAREFEHABEABRARZE
REERARERRBEEZBUOT

2021 2020

—E=- - ﬂi — ? = qE

HK$’°000 HK$'OOO

FET FET

At 1 January K—HA—H 1,791 2,743

Provision for impairment CRARMEEE 2 EE

loss recognised 143 156

Amount recovered during the year &FRUE £ 58 - (550)

Amount written off EHEESEE - (558)

At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 1,934 1,791

Amount of HK$800,000 (2020: HK$658,000) 800,000/ JTE (ZE2 T F
relates to credit impaired other accounts 658, 000;% TS REARBSFERS

receivable arising from the business of
dealing in securities. HK$1,134,000 (2020:
HK$1,134,000) relates to credit impaired other
accounts receivable arising from the business
of consultancy and advisory services.

Balance with related parties

At 31 December 2021, the balance of
other service fee receivables includes
fund management fee of approximately
HK$561,000 (2020: HK$2,337,000) due from a
joint venture of the Group.

(d)

hJI

e
BmEENREHBRNEHMWE
W BRRK © 1,134,000 T (Z B =&
% :1,134,000/8 T) RIEMBKRE
B2 AR RBEEREEENHAM
FEW ARG -

EERAME A £ 2 B8R

RZZE-_—F+=H4 H

HEWRBENEHREREY

A561,0008 T (ZEE =&

2 337, 00038 Jt) HY FE Y AR &£ [
EhENESEHES o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

29 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 29 HttEWFIE - RERFANRIE

PREPAYMENT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Hrat FET FET
Utility and rental deposits KEBREREZS (i) 50,637 46,549
Loans to agents and staff mMRERETIFEEHN
B 18,219 19,723
Accrued investment income T #&E WA 612,792 524,004
Other receivable from Hih e — XK B A7)
non-controlling shareholders FERBRNAKIA
of a subsidiary 6,644 8,504
Prepayment, other deposits FEMARIE HttiRE R
and receivables FE R FX 18 167,677 265,483
Derivative financial instruments T4 €@ I A 37,059 99,028
893,028 963,291
Less: provision for impairment 5 © H b F& U FRIE RUE S
of other receivable BoEE (ii) (8,410) (8,652)
884,618 954,639

Notes: HaE -

(i)  The amount of utility and rental deposits expected () XEBRHEARSHESIER-—FRKE
to be recovered after more than one year is K £ %8 527,316,000 T (ZE=ZF :
HK$27,316,000 (2020: HK$37,575,000). 37,575,000/ 7T) °

(i)  Impairment of other receivables (i) HtuEREARE
Other receivable of HK$8,410,000 (2020: 5 #8,410,000 8 T (Z B - & F :
HK$8,652,000) is fully impaired as the recoverability 8,652,000/ t) MEMEWKIEE 2 &
of the balance is considered uncertain after credit BE BAEEBETEEFLERS
assessment performed by management. EREEAY AT UR B 1 R AE ©
The movement of the allowance for credit losses FRAZEHEBASHWNT :
during the year is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—f et St -3

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January w—A—H 8,652 8,232
(Reversal)/provision of impairment ERARMEREEZ (EE) #E

loss recognised (429) 4,291

Amount written off EHESEE - (3,900)

Exchange impact EHEE 187 29

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 8,410 8,652

(iii)  Except for those mentioned above in (i), all of the other
receivables are expected to be recovered within one

year.
EHOMEBERAT
—-——FEH

(i) BRESX()FTAE D - BT A E At FE WO FE 5

EE—FRKD -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 REeRFALZEER  REHRS
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=EEANEHRRITFRMELT
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK BHRE-GEERBIERF
BALANCE - TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂ:‘ = 7 = f'E
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET FET
Bank balance - trust and MITHE-—EER
segregated accounts BARE
Deposit with bank BITEX 779,886 747,995
Less: impairment allowance B OB EEE (iii) (154) (154)
(i) 779,732 747,841
Fixed bank deposits REEHRZA=EA K
with original maturity RITEHEFER
over 3 months
Deposit with bank IRITIFRK 1,060,574 236,733
Less: impairment allowance B OREEE (iii) - -
1,060,574 236,733
Cash and cash equivalents BHERBEESEEER
Deposit with bank RITER (i) 9,900 150
Fixed bank deposits REHRLR=EAKN
with original maturity IRITEHFR
less than 3 months 1,252,421 2,522,058
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERES 2,762,268 1,534,640
Less: impairment allowance B R ERERE (iii) (114) (114)
Cash and cash equivalents e B AR R R AT R Y
in the statement of HERBRESEEER
financial position 4,024,475 4,056,734
Notes: Kiat -
(i) The Group maintains segregated accounts with (i) REBRRATKERIBZERE » LUIF

authorised institutions to hold clients’ money arising
from its normal course of business of the regulated
activities. The cash held on behalf of clients is
restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures

Ordinance.

(ii) The Group has made deposit with a bank as security (ii)
deposit for bank overdraft facilities.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 RERBELEEEE REHRS
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=ZEANEHRITERMBRIT
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK BRE-EERBIKRFE (#)
BALANCE - TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Biat - (48)
(i)  During the period, the movement of 12-month ECL iy HARKIEAEHEABLABEED
provision is as follows: mT
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 268 268
Reversal of impairment loss recognised SRR EREZRE - =
Amount written off SRk - =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 268 268
(ivy The Group has pledged fixed deposits of (ivy AEBEE#HE727,089,000/8 T (=F
HK$727,089,000 (2020: HK$309,648,000) to banks —Z £ : 309,648,000 ) M E E 17X
in favour of the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to EHABRMAEREER  UWRFIZRBUR
guarantee the technical reserves in accordance with PR EBIENE R AT -

the Macau Insurance Ordinance.
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BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

(a)

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 RERRLEEEE REHRS
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=ZERNEBPRITERMNERIT
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK BE—EENREBIYEREFR (&)
BALANCE - TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation to liabilities arising from (a) HABEENNRBETHEENE
financing activities for disclosure purpose BETHER
The table below details changes in the TREFMAAEBREGMETENE
Group’s liabilities from financing activities EBEH BREASRIESEE -
including both cash and non-cash changes. METHELENEBARERER
Liabilities arising from financing activities are RRREAREFELEENSZER
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future EREBRFIEARETHRER
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s ENEE-
consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.
Policyholders’ Bank  Preference Lease Shareholder’s
deposit  borrowings shares liabilities loan Total
REFHA
HER RITER Bxk HEER RRES Ex
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FEr & &7 FAT T
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEE-F-H 41,875,340 1,498,758 389,570 326,584 1,661,444 45,651,696
Change from financing RERER Y.
cash flow:
Payment made to lease liabilities ~ X ftEEEFE - - - (133,839) - (133,839)
Policyholders’ account deposits ~ RERBAZRFHE 4,741,469 - - - - 4,741,469
Policyholders’ account withdrawals RERAE A 2 EF =M (1,981,009) - - - - (1,981,009
Drawdown of bank loans REBTER - 843,300 - - - 843,300
Repayment of a bank loan BEBTER - (788,239) - - - (788,233)
Other borrowing cost paid B EtEERR - (67,870) - - - (657,870)
Total change in financing REEBRER 2 2B4E
cash flows 2,760,466 (2,803) - (133,839) - 2,623,824
Capitalisation of interest of RREFFE &R
|shareholder's loan - - - - 79,633 79,633
Net change in lease obligation ~~ HEEENELH - - - 89,857 - 89,857
Finance charge and effective HEEARERFE X
interest expenses - 57,548 - 9,543 - 67,091
Fair value change MEEEE - - (1,915) - - (1915)
Interest credited to policyholders’  REEE ARFHE 2 B TS
account balances 2,784,500 - - - - 2,784,500
Cost of insurance charges REEERA (647,173) - - - - (647,173)
Administrative fees THER (1,384,904) - - - - (1,384,904)
Other reserve changes AbiEes (10,604) - - - - (10,604)
Transfer to the other payable BARMERSERETER
and accrual - - - (5,733) - (5,733)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEEFZB=1+-H 45,377,625 1,553,503 387,655 286,412 1,641,077 49,246,272
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30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK
BALANCE - TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation to liabilities arising from

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

30 RERREF
R= ﬁﬁ E’ﬂ%

(@) HRABREENNRMEIBFELENSG

financing activities for disclosure purpose BETHR (&)
(Continued)
Policyholders’ Bank  Preference Lease Shareholder’s
deposit  borrowings shares liabilities loan Total
REREA
BER ROER ik  HEEE  RRER fag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZREF-R=+-BR
1 January 2021 “E--£-f-§ 45,377,625 1,553,503 387,655 286,412 1,641,077 49,246,272
Change from financing RERSR 248
cash flow:
Payment made to lease liabilities XfBEBEE - - - (148,498) - (148,498)
Policyholders’ account deposits  REBBAZEF S 4,770,747 - - - - 4770747
Policyholders’ account REFEAZEFRR
withdrawals (2,066,236) - - - - (2,065236)
Redemption of preference shares /& %R - - (197459) - - (197459
Drawdown of bank loans REBTER - 1,400,000 = - - 1,400,000
Repayment of a bank loan BERTER - (1,555,039) - - - (1,595,038)
Other borrowing cost paid EfHMEE A - (58,083 - - - (58,083)
Total change in financing HETHREN 2DAE
cash flows T0451  QI3121) (197455  (148,499) - 214543
Net change in lease obligation ~ HEBBHFEH - - - 139,655 = 139,655
Finance charge and effective ~ BEERREBAELH
interest expenses - 41,394 - 2,039 83,694 127,127
Fair value change AMEEZD - - 2,448 - - 2,448
Interest credited to policyholders’ REREABFEEL
account balances EitiE 1,832,747 - - - - 183747
Cost of insurance charges RBERRR (660,366) - - - - (660,366)
Adminstrative fees AHER (1,289,764) - - - - (1289,764)
Other reserve changes HiE2e (16,204) - - - - (16,204)
Transfer to the other payable ~ HAEMEATEREHER
and accrual - - - - (83,694) (83,694)
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F+ZRA=1-H 47948549 1,381,776 192,648 279,608 1,641,077 51,443,658
ERSRERBRAR
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30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED 30 HERREEEER REHRS
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=ZERNEHRTERMRT
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS AND BANK BRE-EERBILRF (#)
BALANCE - TRUST AND SEGREGATED
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(b) Bank balance - trust and segregated (b) SBITHE-SEAERBILRFE
accounts
The Group maintains segregated accounts AEERRAARBREIBELERR
with authorised institutions to hold clients’ UEEHERSRETHEKBRE
monies arising from its normal course of HFELEZEFRIE - AKECHK[R
business of the regulated activities. The Group THECERBILRFIDEAR
has classified the “bank balance - trust and EMBERRARZABEEET » A&
segregated accounts” under current assets HEARBEFRBEZEABELARNTE
in the consolidated statement of financial MABEMERBEZENTEH
position and recognised the corresponding EFREMEBZRI - AEET
account payables to respective clients and SHERAEFPREREEHBGER
other institutions on the grounds that it is ﬁ%}ET—rﬁZiﬁéx (BHERHBE
liable for any loss or misappropriation of RO z2BEZRBPE (%ﬁ RIH) )
clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed BARHRIEE - R —f
to use the clients’ monies to settle its own +ZA=+—8" BAE_LﬂEﬁ?—;ﬁ
obligations. The cash held on behalf of WEFIREA/779,732,000%8 7Tt (=
customers is restricted and governed by the LT _FF 747,841,000/ T) °
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
As at 31 December 2021, client money
maintained in segregated accounts amounted
to HK$779,732,000 (2020: HK$747,841,000).
31 INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS 31 RBEEREES
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi — 7 — ﬂE
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ioka F#ET FET
Policyholders’ deposits REFEANERK (i) 43,338,452 40,913,580
Future policyholders’ benefits RRREFEAWG (ii) 18,791,144 13,358,343
Unearned revenue liability REBBAER (iii) 991,709 215,853
63,121,305 54,487,776
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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31 INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS 31 REEREES &)
(Continued)
Notes: Hat -
(i)  Policyholders’ deposits (i) REFEANER

Analysis of movement in policyholders’ deposits:

REFEANTRES D

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—HB—H 40,913,580 37,556,895
Premiums received during the year FREWHFRE 4,377,617 4,397,264
Net fees and charges deducted from RPN FEEM
account balances > HEEE (1,900,128) (1,977,403)
Interest credited to account balances IREREZESRE 1,655,295 2,567,262
Redemptions due for payment FREEMNZEEZE
in current year (1,720,897) (1,636,251)
Others movements Hin g 12,985 5,813
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 43,338,452 40,913,580
(i)  Future policyholders’ benefits (i) RERBIFEAGH
Analysis of movement in future policyholders’ benefits: REREZEALSEE D :
2021 2020
—g=-F i
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—A—H 13,358,343 8,639,426
Movement during the year FREH 5,432,801 4,718,917
At 31 December R+t=B=+—H 18,791,144 13,358,343

EHEBEBMARAT
—z-——FEH 303



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% Sl 3R MY & E
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31 INSURANCE CONTRACT PROVISIONS 31 REBREREHRES (&)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) izt (#E)
(iliy  Unearned revenue liability (i) REHBAEME
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ciVemewy W-B-B 215858 ZoeEes
Amount deferred IEIE £ 58 733,561 780,168
Amortisation for the year allocated to REEIBEHFEWAZETN
consolidated income statement BeHER (191,765) (296,663)
541,796 483,505

Effect of shadow accounting allocated to AEEZ TS oEEQIAEE

fair value reserve RENZE 234,060 (527,205)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A8 991,709 215,853
(ivy The amount of insurance contract provisions (ivy RBEEEEELBHE—FRAKRENS
expected to be settled after more than one year is %8 559,333,185,0008 T (ZE T F :
HK$59,333,185,000 (2020: HK$51,289,009,000). 51,289,009,00058 7T) °
32 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 REGHAE
2021 2020
—E=-— —EEHF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B aF FAET FET
Policyholders’ deposits REFBEANER (i) 4,610,098 4,464,045
Future policyholders’ benefits RRREFEANG R (ii) 73,238 64,828
Unearned revenue liability REBBAEE (iii) 31,010 (36,018)

4,714,346 4,492,855
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32 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 REGNEE#)
(Continued)
Notes: Ktat -
(i)  Policyholders’ deposits (i) REFEANER
Analysis of movement in policyholders’ deposits: REFEANGFREE DI :
2021 2020
—g=-% e i
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—A—H 4,464,045 4,318,445
Contributions received during the year FRE WK 308,666 276,474
Net fee and charges deducted from IREHRERHNBRNFEENZ
account balances BER (43,476) (49,204)
Interest credited to account balances IREREZESRE 177,452 217,238
Redemptions due for payment FREEMNZEEZE
in current year (290,350) (302,584)
Others movements Hh &3 (6,239) 3,676
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 4,610,098 4,464,045
(i)  Future policyholders’ benefits (i) REREBIFBEAGH
Analysis of movement in future policyholders’ benefits: RRREZEALSEE D :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January m—HB—H 64,828 56,656
Movement during the year FREH 8,410 8,172
At 31 December R+=B=+—8H 73,238 64,828
ERSRERBRAR
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32 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 REGNEE#)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) izt (#E)
(iliy  Unearned revenue liability (i) REHBAEME
Analysis of movement in unearned revenue liability: REBBRASEZE 547 :
2021 2020
—E”-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
pEdaidery m-A-R  _(eoty  (10,501)
Amount deferred IEESFE 39,678 43,244
Amortisation for the year allocated to AEEIEBEHFEWZERDN
consolidated income statement BiE%E (5,582) (923)
34,096 42,321

Effect of shadow accounting allocated to AFEEFFET2BEEAAEE

fair value reserve BENTE 32,932 (67,838)

At 31 December R+=A=+-8 31,010 (36,018)

(ivy The amount of investment contract liabilities vy REEEAEERBE—FREKEHNS

expected to be settled after more than one year is %8 44,481,295,0008 T (ZFE=-Z F :
HK$4,481,295,000 (2020: HK$4,263,004,000). 4,263,004,000/& 7T) °
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B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

33 KRR

2021 2020
“Ro-F —2-%F
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BREAR BREAR
g ik B8 ag ik R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEr Tz TEr T TAT T
Outstanding claims KRBT 182,557 (87,347) 95,210 150,414 (55,443) 94,971
Claims incurred but BREBRBREN
not reported e 47,291 - 47,291 33,746 - 33,746
229,848 (87,347) 142,501 184,160 (55,443) 128,717
Amount expected to RHR-FREE
be settled within WeH
one year 229,848 (87,347) 142,501 184,160 (55,443) 128,717
Analysis of movements in outstanding claims: RREREH D :
2021 2020
“E--% e g 33
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BREAF BREAF
L] i 28 ag ik R8
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FiEx TEr & FEr &
Balance at 1 January -A-AZ4%% 184,160 (55,443) 128,717 161,913 (48,349) 113,564
Current year claims REBH 1,066,915 (473,120) 593,795 703,372 (314,666) 388,706
Current year FEERER
claims paid (918,188) 394,021 (524,167) (593,110) 271,388 (321,722)
Previous year EEERER
claims paid (116,584) 47,195 (69,389) (84,374) 36,184 (48,190)
Movement inincurred ~ BEABRFEMN
but not reported RE2D
reserve 13,545 - 13,545 (3,641) - (3,641)
Balance at +ZA=t-HZ
31 December EAE 229,848 (87,347) 142,501 184,160 (55,443) 128,717

EHeMEBERAT
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35
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REINSURANCE PREMIUM PAYABLES EABERBRE
All of the reinsurance premium payables are FFEENBREREFEHIR—FANE
expected to be settled within one year. =
OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE HMESIRXR
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Accounts payable FE A BR K
- Cash and margin clients - HENRBEEF 820,449 851,095
- Clearing house, fund managers, - BEF-EEEEA
brokers and dealers RERBED 23,639 18,438
844,088 869,533

Included in accounts payable are amounts payable
to clients and other institutions in respect of the
trust and segregated bank balances received and
held for clients and other institutions in the course
of conducting regulated activities, which amount to
HK$784,721,000 (2020: HK$744,307,000).

All of the accounts payable are aged and due
within one month or on demand.

Balance with related parties

At 31 December 2021, accounts payable
of approximately HK$15,782,000 (2020:
HK$15,606,000) and HK$8,930,000 (2020:
HK$20,734,000) to certain key management
personnel of the Company and companies
controlled by key management personnel of
the Company respectively on normal terms of
brokerage and wealth management business of the
Group.

ENERABERRETSEETEHBERE
FAEFREMEBWERFE ZET
EBIRITHREMEMNEF R HEMiEE
Z FIET784,721,0008 T (ZE=F F :
744,307,000/ T) °

FrERMERRZRER SR —EA AR H
HIREREE -

ELRA R 5 MY S B

RZBEZ—F+=ZHA=+—H &BAE
B -MRECKREBUHEBN —RIER  E
FERFR 215,782,000B T (ZE =T & :
15,606,0008 T) BENE FTAQX A E
EEE A8 2 FE 8,930,000 T (=
T -FF :20,734,00008 ) HENE
FARATNETEEEBASFRES AT ZRK
I8 o
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36 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
EXPENSES

36 HttENFEMETREX

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Accrued staff costs FEETE T AR 106,771 100,464
Commission payables ENEE 305,021 255,406
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmT A 137,975 151,788
Premium received in advance R ERE 1,673,362 1,621,389
Reinsurance deposit liability BREEMREAEE 1,538,093 -
Other payables and accruals HinENRIERETEHR 557,059 391,665
4,318,281 2,520,712

Apart from a total amount of HK$1,720,139,000
(2020: Nil) of other payables and accrued
expenses, the remaining balances is expected
to be settled within one year or are repayable on
demand.

Balance with related parties

(1) At 31 December 2021, accounts payable
of approximately HK$71,102,000 (2020:
HK$22,507,000) are payable to MassMutual
International LLC (“MMI”) who is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and its affiliates.

(2) At 31 December 2021, interest accrual
of approximately HK$86,447,000 (2020:
HK$2,752,000) is due to Key Imagination
Limited (“KIL”) who is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

EHeMEBERAT
i

PR#2 % %1,720,139,0008 T (= ZE = F
FE) NHEHAMEBMFTIRR BRI
R ERIR - FAEEIARNEESE
HEFEE -

ELRA I 5 A9 45 B

(1)

RZBE-_—F+=-B=+—H &
BRI 271,102,000 T (=& =
T : 22,507,000 7T) B E A&
A 7 — @ * = ik R —MassMutual
International LLC ([ MMI ) & ELB#
ENTZIE o

R-ZB-_—F+=-A=+—H &
A A2 IR B 5RKey Imagination
Limited (TKIL]) WESTFIE XA 5
86,447,000 T (ZE - F &F :
2,752,000/& 7T) °
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37

310

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 37 BMBERARFATRZABH
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Tax payable in the statement of financial (@) MBMRRRATRZEMSBHIERE :

position represents:

2021 2020
—E--5 —B-BF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits NEELEBREFREME
Tax for the year 49,291 49,963
Provisional Profits Tax paid ERHEHFEHR (37,757) (36,881)
11,534 13,082
Balance of Profits Tax provision NEEENEHRERER
relating to prior years 10 -
11,544 13,082
Macao Complementary Tax B IR
Balance of Complementary Tax REERABEHBEREE
provision for the year - -
Overseas Tax BN
Balance of overseas provision REEFINEEREE
for the year 88 811
11,632 13,893
Amount of tax payable expected FEHR —FREER
to be settled within one year FEAF B 18 11,632 13,893

Amount of taxation payable
expected to be settled
after more than one year

BHR-FREBHN
FE 81/

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

37 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 37 HBMRRKARZAER (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EEIBENEHRBEEERSE !
recognised:
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ REENGETBRARER ZIE
(assets) recognised in the consolidated EHREERE (BE)BIRER
statement of financial position and the W
movements during the year are as follows:
Fair value Fair value
Adjustment adjustment
to assets on
and investment Decelerated
liabilities at fair tax on
related to value  expense/
acquisition Accelerated through  expected
of tax Tax  profitand credit loss
subsidiaries depreciation losses loss incurred Total
WEKE NAREE
RARE !
BER HEEHA
aEn BRNEE FEEA/
MEE ®’A MAREE  BiER
#E  HERE HEBR HE Bx ot
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FEx FEr FEr FET FEx FEx
Deferred tax liabilities/ NTRBEE 2 ERENA
(assets) arising from: B/ (%)
At 1 January 2020 R-Z_2f-f-H 1,267,384 - - - (44) 1,267,340
(Credited) to profit or loss EEH(GFA) (47,067) (100) - - - (47,167)
Exchange impact Erig2 - (6) = - - 6)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2£+=f
=t+-H 1,220,317 (106) - - (44) 1,220,167
At 1 January 2021 W=E--%-F-H 1,220,317 (106) - - (44) 1,220,167
(Credited)/charged to EEHGIA) /5%
profit or loss (43,569) 106 - 110 - (43,353)
Exchange impact EigE - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-£+ZR
=t+-H 1,176,748 - - 110 (44) 1,176,814
At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax asset R-ZBE-_—F+=-_H=+—H8 " i
has been recognised in respect of the tax BT IEE1822.661RB T (=&
losses of HK$2,266 million (2020: HK$2,132 TF 213228 ) MR ELEKIE
million) to the extent that it is not probable BE BREBEREREEERE
that future taxable profit against which the BAXAREBEARRERBRF (A
losses can be utilised will be available subject KEMEKERE) IR BzEE
to the approval of respective tax authorities K o HMIEEBIE14.4EBEB T (=&
in the relevant tax jurisdiction. The tax ZEF 1 13.32BB ) RIBERTH
losses amounting to HK$1,494 million (2020: BEGTEEm o
HK$1,332 million) do not expire under current
tax legislation.
ERSRERBRAR
“ERCFFR 311
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38 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 38 LUAABEFEEHSHT AR
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS mNEEEE
2021 2020
:g: - ﬂE — ? — ¢
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Designated at fair value through EEUAAREBEFER
profit or loss E%Eﬁ%‘l‘)\ﬁ%ﬁ
305,021 255,406
Preference share liability (note 1) BEREE HFET) 192,648 387,655
Third-party interests in consolidated MAEGHEEHNESH
funds (note 2) E=FER (FFE2) 183,615 230,906
376,263 618,561

312

Note:

By 31 December 2021, total number of preference
shares issued was approximately 247,092 shares
(2020: 500,000 shares) under the agreement. The
subsidiary is obliged to redeem all issued preference
shares in 5 years starting from the initial issuance date
of the preference shares and has the discretion to
extend the term for one year. At liquidation, after all
creditors’ claim is satisfied, the asset of the subsidiary
should be first distributed to preference shareholders
by redeeming all issued shares together with any
unpaid preferred share dividends. The preference
shares are due for settlement after more than one year
from 31 December 2021.

The third party interests in consolidated fund consist
of third-party unit holders’ interest in the consolidated
fund which is reflected as a liability as the fund is to be
dissolved and return all capital to investor in seventh
anniversary of the respective final closing date of the
respective funds. The end of term of the consolidated
fund is more than a year from 31 December 2021.

Bt

M

R-ZZB--—F+ZA=1t—8 RiEH
BMBTHNELEREHNA247,092 (=
Z-ZF+=H=+—H :500,0008) °
MEARERZBEELERAHEKTEE
SEANEEMECRTELR  WHEL
REIR—F - BEE - EMEEEANE
RERERZ MEBLANEEEEL
BREBOMAECSBITROUAREMAX
THEERREIEEELRRR £
ERERE-Z=—F+=A=+—H
BHEB—FREF -

EHEESHNE= T ERZEREEF=HEN
BEEAREGHESHES BARZES
BHEEE At nEEE WEHEER
CRAAEINELtRAEBRAEEAR
BHEBEE - AHESHEHRAKILAEE
—E- S+ A=t—HA#—FEU Lo
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39 LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

39

The Group had obligations under contractual

maturities of the lease liabilities as follows:

HESE

AEBNWEEEHEEENSEEHA

FIEWMT

31 December 2021
R-B--%+-B=t+-H

31 December 2020
RZE-ZEF+-F=+—-H

Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum the minimum minimum
lease payment lease payment lease payment  lease payment
EERENR BREREARR REEEFR EEEESR
ZBE ok k| ZHE pa L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year k3 127,651 133,596 133,607 140,000
After one but within 2 years 1ERB2ER 81,599 85,060 88,574 91,779
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBB5ER 70,358 71,816 61,901 64,388
Over 5 years BiB5E - - 2,330 2,342
279,608 290,472 286,412 298,509
Less: finance cost o RERAK (10,864) (12,097)
Present value lease liabilities HEEBERE 279,608 286,412

ERSRMEESRAT
—T-FFH
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40

41

314

BANK BORROWINGS

The bank loan was unsecured and repayable as
follows:

40 RITER

RITERBEEREN  HEFBUT :

2021 2020

—EB-—fF —E-EF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Within one year 15 R - 1,553,503
After 2 year but within 3 years 2F®B{E3FR 1,381,776 -

The Group’s banking facilities are subject to
the compliance of covenants including certain
financial ratios and negative pledge against
certain arrangement and transactions, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group breached any
of the covenants and negative pledge against
certain arrangement and transactions, the
outstanding bank loan would become immediate
due and payable. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
December 2021, the Group is in compliance with
the covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 5.

SHAREHOLDER'’S LOAN

The shareholder’s loan becomes due after 1 year
but within 2 years from the reporting date. The
interest rate is determined based on arm’s length
terms. The Group has an unconditional extension
right to extend the due date for another year at the
interest rate to be reset based on prevailing market
condition at the time of exercising the right.

41

FHESHEEITIINE REELH —
B AEERTHERAEELOZHREZE
S BRIBLERURHBELEZ M
XZEHWREIEE - WRAEBER
FEAZEURRELEZHENMKT S EHIY
PBREIEHA » RERITERGSZENFHIL
EEE AEBEEHHESEHELIEN
BFBER RZBE=Z—F+=ZHA=+—
B AEBECETRENRE -BEK
EERHELEBREEI/FNFESE &
IR M &5 ©

BRERE ™

BREREFBRSEALE-FREMFAE
B BRFNERERAFRZ RAEE
B MAKEESEFRITEEREBA
BEE—-FHER EHENERF X
?;E:Héﬂ-‘%?ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬂ’ﬂ%?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁiﬁ
B RE ©
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

42 EXRF#E
BRI 2B E

AEBGSEENESEARBI M
MR REERAVE R - HIIRNEE

(a)

REI A D RE B ESA KD HE

from page 138 to 139. Details of the changes FHEHEERNEHFS :
in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
The Company Ay |
Shares held Share-
by share based
Share Capital award  payment Accumulated
capital Reserve scheme reserve losses Total
g NR %
Kitd  RERM
Rx  Ex@E BERG ARRGE  RAER L
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET 7Ex FEx FEx FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-2%-A-H 9,828,591 64,000 (83,230) 21,492 (1,268,677) 8,562,176
Issue of subscription shares ~ BTRBERH 2,043,589 - - - - 2043589
Equity settled share-based ~ HEREEHNURAAE
transactions BHRS - - - (12,019) - (12,019)
Total comprehensive income  AFE2ENHLH
for the year - - - - (409,130)  (409,130)
At 31 December 2020and ~ W=F-F%£+-§
1 January 2021 =+-HRk
“8--%-f-H 11,872,180 64,000 (83,230) 9,473  (1,677,807) 10,184,616
Issue of subscription shares ~ B/TRERH - - - - - -
Equity settled share-based ~ HEREEMLNRHAE
transactions BHR 5 - - - (7,898) - (7,898)
Total comprehensive income  AFE2EUHAH
for the year - - - - (41,008) (41,098)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--&
TZA=1+-H 11,872,180 64,000 (83,230) 1,675 (1,718,905) 10,135,620

EHeMEBERAT
i

315



Notes to the Financial Statements

BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

316

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share held by share award scheme
and share-based payment reserve

The Company’s shares held by Youyu
Share Award Scheme Nominee Limited,
TMF Trust (HK) Limited and Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited for the
share award schemes are presented as
a deduction in equity as shares held for
share award scheme.

Share-based payment reserve represents
the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose on
the revaluation of the trading rights in the
exchanges in Hong Kong in prior years.
The carrying value of the trading rights
have been fully amortised in previous
years. The remaining revaluation reserve
will be realised when the Group disposes
of the trading rights.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2(y).

42 EXRNRE &)

(b)

BEZHEERAR
(i) wEKGEBGEFEZRG
RURGREERZ S #HE

(i)

(iii)

HERARDGRBITEHREA
BROA - EBRELRE (B
B)ARAARTERITER
BERQABFAEZEARARND
R —EHMEE ERAE
mA2H FIERKRMGRER
SFEIMBAEZRG -

DU B B 2 SRR TD
EEAARQERERERHME K
TEzZERERARBBHZ
NAEE HERBEUKRSG
REBRNRMEN S
BURHERR °

EEEMRE

EEEMARBEREMGMBESF
ERBBZRZM 2R
BRELE XZEZKRHEERS
RBEFEZRBE KT
EMRESRAKEEHER
SERER -

EL#E

ErRREEEMAEREINE
EBMBBRREECELE
B o R faf B AR IR Y RE2(y) A 80
ZEFBETUERE

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Statutory and capital reserve
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Company Law of the
PRC, in accordance with the relevant
subsidiary’s articles of association,
10% of the net profit of the relevant
subsidiary, determined in accordance
with the relevant accounting rules
and financial regulations applicable to
enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”), is
required to be transferred to the statutory
reserve until such time when this reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the subsidiary incorporated in PRC.
The reserve appropriated can be used
for expansion of business scale and
capitalisation. If the statutory reserve
is capitalised into registered capital,
the remaining reserve is required to be
no less than 25% of the subsidiary’s
registered capital before capitalisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arose to recognise
the difference between the fair value
and the issue price of Company’s share
in relation to the completion of the
acquisition of YF Life.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did
not have any reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) (2020: Nil).

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil), nor
has dividend been proposed since the end of
the reporting period.

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

42 EXRNRE &)

REZHERAR(Z
(iv) ZZEHEX#E
EERE

BRE(PEARLNE D F
By  RBREBMEBEATNA
AER  EREBARPEDE
¥ 5 B = 5t 8 Bl 7 B 75 1% 41
THEEestEA ] BENE
B E AR FERMNI0% -
BEALERE B2
3 3 R P BR & M A S B9 B
BRAAZEMEXRMN50% ° Fr
BANHBUTRAREXRER
BEME R - REE
BEAIMER  FRHFEB
EEXLATLRHME R T
FMMEREI25% °

=N

WiEBBRERE BIELQ
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

318

(e)

Share capital

Movements of the Company’s ordinary shares
are set out below:

42 EXRNRE &)

(e)

RS
ARAEBRZ2EHEINT :

2021 2020
—B--F “ECEE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
gy ! £ iang G| £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr

3,867,991,673

11,872,683  3,223,326,394 9,829,094
644,665,279 2,043,589

Issued and fully paid: BRTRME
Balance brought forward RAGHE
Issue of subscription shares EIRBERG
Balance carried forward HELE

3,867,991,673

11,872,683  3,867,991,673 11,872,683

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Issue of subscription shares

As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 September 2020,
the Company entered into subscription
agreements with 1) Jade Passion in relation
to the subscription of 484,665,279 ordinary
shares in the share capital of the Company
at the subscription price of HK$3.17 per
ordinary share and 2) MMI in relation to the
subscription of 160,000,000 ordinary shares
in the share capital of the Company at the
Subscription Price of HK$3.17 per ordinary
share. At completion of the subscription on 29
October 2020, total of 644,665,279 ordinary
shares were issued and total proceed of
HK$2,043,588,934 was received in October
2020.

BB IR iR RS R WER A B SR B R
B UYEAEREADTAARS LR
BREAE-RAR-—ENLHSER
R AEBEREDEAND AR ER
EENTHEARSER -

RITHBIK G

MRAANBEHA-ZZT=ZFH
BLtRAZAEFMKE  AAFHE
1) Jade Passions] 3 T R B 5%
Wﬁﬁ%ﬁ&iﬂ;&ﬂ;ﬁﬂ:z BE
0 08 78 N 7] B 7N A #9484,665,279
BEER UKR2) ZEEBERHK
(MassMutual International LLC -
ITMMID ST TRERHZ  IB
EERSRIITETZABER
BB A A a RAHB160, 000 000
Hﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁ“ﬂﬂﬁa}?‘ EF
F+H=-Z+HhLB XK 1T
644,665,279% I & R - ZIK/AEE’\\\
—E_ZE+ ARBIMNATERIEA
58 52,043,588,9343% 7T ©

/
K
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42 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to meet its obligations and continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of share capital and reserves as shown in
the statement of financial position. In respect
of the Group’s insurance operations in
Hong Kong and Macao, the regulators are
interested in ensuring that the subsidiary
maintains an appropriate solvency position
to meet its liabilities arising from claims
maturities and surrenders from its life
insurance contracts. Pursuant to the Hong
Kong Insurance Ordinance and the Macau
Insurance Ordinance, YF Life is required to
meet the requirements on solvency margin. If
YF Life fails to comply with the requirements,
the regulators may require YF Life to submit
a plan for the restoration of a sound financial
position or a short term financial scheme
as appropriate, to the satisfaction of the
regulators. YF Life complied with the solvency
margin requirements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

On the other hand, certain subsidiaries of the
Group, Yunfeng Financial Markets Limited
(“YFFM?”), Yunfeng Securities Limited (“YFSL”)
and Yunfeng Asset Management Limited
(“YFAM”), is subject to externally imposed
capital requirements. YFFM, YFSL and YFAM
are regulated by the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) and are required
to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The management monitors
YFFM, YFSL and YFAM'’s liquid capital daily
to ensure they meet the minimum liquid
capital requirement in accordance with the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (“FRR”) adopted by the SFC. Under the
FRR, YFAM, YFFM and YFSL must maintain
its liquid capital in excess of HK$3 million or
5% of their total adjusted liabilities whichever
is higher. The required information was filed
with SFC on a monthly or half yearly basis.
YFFM, YFSL and YFAM were in compliance
with the capital requirements imposed by FRR
during the current and prior year.

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

320

Share award scheme

On 17 October 2014, the board of directors
approved the adoption of the share award
scheme (the “2014 Share Award Scheme”).
The purpose of the 2014 Share Award
Scheme is to (i) encourage or facilitate the
holding of shares by the selected participants;
(i) encourage and retain such individuals to
work with the Company and the Group and
(iii) provide additional incentive for them to
achieve performance goals, and the share
award scheme took effect on 30 October
2014. The awarded shares are awarded by
issuing new ordinary shares. Before vesting,
the awarded shares are held in a trust set
up by the scheme. During the year, there
is neither new issue nor outstanding share
award under the 2014 Share Award Scheme.

With similar purpose of 2014 Share Award
Scheme, on 12 December 2016, the board
of directors approved the adoption of 2016
Share Award Scheme (the “2016 Share
Award Scheme”) and the Company issue
of 23,990,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company to TMF Trust (HK) Limited to be
granted to the Group A Participant (Group A
Grantees) as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 January 2017. The
share was issued at value of HK$5.4 per
share.

During the year, the Group did not repurchase
any Company ordinary share through Bank of
Communications for the Group B Participant
(Group B Grantees).

The fair value of 2016 Share Award Scheme
at the date of the grant are charged to staff
costs and related expenses over the projected
vesting period being the period for which the
services from the employees are rendered
with a corresponding credit to employee
share-based payment reserve.

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees,
the related cost of the shares are credited to
share held for share award scheme, and the
related fair value of the shares are debited to
share-based payment reserve.

43 EERODZH
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

43 EERD =B (@)

(ii) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (i) BFAHKET A20164F 1% 17 58 B 5t
(to Group A Grantee) BIF1E
Number of
Number of awarded Average fair
Date of approval Awarded shares shares  value per
by board Date of award sum issued awarded share Vesting period
T BRFRG  SRmE
EZeERD EFAH EFeE  RHEA KRR MEE BREE
HK$:000 HK$
FiEx BT
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 5.25 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2017
ZE-tF-BC+MA ZE-tE-AZ1M@A “E2—+E-B-TMAZ
“E-tFRAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 5.25 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2018
ZE-t5-fCtMB —E-t§¥-B-THA 3 tE-A-tMAZ
- \ERRMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 5.25 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2019
ZE-t#-B-tMA ZE-tE-A-1M@A “Z-tf-A-tMHZ
“EZ-nERAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 5.25 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2020
“E-t#-BC+MA ZE-tE-A-1M@A “E2—tE-B-TMAZ
ZE-SERAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2018
“E-\EMA-+EA ZE-NFMA-TEA “E-\ENA-+EAE
—E-\FRLRAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2019
ZE-\ENAZ+HE ZE-NEMAZTEA ZE-\EMBZ+HAZ
“E2-nERAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2020
“EZ-\EMA=tEA —E-NEMA-TEA “E2-\¥MA=1EAZE
—Z-ZERAMA
25 April 2018 25 April 2018 3,242 - 712,500 4.55 25 April 2018 - 4 May 2021
ZE-\EMB-+RA ZE-NEMAZTEA “E-\ENA-+HAE
—Z--E1AMA
Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme T BAHAE A20165F IR 19 2 B 5t
(to Group B Grantee) BB
Number of
Number of awarded  Average fair
Date of approval Awarded shares shares value per
by board Date of award sum repurchased awarded share Vesting period
EE ERTRA SRmE
ESEiERY R¥EH R7&E R #E RBYE MEE BRIE
HK$'000 HK$
&1 AT
26 January 2018 26 January 2018 5,786 950,000 950,000 6.09 26 January 2018 - 2 February 2018
“E-NE-BZt”R ZE-NE-BItRA “2-\§-B=tRAZE
“2-N\§ZRZR
21 May 2018 21 May 2018 94,298 19,050,000 19,050,000 4.95 21 May 2018 - 28 May 2018
ZE-N\ERAZt-B  ZE-NEZAZT-H “E-\ERf-+-H%
ZE-\ERRZTN\A
ERSRERBRAR
—z-——FEH 821
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED 43 EERMDZH (&)

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (iii) E5B BUERBHRBRBEGKRGEZ
vested, cancelled and modification of 2016 /% 17 & By 5t B %15 -
service condition to Group A Grantee.

Grant date on 24 January 2017 BFH: —E—tF—-—F=-+ITH
Number of Number of
Number of Number of awarded awarded
awarded awarded shares share
shares shares cancelled and remains
awarded vested forfeited outstanding
ERTRG EHEBERT CHRERRE HATEE
Vesting date HEAH £BgHE ROBE RTROHBE EKTFRHHE
A B © F=A-B-C
As of 31 December 2019 HE-ZE—-h %
+ZA=1+-H
4 May 2017 —E-tFhAMNA 5,047,500 4,510,000 537,500 -
4 May 2018 ZE-N\FRANA 5,047,500 3,372,500 1,675,000 -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERAMNA 5,047,500 - 3,537,500 1,510,000
4 May 2020 “Z"ZFRAMA 5,047,500 - 3,512,500 1,535,000
Total number By 20,190,000 7,882,500 9,262,500 3,045,000
Movement for the year Z—ZE-ZEEZFH
2020
4 May 2017 “E-—+FRANA - - -
4 May 2018 ZE-\ERAMNA — — —
4 May 2019 ZE-NERANA - - 1,262,500
4 May 2020 —E-_ZFHAMNA - - 1,287,500
As of 31 December 2020 HE-F-BF
+=-A=+-8
4 May 2017 ZE-+ERAMNA 5,047,500 4,510,000 537,500 -
4 May 2018 “Z-\ERAMWA 5,047,500 3,372,500 1,675,000 -
4 May 2019 “E-AERAMA 5,047,500 - 4,800,000 247,500
4 May 2020 —EZ_ZERAMA 5,047,500 - 4,800,000 247,500
Total number @y 20,190,000 7,882,500 11,812,500 495,000
Movement for the year AFEEZE
4 May 2017 “E-tFRAMA - - -
4 May 2018 ZE-\ERAMNA - - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERAMA - - 97,500
4 May 2020 “E-FERAMA - - 97,500
As of 31 December 2021 HZ-ZF--—f&
+=ZA=1+-H
4 May 2017 ZE—+ERAMA 5,047,500 4,510,000 537,500 -
4 May 2018 —E-NERANA 5,047,500 3,372,500 1,675,000 -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERANA 5,047,500 - 4,897,500 150,000
4 May 2020 ZE_EERANA 5,047,500 - 4,897,500 150,000
Total number ay 20,190,000 7,882,500 12,007,500 300,000

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
322 Annual Report 2021
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme

vested, cancelled and modification of
service condition to Group A Grantee.
(Continued)

The awarded share remains outstanding due
to service condition modification.

Grant date on 25 April 2018

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

43

BERGZ B 4)

(i) E5B - BUERERBRBHRE 2
2016/R 1 SE B =t BIF 15 - (A&

HARBEEEL  ERTROH
RITEE
RFH: - NNE@RA=1TEH

Number of Number of
Number of Number of awarded awarded
awarded awarded shares share
shares shares cancelled and remains
awarded vested forfeited outstanding
ERTFRH EHEBERT CHRERRE HATEE
Vesting date =t J= RBYE RAEE RTROHE RTROHUE
As of 31 December 2019 HZE=-ZE-H&E+=A
=T—H
4 May 2018 ZE-\FRANA 712,500 712,500 - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERANA 712,500 - 12,500 700,000
4 May 2020 ZE_ZFERAMNA 712,500 - 12,500 700,000
4 May 2021 ZE_-FHAMNH 712,500 - 12,500 700,000
Total number amey 2,850,000 712,500 37,500 2,100,000
Movement for the year Z—ZB-ZEEZE
2020
4 May 2018 —E-\FRAMmA - - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERANA - - 187,500
4 May 2020 “Z"ZFRAMA - - 187,500
4 May 2021 ZE_-FRAMNA - - 187,500
As of 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-ZF
+=A=t+-H
4 May 2018 —Z-\ERAMA 712,500 712,500 - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERAMA 712,500 - 200,000 512,500
4 May 2020 “Z_EERAMA 712,500 - 200,000 512,500
4 May 2021 “E_-ERAMA 712,500 - 200,000 512,500
Total number ay 2,850,000 712,500 600,000 1,537,500
Movement for the year AFEZE
4 May 2018 ZE-\ERAMNA - - -
4 May 2019 ZE-NERANA - - 512,500
4 May 2020 —Z-ZERAMA - - 512,500
4 May 2021 “E-_-FRAMNA - - 512,500
As of 31 December 2021 HBEZE=-ZE=—-%
+ZA=1+-H
4 May 2018 —Z-N\EHLAMNA 712,500 712,500 - -
4 May 2019 “E-NERRMA 712,500 - 712,500 -
4 May 2020 ZE-EFRAMNA 712,500 - 712,500 -
4 May 2021 —E--FFHAMNA 712,500 - 712,500 -
Total number ay 2,850,000 712,500 2,137,500 -
EHRSREEERATE
—z-——FEH 823
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43 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme

43

BERGZ B 4)

(ivy E5B - BUERERBRB KRS 2

vested, cancelled and modification of 2016 8% 12 € B 5T IR 15
service condition to Group B Grantee
Number of
Number of Number of Number of Number of awarded
awarded awarded awarded awarded share
shares shares shares shares remains
awarded vested cancelled forfeited outstanding
ERTFRA EEERT BHHERT BERERT EATHEE
Vesting date BERH 4= RAGEE RO EE BRO#E RIRGEE
A B C D F=A-B-C-D
2 February 2018 “E-N\fZAZH 950,000 950,000 - - -
28 May 2018 “E-\ERBZTNE 19,050,000 19,050,000 - - -
As of 31 December HEZ=-E—-N\E
2018 total number +ZA=+-—-H&¥ 20,000,000 20,000,000 - - -
There is no movement for 2016 Share Award REE  # FBAEAET AW20165F
Scheme to Group B Grantee for the year. BB TR HIREH -
44 INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES 44 FEBR{ILERNER
Interest in consolidated structure entities EEBLtEEER

The Group had consolidated certain structured
entities, mainly funds related to wealth
management operation. For those structured
entities where the Group is involved as manager
or as investor, the Group assesses the extent of
controlling power according to relevant group
accounting policies.

As at 31 December 2021, the net assets of
consolidated limited partnership fund entities as
detailed in note 25 amounted to HK$535 million
(2020: HK$673 million) with net carrying interest
held by the Group being HK$352 million (2020:
HK$442 million).

Interests held by other investors in these
consolidated structured entities, mainly fund
entities were classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss of the consolidated
statements of financial position with fair value
change of financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss presented in the consolidated income
statement.

At year end, the Group reassessed the control of

structured entities and decided whether the Group
is a principal.

324
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(Continued)

Interest in unconsolidated structure entities

Among those structured entities held by the Group
where the Group directly or indirectly involves as
investment manager or in equivalent capacity, the
Group regularly assesses and determines whether:

o the Group is acting as an agent or a principal
in these investment funds;

° substantive removal rights held by other
parties may remove the Group as an
investment fund manager; and

° the investment interests held together with its
remuneration from servicing and managing
these structured entities create significant
exposure to variability of returns in these
investment funds.

In the opinion of the directors, the variable returns
that the Group to these structured entities is not
significant and the Group is primarily acting as an
agent. Therefore, the Group did not consolidate
these structured entities.

The Group classified its investment in those
unconsolidated entities as FVOCI investments with
minimal loss exposure due to small investment
amount involved.

EHeMEBERAT
i

B B SRR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

45 COMMITMENTS

326

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021,

the Group has

a total of HK$29.9 million (2020: HK$66.2
million) capital commitment contracted but
not provided for.

Investment commitments

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In the normal course of business, the
Group enters into commitments to
purchase certain investments and capital
contribution commitments to third party
managed fund investment. The Group
has investment commitments contracted
for amounted to HK$776,881,000 (2020:
HK$947,663,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
capital commitment to a joint venture
for an amount of US$20 million with
US$13.93 million has been contributed.

As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 4 February 2016,
YFFM (formerly known as Reorient
Financial Markets Limited), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a joint venture agreement
with Giant Investment Co., Ltd., and
Jiangsu YuWell Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Limited”) on that
day. As disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 29 April 2016, the joint
venture agreement was superseded
and replaced by the amended and
restated joint venture agreement entered
among YFFM, Hangzhou Dr. Herbs
Electronics Commerce Company Limited
and Jiangsu Limited on 13 April 2016.
Upon establishment of the joint venture
company after obtaining all necessary
approval as defined and disclosed in the
circular, YFFM is committed to contribute
RMB1,290,000,000 of the registered
capital of the joint venture company.

45 EiE
(a)

(b)
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 46 EXBEBALIRS
TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with key management (a) EHEXZEBAEBNRS
personnel
The remuneration for key management AEBCTEEEASHMESUOT :
personnel of the Group is as follows:
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits EHEERET 19,496 10,499
Post employment benefits BERERN 348 5,318
Equity compensation benefits Emat R R - -
19,844 15,817

(b)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
in note 11(a) to the financial statements.

During the year, no (2020: Nil) transaction and
management fee related to key management
personnel’s securities brokerage and wealth
management transaction is waived by the

Group.

Transactions with other related parties

(b)

B R R A BB WK EE11(a)
[ETARA] -

REER  AEEREHREEIR
Af@kﬁaﬁ‘%f&? &Eﬂgﬁéﬁ %

IE%FH°

Brokerage fee income (note (i)

Investment management fee paid
(note (ii))

Transitional services fee paid
(note (iii))

Policies endorsement fee paid
(note (iv))

Management fee and advisory fee
income from a joint venture and
co manager of the joint venture

Premiums and fee income (note v)

BRLBWA (KEZ0))
ENREEEE (A1)

B 1B BRAS & (4 22(ii)

BAHRE I EE (H ()

AERERTAELY
BECENEERR

@Fmﬁ%ﬂ&)&
RERERWBA (F/2E(v))

HEMBEBRINRS
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,633 1,180
94,681 84,292
8,759 16,203
5,066 5,170
2,205 2,094
1,281 —

T EMEEERAT
S 827



Notes to the Financial Statements

BB SRR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

328

(a)

Transactions with key management
personnel (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, the Group provided brokerage
services to (i) companies where the Company’s
chairman, Mr. Yu Feng (“Mr. Yu”) is a director
and substantial shareholder and Mr. Huang
Xin (“Mr. Huang”), the executive director, is a
director (ii) key management of the Company.

The Group paid an investment management
fee to an affiliate of a substantial shareholder
who appointed a director to the board of the
Company, for management service provided to
YF Life’s investment portfolio.

The fee is paid to a substantial shareholder,
who appointed a director to the board of the
Company, for certain treasury and financial
reporting services relating to investment or
portfolio management and other information
technology related services to YF Life.

The fee is paid to an affiliate of a substantial
shareholder, who appointed a director to
the board of the Company, for the provision
of claims payment endorsement to the life
insurance outstanding policies of YF Life until
such policies mature.

During the year, the Group has received premium
and fee income from a company where the
Company’s chairman, Mr. Yu is a director and
shareholder.

46 EXEBALRS (#)

(a)

Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

RBIEEBABNXRE (HF)

REBZ-—F+ZA=+—HR=
E_ZFE+_A=+—HILFE
AEEBH—BAE (RAAEE
EREE ((EXE | BEERETE
BE ZE(EXE]APTES)
RADAFTHNEREREASRMEL
LR ©

rEEREBEARBINREASE
HONEEREED-BEBZRR (R
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B K H B F B0 AR B AR S Y 3
LESHNBBRERYE  M—BE
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47 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 47 R-E-_—F+=-A=+-—80%2
FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 7] B H 2 B AR R R &
2021
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
KraE FET FET
Assets BE
Interests in subsidiaries RMBAR 2 s 11,399,632 11,729,265
Property LS 13,697 -
Other receivable and H b FE I TR T8 K2
prepayment AT RIE 8,801 8,504
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEEEER 110,374 640
Totalassets 1 AEe® 11,532,504 11,738,409
Liabilities =R
Accrued expenses and other EEERR
payables H b f& {F 518 143 290
Lease liability HEEE 14,965 _
Bank borrowings IRITER 40 1,381,776 1,553,503
Total liabilities BEHEE 1,396,884 1,553,793
NET ASSETS EEFE 10,135,620 10,184,616
EQUITY Ex
Share capital [N 42(a) 11,872,180 11,872,180
Reserves Ee 42(a) (1,736,560) (1,687,564)
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 10,135,620 10,184,616

RSB —F=ZA=-+HBE=ZES=Eit
ERRETIRIHATIRREE !

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on
25 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung David Huang Xin
iR A =S
Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer HITESH
HITEE  FIEFERRITEHAS

EHEBEBMARAT
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48

49

330

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate holding company
of the Company to be Yunfeng Financial Holdings
Limited which is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and beneficially owned as to 29.85%
and 70.15% by Mr. Ma Yun and Mr. Yu Feng,
respectively. Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited
does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, HKFRS 17,
Insurance Contracts, which are not yet effective for
the year 31 December 2021 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

48

49
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SR 3= B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

49 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 49 EEMEHMKREBREZE_T_—F
NEW STANDARDS AND +T-A=+t—ALFELENMNE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT Bl MIEENREBMEEN RS
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED & (E)

31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
EUTHHSH Z%
BRmHBEBBENR
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
(BB BHREERN)FEIFERTHH-SAER 25/ 4] —E--f-—-F—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022

before Intended Use

(BBETEANF16RET X  BENRE - EZEERBAAERA —E--%—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022

Contract
(BREEANEITHRBITHEEEEN — BITEHN2ZRA —E-_f%—-HA—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
(E BB EZE RN F EBUE (2018E2020F E A H) —E--%—-A—H
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
(BBMBREERE17THRRIEER ] —E-=%—-HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023

Non-current
(BRGTHEADEIRBIT I RBEFERDEBENE D ] —E-=%—-HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of

accounting policies ‘ 1 January 2023
(BASERD B R(EBUBHELNET 2 E)

2R BRI [T BRI E ] —E-=%-A-—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
(BRGTHER)ESREBIT S EHANER] —E-=%—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities

arising from a single transaction 1 January 2023
(BEREFEA)F12REIT [ HEBXZEENEENEBHEBMNIELEREH ] —E-=%—-A—H
The Group is in the process of making an REEEEFFEELEENSLEARER
assessment of what the impact of these AHENEE - HEZEaALL A&H
developments is expected to be in the period of Al ER AR ZEN B RRONE
initial application. So far the group has identified EFHELEEAFZE FEHEEKENAT
some aspects of the new standards which N EE o

may have a significant impact on the financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below.

EHERENERAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

49

332

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

In January 2018, HKICPA issued HKFRS 17,
Insurance Contracts, and subsequently in October
2020 and February 2022 amendments to HKFRS
17, which supersedes HKFRS 4 of the same
title, and is currently effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Early
application is permitted for entities that apply
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, and HKFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, on or
before the date of initial application of HKFRS 17.
The group intends to adopt the new standard on its
mandatory effective date, alongside the adoption
of HKFRS 9. HKFRS 17 will replace the existing
HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, with a new liability
and revenue measurement model for all insurance
contracts. The group is currently in the process of
assessing the impact of HKFRS 17 on its financial
reporting.
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %%

WRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

AND US GAAP B EANHE
The consolidated financial statements are prepared SENBEBRRDBEBE(EBUBREE
in accordance with HKFRSs, which differ from Bkl EREB AR S EA NI L
certain aspects from US GAAP. The effects FHEAE - RIBE(E BB E2ER)E
of material differences between the financial ZE AR S % B 4R 1Y 2 & B B A% 3R
statements of the Group prepared under HKFRSs RNEREZEEFENT :
and US GAAP are as follows:
As at 31 December 2021
R-®=-%+=f=1-8
HKFRSs adjustments Amounts
(BRuHREEN)HE under US
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances Other difference Impairment ZEADEH
reclassificationt’ in accounting @ basis® EATHEE
Consolidated statement of RERESE =h HERE HK$000
financial position BRBEMRRE B AN £20 ZE0 FET
Assets BE
Property and equipment NERZE - 2,821 - 714,608
Statutory deposits EEFA - - - 4579
Deferred tax assets EEREEE - - 78 122
Investments in an associate RBEEAANRE - = = 148,819
Goodwill and Intangible assets BEREVEE - - - 1,910,204
Deferred acquisition costs and value of EEREESHAR
business acquired WEEXHMER 366,755 - - 13,198,441
Investments RE - 38,772 54,135 67,989,211
Advance reinsurance premiums RTBRBRE - - - 1,277,899
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims AARZZBRRAAME (3.449) = = 83,898
Insurance and reinsurance receivables EURERERRES (1,147,256 - - 5,629,512
Other account receivable and
accrued income RS RETHA - - - 79,531
Other receivables, deposit and prepayment  EftfElFUE K2 REMTE - - 2 884,640
Bank balance - Trust and segregated accounts /T8 - EERBUEF - - 155 779,386
Fixed bank deposits with original REARSN=({ERMN
maturity over 3 months RITEBER - - - 1,060,574
Cash and cash equivalents ReREESEER - - 114 4,024,590
Total assets EE4AE 97,786,514
Liabilities Bf
Insurance contract provisions RESEERES (4,679,491) - - (67,800 796)
[nvestment contract liabilities REARERE 4,714,346 - -
Outstanding claims RABH - - - (229,848 )
Reinsurance premium payables ERERERE 210,629 - - (277,801)
Financial liability at fair value through NAREEERESBH A BR
profit or loss, other account payable and E’Jém@ﬁf AfEAERRA
lease liabilies B2 - - - (1,499,959)
Other payables ;EMEH%&IE 560,713 - - (3,757,568)
Tax payable (5 - = - (11,632)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE - - - (1,176,858)
Bank borrowings BITEH - - - (1,381,776)
Shareholder's loan RRER - - - (1,641,077)
Total liabilities BfR4AE (77,777,315)
Total net assets FEEAR 20,009,199
Capital and reserves EXTIGE
Share capital RA - - - 11,872,683
Reserves e 11,457 34,540 36,930 1,934,101
Non-controlling interest FERER 10,790 7,053 17,574 6,202,415
Total equity ERAH 20,009,199
ERSRERBRAR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 55l 5)

50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS 50 (@,ﬁ,?}iﬁiﬁ HEH| Y B ER DR
AND US GAAP (Continued) == H| B ¥\T,EE (4)
As at 31 December 2020
RZB-BE+ZA=1-A
HKFRSs adjustments
(ERHBREEH) B amouri
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances  Other difference Impairment S DEAf)
reclassificationt’ in accounting @ basis® R THEH
Consolidated statement of REEBHNE Hbgst BEEE HK$'000
financial position GRUEMRRE Efp AN EE0 EE0 FET
Assets BE
Property and equipment EPE - 5,854 - 606,305
Statutory deposits EEEH - - - 5,721
Deferred tax assets BENEEE - - 78 228
Investments in an associate REENTNRE - = = 30,074
Goodwill and Intangible assets HEREVEE - - - 1,909,079
Deferred acquisition costs and value of ~ EEREEERAR
business acquired WEXENER 447,616 - - 11,391,384
Investments RE - (32,972) 48 841 62,823,573
Advance reinsurance premiums ERERBRE - = - 1,289,587
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims KRB ZBREAAHE - - = 55,443
Insurance and reinsurance receivables ~ EURERERBRER (63,119) - - 3,692,634
Other account receivable and accrued ~ E M ERER R Bl A
income - - - 158,878
Other receivables, deposit and prepayment EtEREE « 4 REMFE (2,799) - 2 951,868
Bank balance - Trust and segregated ~ BTHE - FRRBIKF
accounts - - 155 747,996
Fixed bank deposits with original maturity BEHBRSH=BANRTE
over 3 months i - - - 236,733
Cash and cash equivalents BeREEZEEE - - 15 4,056,849
Total assets EENAE 87,956,352
Liabilities 8
Insurance contract provisions RBERERS 4,503,078 - - 58,990,854
Investment contract liabilities REAREE (4,492,855) = = =
Outstanding claims RABH - - - 184,160
Reinsurance premium payables Fgﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ% - = = 321,989
Financial liability at fair value through UDABETERHZEHIA
profit or loss, other account E%&E’Jﬁﬂﬁ% » HAbER
payable and lease liabilities BARAEEE - = = 1,774,506
Other payables HtbEf 08 311,184 - - 2,831,896
Tax payable EAHE - - - 13,80
Deferred tax liabilities BLHEEE = - - 1,220,317
Bank borrowings BT = = - 1,553,503
Shareholder’s loan RREFH - - - 1,641,077
Total liabilities BEER 68,532,195
Total net assets FEEAE 19,424,157
Capital and reserves EXAffE
Share capital RA - - - 11,872,683
Reserves Bl 38,016 (13.334) 33935 1,565,811
Non-controlling interest FERER 22,281 (13,784) 15,975 5,985,663
Total equity B 19,424,157
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS 50
AND US GAAP (Continued)

A

BREMBREER)EXE DR
ST ERNNY R &)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-B--FtZACt-BLFE

HKFRSs adjustments Amounts
(BAEEREEN)RR under US
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances  Other difference Impairment ZEAREH
reclassificationt’ in accounting® basis® EETHEH
RERBRE Bttt HEEE HK$'000
Consolidated income statement GRNER Effp R Zg0 EEU FET
Income KA
Premiums and fee income RERERUWA - - - 8,478 584
Premiums ceded to reinsurer PHRE 506,473 - - (2,242,776)
Net premium and fee income RERERUATE 6,235,808
Change in unearned revenue liability RUBBAELED 2,339 - - (573,554)
Net eamed premium and fee income WARERERUAFE 5,662,254
Brokerage commission, interest and EEme - FERAR
other service income 2R M - - = 34,809
Subscription, management and R ERERERELA
rebate fee income - - - 7,855
Consultancy and advisory fee BERZAE - - - .
Net investment income and other income  RERARE U A FE (421,444) (355,303) (1,295) 4,879,247
Overlay adjustment BEHE - 377,429 - -
Reinsurance commission and profit BRBRLAERN (20418) - - 58,353
Total income hrgg 10,642,518
Benefits, losses and expenses gf FENER
Net policyholders benefit FREGA (32,512) - - (2,538,638)
Commission and related expenses BedRBEER - = = (1,818,471)
Management and other expenses EERHMAY (34,365) (3,033) - (1,244,961)
Change in future policyholder benefits ~ ARREBBEALHEDR
and deferral and amortisation of BREGHANMLE
deferred acquisition costs and SHEEMELNEE
value of business acquired (10,173) - - (4,089,604)
Total benefits, losses and expenses ff BRNEREE (9,686,674)
Finance cost EEGES - - - (149,120)
Share of result in associates NStk - - - 4
Profit before taxation B3 AR R 807,464
Tax expenses R - = - (7,101)
Profit after taxation BH &R 800,363
Profit attributable to: TH&HEERR :
Equity shareholders of the Company R ARRKRER (7,050) (12,927) (904) 518,387
Non-controlling interests FRRER (3,050) 6,166 (391) 281,976
800,363
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50 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS
AND US GAAP (Continued)

50 (BEAMBHEEEAVEXBE DR
ST ERNNY R &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BECSCSEt-A-T-ALER

HKFRSs adjustments Amounts
(ERUBREE)AE under US
Insurance- Difference in GAAP
related balances  Other difference Impairment  XEIAREH
reclassificationt’ in accounting @ basis® HETHEH
RIREBHE st BEEE HK$'000
Consolidated income statement Gabnk B RN EE0 EE0 FET
Income WA
Premiums and fee income REREAKA - - - 1,123,441
Premiums ceded to reinsurer PHRE 320,018 - - (2,614,951)
Net premium and fee income RERERUAFE 5,108,490
Change in unearned revenue liability RUBBASAED 64,389 - - (461,436)
Net eamed premium and fee income RORERERUAFE 4,647,054
Brokerage commission, interest and fafpe FSHAR
other service income AfpREHA - - - 33,944
Subscription, management and PE EREREREHA
rebate fee income - - - 5,432
Consultancy and advisory fee BERZENE - = - -
Net investment income and other income  RERATIE MU A B8 (107,776) (140,893) 70,897 6,211,347
Overlay adjustment BERE - 119,419 = =
Reinsurance commission and profit BRBASTEN (10,591) - - 86,710
Total income e 10984487
Benefits, losses and expenses Lf BENER
Net policyholders benefit FREGLA (15,984) - - (3,288,821)
Commission and related expenses BeNEBER - - - (1,349,851)
Management and other expenses ERRHMA (13,369) (2,803) - (956,218)
Change in future policyholder benefits ~ ARREREABHEBR
and deferral and amortisation of BREGHANMLE
deferred acquisition costs and $BEENETNER
value of business acquired (118,247) - - (4,101,645)
Total benefits, losses and expenses Rft-meneRe® (0,696,5%)
Finance cost AEHA - - - (170,385)
Share of result in associates BENALENE - - = 303
Profit before taxation B AER 1,117,870
Tax expenses AL = = = (3,823)
Profit after taxation BRE&EH 1,114,047
Profit attributable to: ToIE R EERA -
Equity shareholders of the Company AREBERR 82,672 (16,685) 49,486 733,788
Non-controlling interests FERER 35,768 (7,592) 21 411 380,259
1,114,047
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN HKFRSS
AND US GAAP (Continued)

Notes:

[1]  Major differences in relation to insurance-related
balance are summarised as follows: financial
reinsurance adjustments arising from different
classification of reinsurance contracts under HKFRS
and US GAAP; difference in value of business
acquired recognised under HKFRS and US GAAP
and corresponding differences on insurance contract
provisions; difference in measurement of deferred
acquisition costs and unearned revenue liability due
to different amortisation under HKFRS and US GAAP;
other miscellaneous differences due to different
accounting principles under HKFRS and US GAAP.

[2] Difference arises from classification and measurement
of investments and lease accounting.

[8] Difference arises from different impairment
methodology and basis (expected credit loss model
vs. incurred loss model) under HKFRS and US GAAP.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative disclosure notes have been
adjusted to conform with current year presentation.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is currently involved in an employment
dispute with former employees. Based on the
management’s current assessment, the Group
believes that there is no need to provide any
contingent liability as at 31 December 2021.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material non-adjusting event after the
reporting period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E--% CZEZ-EF ZE-hE ZE-N\F CZE-tF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E4
Premiums and fee income ~ RERERKA 8,478,584 7,723,441 6,016,075 761,673 -
Brokerage commission, LEme - FBWAR
interest and Hi R WA
other service income 34,809 33,944 18,566 7,118 6,163
Subscription, management R BEER
and rebate fee income BEERA 7,855 5,432 8,850 9,978 3,791
Consultancy and BRERZBHBA
advisory income - - 1,060 13,092 11,110
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BREiFIEF,/ (BE) 799,766 952,810 614,051 (181,296) (378,168)
Taxation Fig (7,101) (3,823) 699 41,791 (1,138)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERR,/ (B8B) 792,665 948,987 614,750 (139,505) (379,306)
Attributable to: T &R B
Equity shareholder of AREREGERR
the company 513,414 618,315 255,619 (195,612) (379,054)
Non-controlling interest FERES 279,251 330,672 359,131 56,107 (252)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF,/ (B8B) 792,665 948,987 614,750 (139,505) (379,306)
Basic (loss)/earnings SREX(BR)/
per share (HK$) B (&) 0.13 0.19 0.08 (0.08) (0.16)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EMEE
Property and equipment MERRE 711,787 600,451 495,328 133,946 17,035
Goodwill and intangible HEREFVEE
assets 1,910,204 1,909,079 1,923,360 1,932,016 36,110
Value of business acquired ~ WEB XK ERE 9,325,913 9,012,571 10,057,446 11,075,662 =
Interest in associates AN 148,819 30,074 27,860 64,846 =
Investments RE 67,896,304 62,807,704 54,822,243 43,632,718 898,134
Other assets HitEE 18,481,340 13,192,676 8,001,207 7,048,729 4,251,766
Total liabilities BEHE (78,583,512)  (68,210,788) (59,864,286) (48,533,891)  (1,063,713)
19,890,855 19,341,767 15,463,158 15,354,026 4,139,332
Share capital [N 11,872,683 11,872,683 9,829,094 9,829,094 4,629,094
Reserves e 1,851,174 1,507,893 273,604 (593,702) (489,762)
13,723,857 13,380,576 10,102,698 9,235,392 4,139,332
Non-controlling interests FERER 6,166,998 5,961,191 5,360,460 6,118,634 =
Total equity BEmEE 19,890,855 19,341,767 15,463,158 15,354,026 4,139,332
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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In the annual report, the following expressions shall
have the following meanings unless the context required

otherwise:

“Audit Committee”

“Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement”

“Board”

“CEO”

“CG Code”

“Chairman”

“Company”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Director(s)”

“Extension to the
Transitional Services
Agreement”

“GI’OUp”

“HKIA”

“Hong Kong”

“IO”

“Jade Passion”
“Key Imagination”

“Listing Rules”

EHCHEMERAT
B FEH

—_—

the audit committee of the Company

the Fourth Amended and Restated
Investment Advisory Agreement dated
15 December 2017 and entered into by
and between Barings LLC and YF Life

the board of Directors

the chief executive officer of the
Company

the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

the chairman of the Board
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

the Companies Ordinance (“Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong, as it may be
amended from time to time)

the director(s) of the Company

the extension to the transitional services
agreement dated 15 November 2019
and entered into by and between YF
Life and MMI

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Insurance Authority,
whether the individual appointed under
the 10 or body corporate established
under the IO

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), as the case
may be, as it may be amended from
time to time

Jade Passion Limited

Key Imagination Limited

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

Definitions
EE

RAEFEHRK  BEXESBHEN  TIAR

AEUTHZE

[EREEE]

[BEREAS

Tﬁ.‘! u#ﬁaJ
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[T AR ]
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i
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[EE R
RANNCIR
IR

[£% ]

48 % AR 7% 17 % 2
#IE 5 175 5

XS
[RESR

(&%

IR e ek 451 )

[Jade Passion |

KRR ZEREES
fiBarings LLCR B @&
BR-—Z2—+t&+=8
T EH B 2B A EE
AIRBMzREZAGZ
=%

KRB ZITBESE
77 R BB+ 09 B & 2 A8
BEEERTE
BEEEgCEER
EHREREERRLA

(R BMERBI) (& B EBI %
622%F) (BT HBFHEET)

>

s

RARES

HEEREBAMMIR ==
—hE+—-—B+HBFTX
2B E RIS & 2 H 17

E%
RABREMERF

/%1%'3'5’»6}':%@_,*% ;anﬂl
ARBRIEBEHEZEN
1 A SR AR 55 AR B 45k 1) B 32
A AERE

REARANBEEBHEH
THE

CRBRZEARB) (BB EH
FAE) (BEBERME)
BREFER

Jade Passion Limited

[Key Imagination ] Key Imagination Limited

[ £ 8l

BERBMEXZMARLDH
HELEmRA
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Definitions
E=

“MM'”
“MMLIC”

“Model Code”

“Nomination Committee”

AIPRCI!

“Remuneration
Committee”

“SFC”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“Transitional Services
Agreement”

“Yeal’"

“YF Life”

“YF Life Group”

“YFHL”

340

MassMutual International LLC

Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Company

the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the
Company

the People’s Republic of China

the remuneration committee of the
Company

the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as it may be amended from time
to time

ordinary share(s) of the Company

holder(s) of the Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

the transitional services agreement
dated 15 December 2017 and entered
into by and between YF Life and MMI
the year ended 31 December 2021

YF Life Insurance International Limited,
formerly known as MassMutual Asia
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company

YF Life and its subsidiaries

Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited

[MMI] MassMutual International
LLC

[MMLIC ] Massachusetts Mutual
Life Insurance Company

[E2<FAl] FHBRBMTFAEz LT
PNAIEFETHESRIN
R

[IREZEE] KARIREBEER

[ R J REARLEMNE

(FTZEES ] EARHFMHMEES

[FEg EREBSRBEEHER

[FERABER] (E

ZE89

ZREBERG) (BB
& 45l %57 ) (BB

i)
M4 ) ADADEBERB S
M) B9 A
B85 5 ERBARSFERLT
MBERBHE]  HEEREAMMR =
—tE+-A+HEATY
218 % IR 1 8
EXSA HE-T-—%+-5
St-AZEE
[EERR EERBREBERAD
FBBERBETNERA
EEYFEES S T
B A
(BERREE] WERRRENWEA

[E#ERER]

ERTRERBERAA
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YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  Rooms 1803-1806, 18th Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong T 852 2843 1488
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